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The cover piece of this year’s annual report is "Zen Painting" by Lu Shoukun, the leading
master of ink painting.

Throughout the career of Lu, the pre-eminent and pioneering exponent of the New Ink Painting
Movement, his works depicted Hong Kong scenery and explored abstract notions of human
spirit, which culminated his “Zen" series. The sure, swift and deftly placed brushstrokes of this
art piece display the confidence of the master painter. On the one hand, the image suggests
a bird swooping from the top right towards the bottom left, intent on its target, while on the
other hand, it can also be viewed as a flower unfolding, reaching to the upper right. In both
readings, the two small rectangular shapes in the upper left, in red and in blue, prompt the
viewers to pause and reflect.

Created in the same year when Gold Peak Group was founded, the vivid and dynamic painting
coincides with the agility and perseverance of the Company especially in adversity.
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GROUP PROFILE £Ef§7T

Gold Peak Group is an Asian multinational group which owns high-
quality industrial investments via GP Industries Limited, its major industrial
investment vehicle. The Group has built renowned brand names for its
major product categories, such as GP batteries, KEF premium consumer
speakers and CELESTION professional speaker drivers.

The parent company, Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited, was
established in 1964 and has been listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong since 1984. Currently, Gold Peak holds an approximately 85.5%*
interest in GP Industries which is publicly listed in Singapore.

The Group’s revenue for the financial year 2019-2020 amounted to
HK$6.1 billion and its total assets exceeded HK$7.2 billion. The Group
currently employs a staff force of 8,120 worldwide.
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GROUP STRUCTURE £EI%18

]
Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Ltd

EWTE (£E) BRAF

Hong Kong-listed &&_ £

85.5%

]
GP Industries Limited

GP TEXBRAF
Singapore-listed 703

GP Batteries Electronics & Other Industrial
International Limited Acoustics Investments

ELERBEFEERAE EfEMRGESR Hit TERE

e Primary specialty
—RIEREE
e Primary cylindrical

—RMHERE

e Rechargeable & others

FEBM S HAD

* Percentage stated denotes respective shareholding held by Gold Peak or GP Industries as at 30 June 2020
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

B R REHEE
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss FSEER 2020 2019
Year ended 31 March (HK$ Million) HE=A=1+—HILEFE (BBHET)
Revenue SR 6,051.5 6,767.7
Total profit for the year 2R 20.9 61.4
Earnings per share (Hong Kong cents) AR (B 2.7 7.8
Dividends per share (Hong Kong cents) SRS GBI 2.0 4.2
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position F&HEHKRE
At 31 March (HK$ million) R=B=1+—H (B&#%t)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RATE NELRERS 1,301.0 1,412.5
Total assets BEE 7.247.0 7,311.3
Capital expenditure EARME 542.4 295.3
Ratios tbEE
At 31 March W=A=+—H
Current assets : Current liabilities (ratio) MEBNVEE . MEVEME (LX) 0.8 1.0
Inventory turnover period (months) FEmEE (8) 2.5 2.5
Net bank borrowings : Total equity (ratio) SRATHEESE  BHE (thX)
— The Group — £E 1.04 0.89
— The Company — A 0.55 0.55
Other Information Hiih&E#
At 31 March W=A=+—H
The Company & its subsidiaries: RARKMEAR :
Number of employees EEAZ
- China — HE 5,620 6,200
- Hong Kong — BB 460 450
— Other countries — HAhE=R 2,040 1,290
8,120 7,940
Total area (sq m) HEERE (FAK)
- China — HE 301,300 264,100
- Hong Kong — BB 10,700 10,700
— Other countries — HfthE=xR 114,200 70,200
426,200 345,000

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020



Revenue by Business FERFFZERE

Year ended 31 March 2020 B ZE2020E3H31HIEERE
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Revenue by Location BHEZ EEEED M
Year ended 31 March 2020 B ZE2020FE3H31HILEE
[ Asia T

[0 Europe BRM
[ Americas =M
I Others EHfth

1.4%

Total Assets by Location BHEZEEE M

As at 31 March 2020 1202063 831H

[ Hong Kong & China & K& HE
[ Restof Asia EAthZaEIZR
[N Europe B

I Americas )

2.7%

Profit before Taxation by FERFFZIEMATEF]

Business HZ 202053 A310 L
Year ended 31 March 2020
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS (conTp)

I RREHEE )

Revenue .
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Market Capitalization
At 31 March (HK$ million)
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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
THERFHME

2020 2019
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss FeEER
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million) BE=A=+—HILFE(E8%ET)
Revenue e 6,051.5 6,767.7
Operating profit (loss) r&ERA (BE) 84.4 1295
Share of results of associates PR /NI E 133.4 135.5
Share of results of a joint venture Frid—MEaEh¥EE = -
Profit (Loss) from ordinary activities before taxation MR BIR B MmN (B51E) 217.8 265.0
Taxation g (126.5) (81.0)
Profit (Loss) for the year 2EHR (BE) 91.3 184.0
Attributable to: B
Owners of the Company PN/NETEZZ=DN 20.9 61.4
Non-controlling interests JEERRE R 70.4 122.6
91.3 184.0
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position F8BEHEIKRR
At 31 March (HK$ million) R=A=+—H@\E&HT)
Investment properties wREME = -
Property, plant and equipment L ER YN ] 1,833.3 1,594.7
Right-of-use asset ERREE 177.2 -
Interests in associates Frih B /A B e 1,501.6 1,484.3
Equity instruments at fair value through PUAFERT AR 2Rz = 174
other comprehensive income BATE ’ '
Interest in a joint venture Frt—EaebEkRs - -
Available-for-sale investments A ERE = -
Investment in convertible note AHRREREE = -
Non-current receivables JEMENEWERIE 83.4 -
Intangible assets | EE 1.2 1.3
Goodwill BmE 79.1 79.1
Deferred taxation assets IRIERIBEE = 20.9 225
Deposits and prepayments BSLTENFIE 26.1 13.0
Current assets AENEE 3,422.4 3,842.5
Assets classified as held for sale DERFHEEE 434 196.5
Total assets WEE 7,247.0 73113
Bank and other loans SRIT R EMER 351.2 1,167.6
Notes =R = -
Deferred taxation liabilities EERIASE 41.1 24.1
Lease liabilities HeaE 94.6 -
Obligation under finance leases MBHEER = 33
Derivative Financial Instruments TESRTE - 2.1
Provision for restructuring EwN 99.8 -
Current liabilities mEaE 4,544.5 3,883.9
Liabilities classified as held for sale PERFHEZEE = -
Total liabilities maE 5,131.2 5,081.0
2,115.8 2,230.3
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KANTHEE AELRER 1,301.0 1,412.5
Non-controlling interests PlEudivg £ 814.8 817.8
2,115.8 2,230.3

Note: The financial information from 2011 to 2013 had been restated to reflect changes in accounting policies in 2014 resulting from adoption of the new Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards effective in that year.

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020



2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(restated) (restated) (restated)

(BRI (EH4R7) (EH4R7)

6,316.3 5,822.6 5,795.5 5,855.7 5,849.3 6,020.6 5,810.5 5,859.0
60.3 67.6 76.6 203.8 (322.0) 42.2 (5.3) 73.4
137.0 142.6 128.2 96.3 109.5 14.6 31.4 113.5
- - - - 16.5 52.4 74.5 771

197.3 210.2 204.8 300.1 (196.0) 109.2 100.6 264.0
(87.3) (103.2) (86.5) (114.3) (75.6) (42.8) (69.0) (68.8)
110.0 107.0 118.3 185.8 (271.6) 66.4 31.6 195.2
20.4 20.1 18.7 51.5 (127.9) 40.3 (25.0) 85.1
89.6 86.9 99.6 134.3 (143.7) 26.1 56.6 110.1
110.0 107.0 118.3 185.8 (271.6) 66.4 31.6 195.2
- 9.9 9.6 9.9 41.1 58.4 74.2 82.4
1,755.1 1,400.8 1,393.4 1,409.2 1,495.5 1,601.5 1,676.5 1,718.3
1,489.8 1,403.7 1,3335 1,318.9 1,346.0 1,298.7 1,308.8 12717
- - - - - - 265.8 170.5

87.5 64.0 62.3 61.1 75.8 69.9 73.1 154.4

- - - - - 40.8 53.9 -

- - - - - - 29.2 130.7

1.4 3.6 6.4 10.6 15.0 19.7 26.0 40.4
102.1 102.1 102.1 118.5 127.2 158.8 168.0 175.1
21.9 19.7 21.5 20.6 35.1 28.9 234 23.0
14.3 37.4 24.7 8.6 1.0 2.8 4.0 -
3,576.5 3,097.9 2,929.4 2,703.7 2,878.6 2,997.4 3,201.2 3,215.8
55.8 5.9 - 0.4 22.7 330.4 - -
7,104.4 6,145.0 5,882.9 5,661.5 6,038.0 6,607.3 6,904.1 6,982.3
1,037.5 882.2 832.6 524.9 503.7 708.0 674.9 684.2
119.0 - - - - - - -
224 23.2 18.7 26.8 39.0 38.7 43.9 44.2
0.6 1.0 0.5 0.7 0.7 2.7 3.2 1.6
3,572.1 2,784.8 2,471.3 2,371.3 2,667.9 2,749.1 3,054.7 3,101.3
- - - - - 7.8 - -
4,751.6 3,691.2 3,323.1 2,923.7 3,211.3 3,506.3 3,776.7 3,831.3
2,352.8 2,453.8 2,559.8 2,737.8 2,826.7 3,101.0 3,127.4 3,151.0
1,519.9 1,268.3 1,323.5 1,406.0 1,380.9 1,505.5 1,508.2 1,542.2
832.9 1,185.5 1,236.3 1,331.8 1,445.8 1,595.5 1,619.2 1,608.8
2,352.8 2,453.8 2,559.8 2,737.8 2,826.7 3,101.0 3,127.4 3,151.0

MiEt 1 2011 22013 FMBERCRERHT] - DIRRERAR2014FE M2 & BU B RS EE 2 S5t BERES) -

SINTXEB)ERAE —F-NE_T_TEFR

1



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREWES

The financial year ended 31 March 2020
("FY2020") was an extremely difficult year that
the global business world has never seen. The
prolonged US-China trade dispute together with
the COVID-19 pandemic created heavy pressure
on the cashflow and bottom lines for most
companies. Extensive movement controls and
quarantine policies put the global market to almost
a standstill. Inevitably, the Group’s performance
and operations also suffered, with revenue of
FY2020 decreased by 10.6%. The management
has rapidly adjusted operations and deployed
stringent cost control measures to counter the
impact. Despite the uncertain business conditions
ahead, we are prudently calibrating our strategies
to overcome the upcoming challenges.

2020 MBI FEEREREARAUERLERE HEER
EW—F - PEEHUMLERERITMMmEE
EARERMBAERILER N - KREM
TEBEFRREENRSERM L FEE-
EEXEREERAIMATENER 2020 81
HEESEETH106% - BBEDIRER
HEBEREMBHMABRLUEMEE -8
REEMHBTHBPANEERE BHRMEEE
B RRE LT AR R SR AV BR & o
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Results and Dividend

Consolidated revenue for FY2020 decreased by 10.6% to HK$6,051.5
million. Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company was HK$20.9
million compared to HK$61.4 million reported for the last financial year.
Earnings per share decreased from 7.8 HK cents reported last financial year
to 2.7 HK cents this year.

The Board does not propose the payment of final dividend (2019: 2.5 HK
cents), making a total of 2.0 HK cents (2019: 4.2 HK cents) per share for

the whole year.

The Group’s Strategy against the US-China Trade
Dispute and COVID-19

The US-China trade dispute since mid-2018 exerted significant pressure on
the Group’s business in the US market. The additional tariff on our China-
made products discourages customer demand when reflected as higher
consumer pricing, or adds extra costs if the Group shares some of the

increased duty with customers.

Market sentiments have worsened when the outbreak of COVID-19 took
place in early 2020. The pandemic has led to lockdown and economic
disruption on a global scale. Movement control measures adopted by
different countries not only suppressed consumer demand but have also
brought the flow of some of our products to a halt. Our factories in China
were closed for two to four weeks in February and March 2020. Decrease
in consumer demand together with locked down production facilities
affected the Group’s revenue. The management has implemented rigorous
cost-saving measures since mid-March, including inventory and working
capital control, salary concessions and no-pay leaves. We will closely
monitor and adjust these measures to counter the rapidly evolving market
condition.

As battery products are daily necessities, they are less susceptible to the
negative impacts of a slowdown in the economy although demand may
still fluctuate from time to time. However, our consumer-centric acoustics
products met a more significant decline in consumer demand, especially
for sales in Asia and Europe where extensive movement restrictions were

imposed.

FERIRE
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EZRESANRERPKE (2019 2.5584l) °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (conTD)
I’E#E [—=R=] (}H

To increase the flexibility and agility of our Group, and in order to best
operate under the current business environment, we are rebalancing our
production resources across the SE Asia region. Additional manufacturing
facilities for battery and acoustics products have been set up in Vietnam,
Malaysia and Thailand to take up some of the production capacities we
have in China. We believe the diversified manufacturing footprint will
build a more stable supply base which is more resistant to rapid economic

changes.

A major modern manufacturing campus under the Group’s battery
manufacturing subsidiary in Ningbo, China is close to completion. The
project will further strengthen the Group’s competitive edge as a major
global supplier.

Though the economic slowdown is expected to continue and market
recovery will likely depend on how quickly the pandemic is contained, we
believe the direction we have taken to simplify our structure, stay focused
on our customers, control our cost base and continuously improve our
financial strength will enable us to overcome the challenges.

Outlook

During the COVID-19 lockdown, demand for rechargeable batteries has
risen noticeably in Europe. Reusable batteries will continue to be our
highlighted products. More efforts will be put into the enhancement of the
performance and marketing of our ReCyko* rechargeable batteries.

Streaming music system has been a major growth driver for the acoustics
market in recent years. Our new-media speakers LS50 Wireless and LSX are
widely appreciated and welcomed by the market. So new-media products

will also be one of our key focuses in the coming years.

For distribution channel development, e-commerce proved to be a fast
growing and most effective sales channel during the COVID-19 lockdown
as it works beyond time and geographical boundaries. More resources
will be invested to enhance our digital marketing tools and platforms to

capture a greater market share in the e-commerce channel.

The Group is committed to further enhancing our battery technologies
and automated battery manufacturing capabilities and investing in
future technologies. An innovation and research centre is being set up
in Shenzhen, China and is targeted to open in September 2020. The
new R&D facility will collaborate with universities and research institutes
globally on projects to explore new technologies, materials and chemistries

for our products.

14 ‘ Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited - Annual Report 2019-2020
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At the same time, we are also investing in further advancing our product
design. We have partnered with prominent international designers to
develop innovative products which were well received by the market. We
believe producing innovative high-quality products with state-of-the-art
designs is the direction to make our brands the preferred choices for our

customers.

Sustainability will be a major emphasis in developing our products and
manufacturing capabilities. In the past two years, our battery factories have
been striving for the “Zero Waste to Landfill” certifications and we intend
to gradually certify all our manufacturing plants. We are working on more
sustainable products, using recycled materials and reviewing packaging
strategy. Our ultimate target is to make all production materials and wastes
reusable and recyclable. Moving forward, we will do our best to help save
the planet, with the ambition to drive the industry, both in standards and

performance, to produce batteries in a more sustainable way.

Vote of Thanks

| would like to thank our dedicated and committed staff members
who continued to operate our businesses during the global pandemic.
Special thanks go to those who braved personal hardships to stay in their
posts during lockdown periods. | thank my fellow Board members and
management team for their devotion and engagement during the year.
I also thank our customers, suppliers, shareholders and bankers for their
unwavering trust and support during this difficult period. | believe with our
joint effort, the Group can tackle the challenges and come back stronger
and better.

Victor LO Chung Wing

Chairman & Chief Executive

30 June 2020
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
FHOE

Overview

The financial year ended 31 March 2020 (“FY2020") was the most
challenging year within the history of the Group. The trade dispute
between China and the US led to high import duty being imposed on some
types of batteries, all the professional audio products, acoustics products
and automotive wire harnesses made by the Group’s factories in China
for the US market. This duty increased consumer price or reduced the
gross margin for the products affected, especially in the second half of
the FY2020 financial year. Then, the COVID-19 pandemic struck China at
the end of January 2020. The subsequent lockdown and social distancing
measures imposed by the Chinese government shut down most of the
Group's factories and offices from February to mid-March 2020, right after
the traditional two-week holiday for the Chinese New Year in January.
Prudent recovery of the transportation network further delayed the return
of employees to factories and offices and disrupted normal logistic flow.
As a result, production output and operating efficiency for some of the
Group’s factories were significantly reduced in Q4FY2020. In the second
half of March 2020, factories in Malaysia and Vietnam were locked down
by respective governments to contain the pandemic. Thus, revenue for the
Group in the fourth financial quarter of FY2020 declined by 15.1%, and
for full FY2020 declined by 10.6% in HK dollar, when compared to the
corresponding period last year.

Despite the decline in revenue, gross profit margin improved from 25.0%
for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 (“FY2019") to 26.3% for
FY2020, attributable to a more favorable Renminbi versus US dollar
exchange rate, lower prices for some raw materials, the management’s
efforts on cost reduction and efficiency improvements as well as the focus
on protecting better quality businesses.

Profit after taxation attributable to equity holders of GP Industries for
FY2020 was $$19.5 million, a decline of $$9.7 million or 33.2% when
compared to the $$29.2 million reported in FY2019.

GP Industries
(85.5% owned by Gold Peak as at 31 March 2020)

The increased import tariffs imposed by the US on China-made products
should, in the longer term, reduce consumer demands and increase the
supply cost for some of the products the Group made in China for the
US market. The lockdown measures imposed by various governments to
contain COVID-19 pandemic led to increased unemployment in most key
global markets and reduced production, lowering operating efficiencies for
the Group’s factories and offices. Subsequent social distancing measures
further contributed to reduced consumer confidence and demand for
some of the Group’s products.

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020
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The Group’s battery products are daily necessities even during the
lockdown or social distancing period. Furthermore, production shortfall
during the prolonged closure of the Group’s battery factories in China
supplying to the US market was cushioned by the inventories stored at the
vendor-managed storage in the US, and the factories in Malaysia remained
open during February 2020 and the first half of March 2020. Therefore,
it is expected that consumer demand and sales of the Group’s battery
products to be less affected by the pandemic.

However, demand for the Group’s acoustics and electronic products are
mainly driven by consumer desire or by certain entertainment events. It is
expected that sales for the acoustics and electronic businesses to remain at
a lower level until consumer confidence and need for such items recover.

COVID-19 also affected automotive sales in key global markets causing
reduced consumer demand and logistics interruptions. As the Group'’s
automotive wire harnesses are designed for specific car models, the
demand for the automotive wire harness business is expected to remain
lower until the automotive markets in the US and China start to pick up.

In response to the business impacts of the pandemic, a series of cost
reduction measures have been adopted, including wage concessions
from the management team, no-pay leaves and strong efforts in working
capital management. Besides, the Group also used a combination of
inventory reduction, solicited support for better payment terms from its
long-term suppliers and customers as well as to work with its bankers on
more supportive loan covenants. At the time of this report, improvement
in all of the cost and liquidity improvement efforts was starting to take
effect, signifying understanding and support from our management team,
suppliers, customers and bankers. The management will continuously
monitor new market developments and make adjustments to these cost
control measures if needed.

Batteries Business

The revenue of the Batteries Business decreased by 8.7% during FY2020.
Sales of primary batteries decreased by 10.6% while sales of rechargeable
batteries increased by 2.6%. In geographical terms, sales in Asia and
the Americas decreased by 14.4% and 12.0% respectively while sales in
Europe increased by 4.1%.

Since July 2018, China-made battery products sold to the US had been
subjected to a 10% additional tariff which was further increased to 25%
from May 2019 onwards. This led to a decrease in sales of the Group’s
cylindrical Alkaline batteries to the US market. Price competition also
intensified from available production capacity of some China-based battery
manufacturers.

AT B ERERARERAE  £F
BHEMDERFLFmR - FAPEHITREE
REBASHEENRE @ BIMEEXBEREMME
REMHERSRRBBES  AJ/FER - L
AP T MRAE202062 8 K38 L BINARE
£ ATEMEESERBEEEFTRNIE
EXRBEER) -

MR SEEBSELETEMNTRERAE
BERRNERIREBEwE > FARBEEHRK
BETYERNEESHEREKT HEHEEER
OB REIFRLE -

MBMARRFERRERDSHAEHE
TLHBBEFBRTREYATE - AREEE
EZNERARBERSERSEMmMRET - BN
EEHRNTREENEKRT » EEXBELPEH
REHSEE

RERTBHFENTE  SEERN—EH
BB KRR - BREEER - ERER
BEEBENEGHEEER - 1t - EERKE
TZIEER - BB ER - RRBHERK
BF BB EN R DRARITERE

BARKRERBDECHERESER  BHE
HE - fEm - BF RRITHREBMB IS -
EHEQERETERHERNMBE  WER
B E AN -

FHRF

BMEECEERBREFTERE7% o — R M
B E A 10.6%  FE Mz 8 E RN
2.6% ° IHbImEE 0 M KRR ILEMZEE
DRIEAN14.4%512.0% Bl s8E8] 7
4.1% o

BH2018F7 At > HEREMERLERXH
R 10%8INET > B2019F5 Qe EIRE
25% @ SEBEFREMIE T2 KRBT BT -
B - B0 BieIRf7 ERERY R Bt A E RN
INBVER S

SUNTEEBBERAT —F-NE_Z_ZTEFR

17



18

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (conTD)
L 75O (m)

Despite revenue decline, the overall gross profit margin of the Batteries
Business improved. The Batteries Business contributed less profit due
to the combined effect of a decline in revenue and in other operating
income in addition to an increase in other operating expenses. In FY2020,
the Batteries Business reported a S$4.8 million realized loss on derivative
financial instruments due to Renminbi depreciation, a S$5.7 million closure
cost for factories and a S$5.6 million translation deficit recognized as a loss
upon liquidation of a subsidiary. In FY2019, the Batteries Business reported
a $$25.2 million other operating income due mainly to compensation
income for relocation reported by the 70%-owned subsidiary, Zhongyin
(Ningbo) Battery Co Ltd.

Aggregate profit contribution from associates of the Batteries Business
increased by S$1.9 million in FY2020 as compared to FY2019.

During FY2020, the Group increased its equity interest in its carbon zinc
battery manufacturing facilities in Vietnam, comprising now a 95%-owned
subsidiary, GP Batteries (Vietnam) Limited Liability Company, and a
49%-owned associated company, Hanoi Battery Joint Stock Company. In
Malaysia, commissioning of the new Nickel Metal Hydride rechargeable
battery factory has been delayed due to travel restrictions imposed, making
equipment installation impossible and supporting technical personnel
unable to access to the factory.

Completing GP Batteries’ production capacity rebalancing project is of
utmost important for the Group as it will enable GP Batteries to operate
with a more competitive operation structure, with large modern factories
instead of a number of medium size plants spread out in multiple locations.
Increasing production outside of China also reduces the overall impact of
the US trade tariffs on the Group’s businesses.

Electronics and Acoustics Business

The revenue of the Electronics and Acoustics Business decreased by
9.6% in FY2020. Sales of electronics products, which are mainly music
performance equipment for consumer, professional or commercial use,
declined by 17.9% in FY2020. Demand from the Group’s US customers
declined partly due to additional import tariff imposed on electronic
products manufactured by its factory in China, and partly due to the
lockdown of the factory, GP Electronics (Huizhou) Limited (“GPEHZ"), for
most of February 2020 and the first half of March 2020 following the two-
week Chinese New Year holidays from late January 2020.

To rebalance the Group’s manufacturing base for the Electronics and
Acoustics Business, the Group acquired a 51% share of a Thai acoustics
manufacturer and incorporated a subsidiary, GP Electronics & Acoustics
Co., Ltd. in Thailand during FY2020 (“GPET"). GPET reported a small
amount of domestic sales during FY2020. However, commencement of
production of its electronics products was delayed by lockdown measures
as technical and management team were unable to travel to Thailand to
supervise equipment installation and commissioning.

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020
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Sales of acoustics products decreased marginally by 0.7% in FY2020.
Sales to Europe decreased by 2.2%, sales to the Americas decreased by
0.8% while sales to Asia increased by 2.8%. However, adverse economic
impacts or uncertainties caused by the COVID-19 may still affect consumer
demand for the Group’s consumer-centric acoustics products later on.

During FY2020, GPEHZ reported a property disposal gain of S$48.6 million
and a provision for restructuring costs of S$17.6 million in connection with
the disposal of the land and buildings of the current GPEHZ factory, and to
set up another new factory in a different location in China, respectively.

Aggregate profit contributed from associated companies which
manufacture parts and components decreased by S$1.8 million in FY2020.
The component associates also suffered from reduced customer demand
caused by the US-China trade dispute and factory shutdown due to the
lockdown requirements in February and March of FY2020.

Automotive Wire Harness Business

The revenue of the Automotive Wire Harness Business declined by 11.8%
for FY2020, due mainly to the softening of the passenger car market in the
US and in China. Sales to the Americas decreased by 10.2% while sales to
China decreased by 17.5%.

Other Industrial Investments

This business segment includes the Group's investments in Meiloon
Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Meiloon”) and Linkz Industries Limited (“Linkz"). In
FY2020, Meiloon contributed more profit due to increase in turnover and
improvement in gross profit margin. In FY2020, profit contribution from
Linkz decreased.

With continued US-China trade dispute, Meiloon is in the process of
setting up production facilities in SE Asia to rebalance its business and
diversify the production base in China. Linkz had on 30 June 2020
completed its internal reorganization and injected its networking cable
manufacturing business into its subsidiary, Time Interconnect Technology
Limited (“Time Interconnect”), which is publicly listed in Hong Kong. Time
Interconnect is engaged in the manufacturing of cable assembly products.
The injection of Linkz's networking cable business into Time Interconnect is
not expected to generate any material impact on the Group’s earning from
this investment.
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Financial Review

During the year, the Gold Peak Group’s net bank borrowings increased by
HK$214 million to HK$2,195 million. As at 31 March 2020, the aggregate
of the Group’s shareholders’ funds and non-controlling interests was
HK$2,116 million. The Group’s gearing ratio (the ratio of consolidated net
bank borrowings to shareholders’ funds and non-controlling interests) was
1.04 (31 March 2019: 0.89). The gearing ratios of the Company and GP
Industries were 0.55 (31 March 2019: 0.55) and 0.66 (31 March 2019:
0.55) respectively.

Due to the adverse impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on the Group’s
revenue for 4QFY2020 and consequentially its results of operations, the
Group could not comply with certain financial covenants (computed based
on the Group’s borrowings and earnings) committed under some of the
loan and banking facility agreements (the “Affected Loans”) for the test
period ended 31 March 2020. The Group has requested for the consents
from lenders of the Affected Loans to waive such non-compliance (the
“Consents”).

As the Consents were not in place as at 31 March 2020, the short-term
portion of the Affected Loans amounted to HK$426 million which was
originally scheduled to be repaid within twelve months from end of
the reporting period, and the long-term portion of the Affected Loans
amounted to HK$709 million which was originally scheduled to be repaid
after 31 March 2021, were presented under bank loans, import and other
loans repayable within one year and repayable on demand.

Subsequent to 31 March 2020 and up to the date of approval for
issuance of the consolidated financial statements, the Group has repaid
HK$36 million of the Affected Loans and received Consents in respect of
HK$1,072 million of the Affected Loans. The Consents in respect of the
remaining HK$27 million of the Affected Loans are expected to be received
soon. The directors of the Company believe that adequate alternative
sources of finance are available to ensure that there is no threat to the
continuing operations of the Group.

As a result of the reclassification of the long-term portion of the Affected
Loans from long-term to current liabilities, at 31 March 2020, 69% (31
March 2019: 66%) of the Group’s bank borrowings was revolving or
repayable within one year and 21% (31 March 2019: Nil) was originally
scheduled to be repaid after 31 March 2021 and repayable on demand
due to breach of loan covenants whereas 10% (31 March 2019: 34%)
was repayable from one to five years. Most of these bank borrowings are
denominated in US dollars, Singapore dollars and Hong Kong dollars.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currencies arises mainly from the net
cash flow and the translation of net monetary assets or liabilities of its
overseas subsidiaries. The Group continued to manage foreign exchange
risks prudently. Forward contracts, borrowings in local currencies and
local sourcing have been arranged to minimize the impact of currency
fluctuation.

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020
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EVENTS AND ACHIEVEMENTS
SERE

Batteries

Three factories in China were named “3 Years+ or 5 Years+ EcoPioneer”
of the BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards by Federation
of Hong Kong Industries to recognize their contribution and effort in
environmental protection and minimizing pollution in the Pan Pearl River

Delta region.

GP Batteries was awarded “Outstanding Corporate Social Responsibility
under the “Greater China 100% HK
Branding Award 2019” organized by Greater China Association

Environmental Award 2019”

of Branding Industry Limited to honor brands for their continuous
contributions in promoting corporate social responsibility in the Greater

Bay community.

Three factories in China and Malaysia received UL Zero Waste to Landfill
Silver Validation by UL-CCIC Company Limited to acknowledge their
achievements in minimizing production waste, maximizing the use of raw
materials and recycled resources as well as its commitment to sustainable

development.

Nielsen’s MarketTrack Report ranked GP as the No.1 brand in sales volume
in the Alkaline battery segment as well as the rechargeable battery
segment in Hong Kong for the sixteenth consecutive year (2004-2019).

Electronics and Acoustics

GP Electronics (HK) Limited formed a joint venture in Thailand with STH
Holdings Co., Ltd. in December 2019 for manufacturing and sales of
electronics and acoustics audio products in Thailand, as well as extending
the Group's manufacturing base outside China.

KEF R11 floorstanding speaker was selected as the “EISA Award: Best
Product 2019-2020 - High-end Loudspeaker” by Expert Imaging and
Sound Association (EISA), Europe.

KEF LS50 Wireless and KEF R3 stand mount were named “What Hi-
Fi? Product of the Decade” and “What Hi-Fi? Best Buy Award 2019”
respectively by What Hi-Fi? Sound & Vision, UK.

KEF LSX wireless music system received “What Hi-Fi? Best Buy Award
2019” and was named “Product of the Year” by What Hi-Fi? Sound &
Vision, UK. It was also presented “EISA Award: Best Product 2019-2020
— Wireless Stereo Loudspeaker” by Expert Imaging and Sound Association
(EISA), Europe.

RN ENENRES S L EESER
IREBBFEIRREARE 2 M35+ HEF+ R
{RICEE ) RBEIZHR=AMERHHETER
REBASRNER AR

BN AT ELREEXBEERATDE
M "TKRPETDABEBREALE2019, KE
2019 CSREEHEEHETARMRE, - UKB
mEERNEEFEESPREETENER -

=R B RS R AR BB UL ER
BARATBEEULBEEYTHEREF, S
EERBDEZREY ~ TAMAEMELEEY
K MEAFERR CEHER -

REBEBRMSGATRE - GPRARMEMLK
BIMEAE164F (2004-2019) &5 EHBHER
= o

ETEMRIBRSERT

TILIEBT (FH) BRARN20195F12 H ESTH
Holdings Co., Ltd7EZRBIEN . —HKE&E R » L
NELENHEETREXTEER R
FREIRR B Sz A RSB

KEF R11EMISRSRERMNT Z HE
F2019-20205 == imEERR

(EISA)EF 7%

KEF LSS0fE4R 1522 2R BEAKEF R3IZ IR/ 5l
HWHEWhat Hi-Fi? Sound & Visioni®& 5 TER
FEER IR T20198EES -

KEF LSX£E 4R #5 22 83 & 2 B What Hi-Fi? Sound
& Vision2A " 20198 REM. N FEREE
fh s FIEFIVERNE SIS (EISA)TEA T 2019-
2020 = AR T BRI R AR o

SUTXEBERAT —B-AE-Z_REER

21



22

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEREREEE[T

Executive Directors

Victor LO Chung Wing GBM, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 70, joined Gold Peak
Group in 1972 and has been appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive
since 1990. He is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of GP
Industries Limited and GP Batteries International Limited. Mr Lo is a
member of the board of directors of Hong Kong Design Centre. He is the
chairman of M Plus Museum Limited under the West Kowloon Cultural
District Authority in Hong Kong. In addition, he is a director of PMQ
Management Company Limited and the chairman of board of directors
of Hotel ICON Limited, which is the teaching and research hotel under
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (“PolyU”). Mr Lo graduated from
Institute of Design of Illinois Institute of Technology, US with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Product Design. He also holds an Honorary Doctorate in
Design from PolyU. He is the father of Ms Grace Lo Kit Yee.

Richard KU Yuk Hing aged 72, joined Gold Peak Group in 1978 and
has been appointed an Executive Director since 1990. He is also the Vice
Chairman of GP Batteries International Limited. He has over 40 years’
experience of international marketing in the batteries industry. Mr Ku
graduated from Sophia University, Japan with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Economics.

Brian LI Yiu Cheung DBA, aged 67, has been appointed an Executive
Director since 2015. Dr Li joined Gold Peak Group in 1981 and is currently
the Executive Vice President of the Company. He is also an Executive
Director and the Executive Vice President of GP Industries Limited. He has
been engaging in the electronic engineering and manufacturing industry
internationally and in China for over 30 years. He is the vice chairman
of The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association, a council member
of the Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council and a member of the
Innovation and Technology Development Committee of the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries. He is also the member of SME’s Manufacturing
Partnership and Investment Task Force of HKTDC Belt and Road & Greater
Bay Area Committee. He currently serves as the chairman of the Advisory
Committee for the Department of Electronic Engineering and a member of
the Co-operative Education Centre of City University of Hong Kong. He is
also a member of the Industrial Advisory Committee for the Department of
Industrial Engineering and Decision Analytics of The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology, a member of the Advisory Committee for
the Department of Electronic Engineering of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong and a member of the Electronic and Information Engineering
Programme Board of Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education. Dr Li is
a fellow of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Engineering from The University of British Columbia,
Canada, a Master’s degree in Global Business with Dean’s Honour
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Doctor of Business
Administration degree from City University of Hong Kong.
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Michael LAM Hin Lap aged 59, joined Gold Peak Group in 2014 and
has been appointed an Executive Director since April 2019. Mr Lam is
currently the Group General Manager of the Company. He is an Executive
Director, Group General Manager, Business Development as well as
Assistant to Chairman of GP Industries Limited. He is also a Director of GP
Batteries International Limited. He first joined Gold Peak Group in 2001,
and was transferred to a global energy management group following the
disposal of the Group’s electrical business in 2007. He has been in senior
management positions for over 15 years. He holds a Bachelor's degree in
Electrical Engineering from The University of New South Wales, Australia.

Brian WONG Tze Hang aged 57, joined Gold Peak Group in 1993 and
has been appointed an Executive Director since April 2019. Mr Wong is
currently Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is also a Director of
GP Batteries International Limited. Mr Wong has over 30 years' experience
in the accounting field and is a fellow of both the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of the UK. He holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of London, UK.

Non-Executive Directors

LEUNG Pak Chuen aged 70, joined Gold Peak Group in 1981. He was an
Executive Director from 1990, and following his retirement from the post
of Deputy Chief Executive, he has been re-designated as a Non-Executive
Director, as well as Non-Executive Vice Chairman of the Company and
Senior Adviser to Chief Executive since 1 January 2019. He has also been
re-designated as the Non-Executive Director and Non-Executive Vice
Chairman of GP Industries Limited, as well as the Non-Executive Director
of GP Batteries International Limited. Mr Leung has been in the electronics
manufacturing industry for 45 years and has played an important role in
setting up the Group’s major joint ventures in China in mid 1980s. He is a
member of The Chartered Institute of Marketing, UK and The International
Institute of Management. He graduated from Chu Hai College, Hong Kong
with a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.

Karen NG Ka Fai CFA, aged 39, has been appointed a Non-Executive
Director since 2015. Ms Ng managed transactions in Asia for global
financial institutions, and possesses more than 10 years of experience in
investment in the region. She graduated from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology, US with a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering
and Computer Science. Ms Ng is the daughter of the late Mr Andrew Ng,
an Executive Director of the Company from 1984 to 2014.
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EFEREREEERDIT m

LUI Ming Wah SBS, JP, PhD, aged 82, has been appointed an
Independent Non-Executive Director since 1995. Dr Lui is currently an
honorary chairman of The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association,
an honorary president of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong
Kong, and an advisor of Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre.
He is also a fellow of the The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Dr Lui is
currently the managing director of Keystone Electronics Co. Ltd. He is also
an independent non-executive director of AV Concept Holdings Limited,
L.K. Technology Holdings Limited and Asian Citrus Holdings Limited, all of
which are companies listed in Hong Kong. He obtained his Master’s and
Doctoral degrees from the University of New South Wales, Australia and
the University of Saskatchewan, Canada respectively.

Frank CHAN Chi Chung FCCA, FCPA, CPA, aged 66, has been appointed
an Independent Non-Executive Director since 2004. He is currently a group
executive director of Hong Kong-listed Techtronic Industries Company
Limited. Mr Chan is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He is qualified to practise as a Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong.

CHAN Kei Biu PhD, aged 73, has been appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director since 2005. Prof Chan is an honorary chairman of
The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council of
the Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He is also an honorary president
of both the Hong Kong Association for the Advancement of Science
and Technology and the Hong Kong Mould and Product Technology
Association. In addition, he is the professional advisor and committee
member of the Hong Kong Federation of Innovative Technologies and
Manufacturing Industries. Prof Chan is currently the chairman and senior
managing director of Surface Mount Technology Limited.
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Timothy TONG Wai Cheung, PhD, FASME, FHKEng, JP, aged 67, has
been appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director since April 2019.
Prof Tong is also Non-Executive Independent Director of GP Industries
Limited. He has over 30 years of teaching, research and administrative
experience in universities in the US and Hong Kong. Prior to serving as
president of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University from 2009 to 2018,
he was dean of the School of Engineering and Applied Science at The
George Washington University, US. Being an expert in the field of heat
transfer, Prof Tong is dedicated to addressing issues concerning energy use
and sustainable development. He is a fellow of the American Society of
Mechanical Engineers, the Hong Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences
and the International Thermal Conductivity Conference. Prof Tong’s
public engagement includes serving as chairman of the Citizens Advisory
Committee on Community Relations as well as member of the Advisory
Committee Commission on Corruption of Independent Commission
Against Corruption, and member of the InnoHK Steering Committee.
Additionally, he has been appointed member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference since 2013. He is also the chief executive
officer of AMTD Foundation, which is a charity organization created to
assist AMTD Group in fulfilling its corporate social responsibility. Prof Tong
is currently a non-executive director of Freetech Road Recycling Technology
(Holdings) Limited and an independent non-executive director of Xiaomi
Corporation, Gravitation Fintech HK Limited and Airstar Bank Limited. Prof
Tong holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from
Oregon State University, US, and holds a Master’s and a Doctoral degree in
the same discipline from the University of California, Berkeley, US.

Senior Management

Grace LO Kit Yee aged 49, joined Gold Peak Group in 2002 and is
currently Deputy Group General Manager of the Company. She is also
Managing Director of the KEF Audio Group, GP Acoustics International
Limited. She graduated from Northwestern University, US and holds
a Master of Design degree from lllinois Institute of Technology, US as
well as an MBA degree from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. She is the daughter of Mr Victor Lo Chung Wing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
and has applied the principles of the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) in Appendix 14
to The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Code, except for the deviations from A.2.1 of
the Code, details of which are set out below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal focus of the board of directors (the “Board”) is on the overall strategic
development of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance and
the internal controls of the Group’s business operations.

As at 31 March 2020, the Board comprised five executive directors (one of whom
is the Chairman), two non-executive directors and four independent non-executive
directors. The biographical details of all directors of the Company are set out on
pages 22 to 25 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board comprised:

Executive Directors:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Richard KU Yuk Hing

Brian LI Yiu Cheung

Michael LAM Hin Lap (appointed on 1 April 2019)
Brian WONG Tze Hang (appointed on 1 April 2019)

Non-Executive Directors:
LEUNG Pak Chuen (Non-Executive Vice Chairman)
Karen NG Ka Fai

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

LUI Ming Wah

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

Timothy TONG Wai Cheung (appointed on 1 April 2019)

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda
for each board meeting in consultation with all directors. Notice of at least 14 days
has been given to all directors for all regular board meetings and the directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda and
accompanying board papers in respect of regular board meetings are sent in full to
all directors within reasonable time prior to the meeting.

The Board's primary function is to assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company. The directors are collectively responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs. Other duties of the directors include but not limited to
maintaining effective control of the Company, giving specific strategic direction to
the Company, reviewing, approving and monitoring the fundamental financial and
business strategies, plans and major corporate actions, ensuring that the Company
complies with the relevant laws, regulations and codes of business practice,
ensuring that the Company communicates with shareholders and the relevant
stakeholders transparently and promptly and monitoring the overall corporate
governance functions of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Although the Board may and has delegated some of its responsibilities and functions
to various committees and principal divisions, it acknowledges that it remains
ultimately accountable for the performance and affairs of the Company.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by the
company secretary and copies of minutes are sent to the directors for their records.
Each Board member is entitled to have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary and, upon reasonable request and in appropriate circumstances,
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, four board meetings and one general
meeting were held and the attendance of each director was set out as follows:

HEBITESER
EEXH

Number of board

HEBITRRR
REXRH

Number of general

EENZ Name of director meetings attended/held meeting attended/held
L Victor LO Chung Wing 4/4 1”71
FRE Richard KU Yuk Hing 3/4 1”71
HRE Brian LI Yiu Cheung 4/4 0/1
B Michael LAM Hin Lap 4/4 1/1
=¥I8 Brian WONG Tze Hang 4/4 1/1
2H% LEUNG Pak Chuen 4/4 171
2R LUI Ming Wah 4/4 1”71
PRASHR Frank CHAN Chi Chung 4/4 1”71
BRELSR CHAN Kei Biu 4/4 11
RRE Karen NG Ka Fai 4/4 11
EE=E Timothy TONG Wai Cheung 3/4 11
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In respect of continuing professional development, the Company will provide
an induction package including necessary information and briefings for newly
appointed directors and directors are encouraged to participate in professional
development courses and seminars to ensure that they are aware of their
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. Ongoing
professional training had been and will be offered to all directors to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills as directors of a listed company.

All the directors have participated in continuing professional development by
attending seminars or perusing materials relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate governance. During the year under review, a professional training course
was organised for the directors by the Company in relation to update on the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The corporate governance function of the Group is collectively performed by the
Board. The Board acknowledges overseeing the corporate governance function
of the Group collectively and agreed to comply with a specific written terms of
reference. During the year under review, the Board has performed the following
corporate governance functions:

— reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
made recommendations;

— reviewed the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management;

— monitored the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; and

— reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in this
corporate governance report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Victor LO Chung Wing is the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the
Company. Although A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual, the Board considers that the present structure will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of the Group as
the Group’s principal businesses are separately listed and run by different boards of
directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the needs of the
business of the Company.

The Company has entered into a letter of appointment with each of the non-
executive directors and the independent non-executive directors pursuant to which
they are appointed for a specific term of 3 years subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of the articles of association of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The main duties and functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the
composition of the Board at least annually, to make recommendations to the
Board on the changes of the Board, including the appointment or re-appointment
of directors, to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to assess
the independence of the independent non-executive directors, provided that no
directors being involved in fixing his own terms of appointment and no independent
non-executive directors being involved in assessing his own independence. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee follow the guidelines set out in the
Code and have been posted on the Company’s website.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Nomination Committee comprised:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman)
LUI Ming Wah

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

LEUNG Pak Chuen

During the year ended 31 March 2020, one Nomination Committee meeting was
held and the attendance of each committee member was set out as follows:

HEBITEERY

Number of meeting
mEESE Name of member attended/held
AL Victor LO Chung Wing 11
= ARZE LUI Ming Wah 11
REER Frank CHAN Chi Chung 11
BRELGR CHAN Kei Biu 11
ZAZ LEUNG Pak Chuen 1/1
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31
March 2020 included (i) reviewing the board diversity policy, the nomination policy,
procedures and criteria for nomination of Directors and the structure, size and
composition of the Board, (i) assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors, (i) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and (iv) considering the Board succession plan.

The nomination policy sets out the criteria and procedures for the selection,
appointment/re-appointment of directors of the Company. The Nomination
Committee reviews the composition of the Board at least annually and makes
recommendations to the Board on the changes of the Board. Proposed candidate(s)
will be asked to submit the necessary information in order for the Board to assess
their suitability. The Board shall ensure that the procedures of nomination, selection
and appointment/re-appointment are in compliance with the Listing Rules, the
Companies Ordinance and the Company’s Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee reviews the nomination policy on a regular basis so as to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach to diversity
of members of the Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit, and
candidates will be considered by objective criteria, including but not limited to
skills, knowledge, professional experience, cultural and educational background,
gender, age and length of service, for their potential contribution to the Board and
the Company as a whole in order to achieve board efficiency. The Company sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and to review the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee comprised:

LUI Ming Wah (Chairman)
Frank CHAN Chi Chung
CHAN Kei Biu

LEUNG Pak Chuen

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad commercial
experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in technicality, business and
accounting in the Audit Committee. The composition and members of the Audit
Committee comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the guidelines set out in the Code
and have been posted on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the attendance of each committee member was set out as follows:

HE BITEERY

Number of meetings

mE%E Name of member attended/held

= HREE LUI Ming Wah 2/2

PRAAER Frank CHAN Chi Chung 212

BRER CHAN Kei Biu 2/2

RaZz LEUNG Pak Chuen 2/2
REEZS"EF=F=1+—HILFE » B&FEEE  The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 March 2020
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included reviewing the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 and the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months ended 30
September 2019, with recommendations to the Board for approval.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee met with the external
auditor twice.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to review and endorse
the remuneration policy of the directors and senior management, to approve
the directors’ service contracts and to make recommendations to the Board for
the remuneration of the directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee has taken sufficient measures to ensure that no director is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Remuneration Committee comprised:

Frank CHAN Chi Chung (Chairman)
LUI Ming Wah

CHAN Kei Biu

Victor LO Chung Wing

LEUNG Pak Chuen

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been posted on the
Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, one Remuneration Committee meeting was

BET—REE - BMNREZHFBEREIIMT : held and the attendance of each committee member was set out as follows:
HE BITEERH
Number of meeting
mEHE Name of member attended/held
PRASHR Frank CHAN Chi Chung 1”71
= HREE LUI Ming Wah 11
BRESE CHAN Kei Biu 1/1
FEfhEE Victor LO Chung Wing 11
Raz LEUNG Pak Chuen 1/1
PEEZSZSF=—A=T—HUIHE FMZEESE  The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31
EREREEHNERLSNEEBZHFMBREESF  March 2020 included reviewing the remuneration policy and the remuneration of
Bl TAE - the directors and senior management.
EEZRESRS DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
AATEHERETNESRS  HNEN EHRB The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
Mg+ T EMBITAERETESRIMZESFR,  of Listed Issuers” set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code")
(TREEFRIL) fE1TRSPR » ZKAARXRFMBESAM  asits code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities transactions. Having made
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specific enquiry of all directors, the Company confirmed that all directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group.
The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that might cast significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue in business.
Accordingly, the Board has prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim reports,
announcements, financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports
to the regulators as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has conducted annual review on the system of risk management
and internal control of the Group and its effectiveness covering the financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management functions and considered
them effective and adequate. The Board is committed to implementing an effective
and sound risk management and internal control system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid and payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, external auditor

of the Group, for services provided during the year ended 31 March 2020 were as
follows:

2 EiER

BRFFE Services rendered Fees paid/payable
FHT

HK$'000

EET RS Audit services 9,587
JEEF RS (Fi5E) Non-audit services (Note) 1,006
ast Total 10,593
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Note: Non-audit services were mainly tax management and consultation.
COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Mr. Louis WONG Man Kon is the company
secretary of the Company and he has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
by obtaining no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year
under review.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

The Board has adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy (the “Policy”) which
aims at promoting and facilitating effective communication with its shareholders.
The objective is to ensure that the Company provides timely, clear, reliable and
relevant information for its shareholders in exercising their rights. The Policy includes
how shareholders can convene a general meeting, the procedures by which
enquiries may be put to the Board and the procedures for putting forward proposals
at shareholders’ meeting. Sufficient contact details for the above can also be found
in the Policy. A procedure for election of directors was also adopted to provide
guidelines on how shareholders can nominate an individual as director of the
Company. The Policy and the procedures for nomination of directors are published
on the Company’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2020, there was no change to the articles of

association of the Company. The articles of association of the Company has been
posted on the Company’s website.
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The Group is committed to reducing the impact on the environment and being
socially responsible to its employees, customers and the communities. During
the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group complied with all relevant laws and
regulations relating to environmental, social and governance issues. The 2019-2020
Environmental, Social and Governance Report will be published separately on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

ENVIRONMENTAL

To effectively monitor and minimize waste and emissions, task forces have been set
up. Policies are in place to cut down hazardous and non-hazardous wastes as well
as to properly handle industrial waste water and hazardous wastes. There are also
recycling guidelines and programs to reduce wastes and for more efficient use of
resources.

The Group strives to reduce energy consumption to alleviate effects on global
warming. Green building concept has been employed to reduce energy
consumption in its factories. Air-conditioning, electricity and water conservation
have been closely tracked and reviewed to maintain a lean and an efficient
operation. Product packaging is constantly reviewed in order to reduce material
usage and minimise the impact on the environment.

The Group maintains a well-established supply chain management policy to monitor
the quality of suppliers. Random audits at suppliers’ production sites are conducted
to ensure their continual compliance with the technical requirements and quality of
products, health, safety and environment standards as well as business ethics.

The production of safe and quality products has always been the top priority of the
Group. The Group strives to comply with all regulatory requirements pertaining to
the health and safety of its products and services. Appropriate channels have been
set up to receive customer feedback for continuous improvement.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group is supported by a motivated workforce of approximately 8,120
people worldwide. The Group strives to provide its employees with a safe and
healthy workplace and offer them fair and competitive remuneration packages.
Remuneration policies and packages are reviewed regularly to ensure that
compensation and benefits are in line with the market of each territory.

The Group invests in employees through development programs to enhance their
soft and hard skills as well as work competence in preparation for their career
development. Employees participated in various workshops and training sessions on
laws and regulations, management and leadership skills, as well as language and
communication during the year.

The Group is committed to compliance with applicable anti-corruption laws and
regulations. It prohibits its employees from offering, making or receiving any bribes
or kickbacks for the purpose of securing an improper business advantage, or
otherwise engaging in corrupt activities or practices.

The Group has established a whistle-blowing policy that allows anyone to report
misconduct or malpractice without fear of reprisal through a confidential channel.

COMMUNITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group nurtures a caring culture among
employees in the workplace and reciprocates to the community through
participation in various community events during the year. The Group has joined the
Community Chest’s Corporate and Employee Contribution Program for decades.
It is also an active supporter of many community events throughout the year. In
recognition of its continuous commitment in good corporate citizenship, the Group
has been awarded the Caring Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for 18 consecutive years.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associates are investment holding and development,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of batteries, electronics and acoustics
products, and automotive wire harness, which are set out in notes 44 and 45 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively. Further discussion and analysis
of these activities, including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
the Group is facing and an indication of likely future developments of the Group’s
business, can be found in the Review of Operations set out on pages 16 to 20 of this
annual report. This discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page
46 and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. An
interim dividend of 2.0 HK cents (2019: 1.7 HK cents) per share was paid to the
shareholders during the year. To preserve the Company’s financial resources, the
board of directors does not propose a final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019: 2.5 HK cents per share). On the basis of 2.0 HK cents (2019: 4.2 HK
cents) per share, being the interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020, total
dividends for the year ended 31 March 2020 amount to HK$15,694,000 (2019:
HK$32,957,000).

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past
ten financial years is set out on pages 10 and 11.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$542,381,000 to expand its business. Details of movements in
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 March
2020 are represented by the retained profits and the dividend reserve totalling
HK$4,833,000 (2019: HK$22,846,000).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
HK$224,000 (2019: HK$310,500).
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman & Chief Executive)

Richard KU Yuk Hing

Brian LI Yiu Cheung

Michael LAM Hin Lap (appointed with effect from 1 April 2019)
Brian WONG Tze Hang (appointed with effect from 1 April 2019)

Non-Executive Directors:
LEUNG Pak Chuen (Non-Executive Vice Chairman)
Karen NG Ka Fai

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

LUI Ming Wah

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

Timothy TONG Wai Cheung (appointed with effect from 1 April 2019)

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Messrs.
Richard KU Yuk Hing, Brian LI Yiu Cheung, LUl Ming Wah and Ms. Karen NG Ka
Fai are due to retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors have been
appointed for a specific term of 3 years subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that every Director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto, and no Director
or other officer shall be liable for any loss or damages which may happen to or be
incurred by the Company in the execution of the duties of his office or in relation
thereto. The Company had arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and other officers of the Group for the year
under review.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") ) which were required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange"”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to
Appendix 10 “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
contained in the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:

(a) Interests in shares of the Company (long positions)
As at 31 March 2020, the interests of the directors and the chief executive in
the ordinary shares of the Company were as follows:

BHEEERGHE
Number of -
ordinary shares ARECHT
held BizzESL
Percentage of
EPN issued share
Personal capital of
E=E Name of director interests the Company
%
ZEfEE Victor LO Chung Wing 194,788,054 24.82
ERE Richard KU Yuk Hing 2,629,684 0.34
By Brian LI Yiu Cheung 300,000 0.04
0%V kv Michael LAM Hin Lap - _
=¥IE Brian WONG Tze Hang - -
Raz LEUNG Pak Chuen 4,575,114 0.58
=R LUI Ming Wah _ _
BRASRE Frank CHAN Chi Chung - -
PRELER CHAN Kei Biu _ -
EEE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung - -
RRE Karen NG Ka Fai 40,646,524 5.18
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

(b) Interests in shares of the Company’s associated corporations (long
positions)
As at 31 March 2020, the direct beneficial interests of the directors and the
chief executive in the shares of GP Industries Limited (“GP Ind”), an 85.5%
owned subsidiary of the Company, were as follows:

FETERMBERAECHT
BiRZERL
Number of ordinary shares
and percentage of their
issued share capital held

GPT %
B=E Name of director GP Ind
£ =]

Number %
ZEfPEE Victor LO Chung Wing 300,000 0.06
=R Richard KU Yuk Hing 340,000 0.07
e Brian LI Yiu Cheung 1,465,000 0.30
WREEIZ Michael LAM Hin Lap - _
=FIE Brian WONG Tze Hang - -
2Rz LEUNG Pak Chuen 1,608,000 0.33
= hRZE LUl Ming Wah . _
pRAAER Frank CHAN Chi Chung - -
PR EL G CHAN Kei Biu - _
BEE Timothy TONG Wai Cheung - -
S8 Karen NG Ka Fai 94,603 0.02
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the directors, the chief
executive or their associates had any interest in the securities of the Company or any
of its associated corporations as defined in SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the directors, chief executive, their spouses or children under the age of 18
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors or the chief
executive of the Company or their respective associates to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Directors are in the opinion that due to the excessive number of subsidiaries
and their directors, disclosure of the names of all subsidiaries and their directors
in this Directors’ Report would be made by way of reference to the information
on the names of subsidiaries and their directors under “Investor Relations” at
www.goldpeak.com.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2020, the following persons (not being a director or chief executive
of the Company) had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under section 336
of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company:

FABERITIREF
FA=}:4:4
Percentage of

HeETERHE issued share
BRER B3 Number of capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares held the Company
wmEB @A 81,888,764 (Note 1) 10.44%
TO May Mee Beneficial owner (fFEET)
REE A 40,646,524 (Note 1) 5.18%
Jessica NG Sheen Fai Beneficial owner EAD)
Ring Lotus Investment Limited SEHIAT RS 60,288,143 (Note 2) 7.68%
(“Ring Lotus”) Interests of controlled corporation (f¥EE2)
HSBC International Trustee Limited ZEEA 60,288,143 (Note 2) 7.68%
("HSBC Trustee”) Trustee (FfsE2)

FysE

1. BREBXLIRKBELIDRARABDZFIMTERR
FIE L 57 IR

2. REMELZEFEERKERING LotusFIHSBC Trustee s B
{EHAYEA - HSBC Trustee UIRA 2 A S DR IE
fE & %75 60,288,143 A0 2 A » 45 LR 43 A HSBC
Trusteez 2 EHEA/AFRING Lotus IZIEH /AT RS
RFTEES -

BRULEFTIESN  RZFZFHF=A=+—H 44
AEENBHREREBEMNAL (ERAQATZEER
AR R REES M ERME+RREAN
FARZ AN R RN EAREERAD 2 KR SE
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Notes:

1. Madam TO May Mee and Ms. Jessica NG Sheen Fai are the mother and sister, respectively,
of Ms. Karen NG Ka Fai, a non-executive director of the Company.

2. According to the two corporate substantial shareholder notices filed by Ring Lotus and
HSBC Trustee respectively, HSBC Trustee was deemed to be interested in 60,288,143
shares in its capacity as the trustee of these shares, which were in turn owned by Ring
Lotus, a company wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee, as interests of controlled corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the directors and the chief executive
of the Company are not aware of any person (other than a director or chief
executive of the Company) who had any interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of any class of the issued share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or other
similar rights as at 31 March 2020 and there had been no exercise of convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a stable dividend payment to its shareholders whilst retaining
adequate reserves to sustain the Group’s future growth. The Board of Directors of
the Company determines the interim dividend and recommends the final dividend
which requires the approval of shareholders of the Company. Any payment of
the dividend by the Company is subject to any restrictions under the Companies
Ordinance and the Company’s Articles of Association. In deciding whether to
declare any dividend, the Board will take into account a number of factors,
including the financial results, the distributable reserves, the operations and liquidity
requirements, and the current and future development plans of the Company. The
Board will review the dividend policy of the Company as appropriate from time to
time.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

A brief discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance during
the year under review is set out on page 33 of this annual report which forms part
of the Directors’ Report. The 2019-2020 Environmental, Social and Governance
Report will be published separately at the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group has complied with the applicable laws and regulations.
MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for 7.55% and 23.79% (2019: 8.33% and 26.04%)
respectively of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and five largest
suppliers accounted for 1.44% and 5.31% (2019: 1.82% and 6.86%) respectively
of the Group's total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their close associates, or any shareholder (which to the

knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has
any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, there
is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE, AUDIT COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the Company’s audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant event occurring after the reporting period are set out in note 46
to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company to re-

appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Victor LO Chung Wing

Chairman & Chief Executive
30 June 2020
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TO THE MEMBERS OF GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Gold Peak Industries
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as “the Group”) set out on pages 46 to 155, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Impairment assessment of trade receivables
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We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables as a key
audit matter due to the significance of trade receivables to the
Group's consolidated financial position and the involvement of
subjective judgement and management estimates in evaluating the
expected credit losses (“ECL") of the Group’s trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s net trade receivables amounting
to approximately HK$811 million, which represented approximately
11.2% of total assets of the Group.

As disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, the
management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL
of trade receivables based on provision matrix through grouping
of various debtors that have similar loss patterns, after considering
internal credit ratings of trade debtors, ageing, repayment history
and/or past due status of respective trade receivables. Estimated loss
rates are based on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information.
In addition, trade receivables that are credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually. The loss allowance amount of the trade receivables
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows with the
consideration of expected future credit losses.

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables included:

e Understanding key controls on how the management estimates
the loss allowance for trade receivables;

e Testing the integrity of information used by management to
develop the provision matrix, including trade receivables ageing
analysis as at 31 March 2020, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with the relevant sales agreements,
sales invoices and other supporting documents;

e Challenging management’s basis and judgement in determining
credit loss allowance on trade receivables as at 31 March 2020,
including their identification of credit impaired trade receivables,
the reasonableness of management’s grouping of the remaining
trade debtors into different categories in the provision matrix,
and the basis of estimated loss rates applied in each category in
the provision matrix (with reference to historical default rates and
forward-looking information); and
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Impairment assessment of trade receivables (continued)
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As disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group recognised a net amount of HK$6,720,000 of impairment
of trade receivables in the profit or loss for the current year and
the Group’s lifetime ECL on trade receivables as at 31 March 2020
amounted to approximately HK$25.7 million.
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Allowance for inventories
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We identified the allowance for inventories as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the balance to the consolidated statement of
financial position and significant judgement involved by management
in the assessment process. As set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has inventories of approximately
HK$914.2 million as at 31 March 2020 and recognised an allowance
for inventories of approximately HK$2 million during the year.

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, there
are significant judgement and estimates involved in assessing the level
of inventory allowance required in respect of slow moving inventories
and the net realisable values of inventories at the end of the reporting
period with reference to the current market demand and future
sales plan, aging analysis and the estimated selling prices, less the
estimated cost of completion.
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e Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment assessment
of trade receivables in notes 22 and 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to allowance for inventories included:

e Understanding management’s process over the assessment of
allowance for inventories, including identification of slow-moving
inventories and determination of the net realisable value;

e Assessing the net realisable values of inventories and evaluating
the appropriateness of the level of inventory allowance required
in respect of slow moving stock, by considering the current
market demand and future sales plan, ageing analysis and the
estimated selling prices, less the estimated cost of completion;
and

e Testing the integrity of the inventory ageing prepared by

management, on a sample basis, to the corresponding goods
receipt documents or production reports.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report
is Tsang, Chi Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FEIRER

Year ended 31 March 2020 BE_F _FHF=A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
R Fi&n FHBIT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
=f 0] Revenue 5 6,051,511 6,767,673
SHERA Cost of sales (4,459,427) (5,076,448)
EF Gross profit 1,592,084 1,691,225
AW B E At a5 Other income and other gains 384,779 253,343
HERDHEETH Selling and distribution expenses (770,799) (797,928)
TEEH Administrative expenses (749,516) (800,580)
Hith H R EMEE Other expenses and other losses 6 (191,411) (36,449)
SRR Finance costs 7 (180,821) (180,086)
PR NI ES Share of results of associates 133,435 135,523
Bg#taEuEF Profit before taxation 8 217,751 265,048
RIF Taxation 10 (126,454) (81,006)
ZEFHF Profit for the year 91,297 184,042

2ERNEER Profit for the year attributable to:
KARHEBA Owners of the Company 20,902 61,437
JEIE R Non-controlling interests 70,395 122,605
91,297 184,042

sREF Earnings per share

B (&) Basic 12 2.7 HK cents 7.8 HK cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FeRnREMEEWRER

Year ended 31 March 2020

BE_R_FF=A=+—HLFE

2020 2019
FERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
gyl Profit for the year 91,297 184,042
Hit2m (SZH) 4 - Other comprehensive (expense) income:
BELZ AJREERT I E R 15 Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
HE - loss:
REBINEBEEZ Exchange differences arising from translation of foreign
PE=RR operations (90,222) (128,356)
HHNE AR FESL &R Net translation deficit reclassified to profit or loss upon
B ERERS deregistration of subsidiaries 31,817 -
RSP AT EZEEE) Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges (2,078) (2,065)
P& ARz B2 E Share of other comprehensive expense of associates (59,580) (58,034)
(120,063) (188,455)
PERT BB AT 1E 0 Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to
HE - profit or loss:
DUAFEFT AR M2 G®RZ Fair value loss on equity instruments at fair value
AT R AFEEE through other comprehensive income (18,962) (39,018)
2EHMPESH Other comprehensive expense for the year (139,025) (227,473)
PEXEXHER Total comprehensive expense for the year (47,728) (43,431)
2 (ZH) WanABEEER BN - Total comprehensive (expense) income attributable to:
FN/NEIEZ Z=DN Owners of the Company (77,115) (109,764)
JEIE R Non-controlling interests 29,387 66,333
(47,728) (43,4317)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEMRBERAR

Asat31 March2020 M_F_FTHF=A=+—HILFE

31.3.2020 31.3.2019
R Fi&n FHBIT
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
FEiRENEE Non-current assets
M~ BB R Property, plant and equipment 13 1,833,304 1,594,734
FREEE Right-of-use assets 14 177,177 -
BTGB AR R Interests in associates 15 1,501,587 1,484,262
DA EF AR 2Rz Equity instruments at fair value through
JiZ /N =Y other comprehensive income 16 58,413 77,376
| EE Intangible assets 17 1,247 1,324
S Goodwill 18 79,066 79,066
IERBEWERIE Non-current receivables 20 83,392 -
IEmENRE Non-current deposits 22 26,086 12,980
EERIEEE Deferred tax assets 31 20,867 22,488
3,781,139 3,272,230
MENE E Current assets
reasy Inventories 21 914,157 1,056,122
FEW E TR R EL A W AR TE Trade and other receivables and
LRIBNFRIA prepayments 22 1,205,873 1,288,376
FEMRE = Dividend receivable 26,723 27,364
AW EIRIE Taxation recoverable 25,001 21,861
eI A Derivative financial instruments 23 - 87
RITHTE ~ T MRS Bank balances, deposits and cash 24 1,250,672 1,448,715
3,422,426 3,842,525
DERFHEESE Assets classified as held for sale 25 43,385 196,493
3,465,811 4,039,018
mENBE Current liabilities
FENRIBERER Creditors and accrued charges 26 1,303,249 1,567,864
BREaE Contract liabilities 26 43,573 15,835
FEATREIR Taxation payable 34,857 41,785
mESRIT A Derivative financial instruments 23 6,554 80
HeaE Lease liabilities 27 61,803 -
MBHEEEE - Obligations under finance leases —
—FREE amount due within one year 28 - 1,266
IRITEN ~ MEGEREMETR Bank loans, import and other loans 29 3,094,526 2,257,104
4,544,562 3,883,934
mE(BE)BERE Net current (liabilities) assets (1,078,751) 155,084
BEERERSEE Total assets less current liabilities 2,702,388 3,427,314
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (conTD)
SeUuERRETR @

Asat31 March2020 M-F_FHF=HF=+—HILFE

31.3.2020 31.3.2019
N5 Fi&rx FHET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
JERBAE Non-current liabilities
mEsBmTAR Derivative financial instruments 23 - 2,065
HEas Lease liabilities 27 94,568 -
MBHEEE - Obligations under finance leases —

—FRER amount due after one year 28 - 3,269
SR1T R ELMEK Bank and other loans 30 351,203 1,167,627
EERIASE Deferred tax liabilities 31 41,062 24,098
BEARRE Provision for restructuring 32 99,810 -

586,643 1,197,059
BERE Net assets 2,115,745 2,230,255
= =451 Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 33 921,014 921,014
&t Reserves 379,884 491,476
KNEVEB ANELZ Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 1,300,898 1,412,490
PlEadicg Non-controlling interests 814,847 817,765
IS EEE Total equity 2,115,745 2,230,255
BAEESISSEH R AN BRI BN "S "  The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 155 were approved and
FEANA=THHEERES YA TESMRERE  authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2020 and are signed on its
% behalf by:
s R Victor LO Chung Wing Brian LI Yiu Cheung
E E Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEERBER

Year ended 31 March 2020 BE_F_FEF=A=+—HILFE

FRNAATERA
Attributable to owners of the Company
S BE Fik
BitER i &
A ERES  popry  AERE  RARE  hemet  REEE  HEEE  REH Non- SR
Share legal  revluation  Translation Captal revaluation ~ Dividend ~ Hedging  Retained 5T controling Total
capital surplus Teserve Teserve reserve reserve Teserve Teserve pofits  Subotal  interests equity

T T TEn TR AR TEm TR TER TR TR TR TER
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000

(Hs) (His)
(note) (note)
HZ5-/\EmE-H Balance at 1 April 2018 91,014 13,601 37804 (166679 272958 50,014 9416 - 7419 1545607 832,131 2377738
2 Poftfor heyear - - - - - - - SE 6T IS 1300
BESERELY Exchange differences arsing rom translation of foreign
EXEE operatons - - - B - - - - - BT B8 (12835%)
ReHnATE 32 Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges - - - - - - - (1,767) - (1,767) 9% (069
DIATETAZMRTNRZRATEZ  Fairvalue oss on equiy instruments
AVEES at fairvalue through other comprefensive income - - - - - (3 - - - (389 (5169 (39,018)
BN AR Share of other comprefensive expenses of asociaes - - - (s04m) - - - - - ey (803
22 () B Total comprehensive expenses)income for the year - - - (13558) - (38Y9) - (176 61437 (109764 66333 (43431)
ENGE Transfer of reserves - - - - 4800 - - - 4,800 - - -
BHENATEFAZMATAKZ  Transter of reserve upon disposal of equiy instruments at
RATEREARE fair value through other comprehensive income - - - - - 7 - - 0 - - -
EERANBLAARMER Deemed acquiston of additional nterest in a subsiiary
(a4 {note 441) - - - - 206 - - - - W6 0% (1)
WERBATE L Acquiston of adaitional interest n a subsidary
(Fetadtl) {note 441) - - - - - - - - (803) % 541)
RTRBATERRRRS Dividend paid to non-controling shareholders of
subsidlaries - - - - - - - - - - (191200 (79120
BIRERS (k1) Dividend paid (note 11)
-TB-\ERRE - 2018 dhicend - - - - - ] - - g - g
-TE-NERERE 009t diidnd - - - - - - - S mM (330 SNEE)
B2Rs (Kan) Dividend proposed (note 11)
B S5 ~2019nal didend - - - - - S0 - (1961 . . .
- - - - 4203 7 10,201 - (7764 (2333 (806%9  (104052)
RI5-NF=A=+-H At 31 March 2019 91,014 13,601 37804 (302264) 277,161 16,112 19617 (1767) 431152 1412490 817,765 2230255
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (contp)

FeEREER @)

Yearended 31 March 2020 BZE_S_FSF=HA=+—HIFE

BERFDEREA
Attributable to owners of the Company
% RE HHER
] ] 331
BE  EERE  Popety HERE  REBE mvestment REEE HAEE REEA Non- RS
Share legal revaluation Translation ~ Capital revaluation  Dividend  Hedging  Retained I\t controlling Total
apital  surplus reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profits  Sub-total  interests equity
Fén FEn FEn TEn 0 TEm  TER  TEn TEn TEn  FEn  TEn  TEx
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
(Ht3t) (Ht3E)
(note) (note)
RZE-NEME-H At 1 April 2019 921,014 13,601 37804 (302264) 277,161 16,1712 19617 (1767) 431152 1412490 817,765 2,230,255
REMERAE (M) Adjustments due to applying new standards (see note 2) - - - - - - - - (B81) (13811 (1861) (15672
RZE-NEMA-A(E5) Balance at 1 April 2019 (Restated) 921,014 13,601 37804 (302264 277,161 16,172 19617 (1767) 417341 1398679 815904 2,214,583
2T Profitfor the year - - - - - - - -9 0802 7035 91297
BERSEELERER Exchange differences arising from translaton of
forelgn operations - - - (3830) - - - - - (58321) (36895  (90.222)
SENEATREELEEERAEE  Netranslation defict reclssfied to profit or loss
b=t upon deregistration of subsidiaries - - - 2219 - - - - - 2729 4,598 31817
BeNHnATE TR Net change n fair value of cash flow hecdges - - - - - - - am - (00) (2078
DATEAZMATREZRATES  Fairvalue loss on equity instruments at fair vaue
ATESE through other comprehensive income - - - (3590) - (14267) - - - (1857 (1105 (18,962)
FEBEAT AT Share of other comprehensive expense of associates - - - (52309 - - - - I (G204 (1300 (59580)
SR (L) UE8E Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year - - - (82,000) - (14260) - (1778) 20937 (15 29387 (41728)
E\GE Transfer of reserves - - - - WM - - - (2048 - - -
BEEAVMERBATEMER  Acguistion of additionaliterests in a subsidary through
(Bistado)) capitalisaion (note 44(5) - - - - (a.407) - - - - (4.407) 4407 -
SENEAR (Hiab) Deregstration of subsidiaies (note 44(b) - - - - (1369) - - - 41 19052 (25703 (6,651
—FERBATELRRENLESE  Capial contrbution from non-controling shareholders of
(Hisx4n)) a subsidary (note 44) B} B _ 3 B _ ) B _ IR
BEE 2 el Dividend paid to non-controling sharefolders of
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - (36,292 (3629
EIRERE (k1) Dividend paid (note 11)
-ZR-NERERE - 2019 final dividend - - - - - - (19617) - - (19617) - (19617)
-5 3EhERE - 2020 interim dividend - - - - - - - - (15,694)  (15,694) - (15,694)
- - - - 8,665 - (19617) - 9714 (06660  (30444)  (51,110)
RB_FE=R=1-F At31 March 2020 921,014 13,601 37804 (384271) 285826 1,905 - (3545) 428564 1300898 814847 2115745

MiEE © EXFREEREMMAREHRBER T ! Note:
E—FEIME AR BB AR R SR i SRR AR B e BT
HWEIREZ AT EBZ 25 R R E ARFME
(TFREL) AR RMEARZHERNMORR - 2%
BERMOBSAETIE BT RIEERBREETET
B °

FEBEMEEASEMENPRRTMBARZE
TER R E o

Capital reserve mainly represents the difference between the amount of non-controlling
interest adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid/received on partial
acquisition/disposal of a subsidiary without losing control and the capitalisation of
profits of subsidiaries and associates established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") that were available for appropriation after the approval from the relevant PRC

authorities.

Legal surplus comprises the Group’s share of statutory reserves of the subsidiaries
established in the PRC.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER

Year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE

FCEF=R=1T—HLFE

2020 2019
Figrx FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
LR Operating activities
FRELRDERF) Profit before taxation 217,751 265,048
HHE Adjustments for:
FTEBtE A RZEE Share of results of associates (133,435) (135,523)
FEWA Interest income (18,826) (11,706)
SRAT REAMER RIS Interest on bank and other loans 174,383 179,949
HESENE Interest on lease liabilities 6,438 -
MBEHEERER R Interest on obligations under finance
leases - 137
TR ER R EM AR Impairment loss recognised on trade and
BEEE other receivables 6,720 611
RS AR 2 BEEE Impairment loss recognised on
an associate 598 -
M ~ BB MR TERR Impairment loss recognised on property,
ZIBERE plant and equipment - 6,689
FERE Allowance for inventories 2,016 7,352
MR B Amortisation of intangible assets 77 77
M~ BEIAREZITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 154,856 161,421
FREEECITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 70,279 -
BA—BEBE AT ZITH Discount on acquisition of an associate (148) -
HEMZE ~ BB IERIE R KR Gain on disposal of property, plant and
FHEEE WS equipment and assets classified as
held for sale (277,799) (3,319)
fEE R ESRNEE AT Gain on deemed partial disposal of an
pdl i associate (9,285) -
B AR ERZER Net translation deficit recognised upon
gt deregistration of subsidiaries 31,817 -
B Provision for restructuring 99,810 -
TESRIECEER Realised loss (gain) on derivative
B (Was) financial instruments 27,160 (2,557)
TESBMIAECATE Unrealised fair value loss (gain) on
REIFEE (W) derivative financial instruments 2,598 7)
REIFIME R IR B )2 Effect of unrealised foreign exchange rate
o changes (41,191) (15,965)
— RN E AT ZER B SR Gain arising from compensation for
B BB damages and relocation of property of
a subsidiary - (145,931)
AR BESE Impairment loss recognised on goodwill - 23,000
PDUAFEFT AR 2K Dividend income from equity instruments
AT E & i BIA at fair value through other
comprehensive income - (265)
FTEEEESEBRICEE Operating cash flows before movements in
HenE working capital 313,819 329,011
FE 2B Decrease in inventories 136,973 22,614
FEWE TR I E At FEUS AR 1B K% Decrease (increase) in trade and other
TENFRIRZ R (35 0) receivables and prepayments 58,762 (48,732)
ENRBRER R Decrease in creditors and accrued charges (41,505) (159,745)
ERaEzEmOR) Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities 27,738 (19,536)
REEBEEZRS Cash generated from operations 495,787 123,612
ENEBLIIN Rt ERIE Taxation paid in other jurisdictions (118,528) (67,429)
ENEBREH Taxation paid in Hong Kong (10,466) (8,842)
EWE BRI E A R IR R Taxation refunded in other jurisdictions 10,149 21,379
REEREE RS TR Net cash from operating activities 376,942 68,720
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2020 2019
Fi&rx FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
WEER Investing activities
HEWZE - BEREERE Proceeds and deposits received from
TERE® disposal of property, plant and equipment 109,025 237,184
BEWEENATZKE Dividends received from associates 77,692 82,035
ERTERBAT KR Loan to a shareholder of a subsidiary (36,985) -
BABE AT 2 RIMER Acquisition of additional interests in
associates (17,084) -
BEUFE Interest received 14,157 11,657
WAV ~ BB REE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (527,599) (286,007)
IREVE R Uplift of time deposits - 116,727
EEREEMEER Redemption of structured deposits - 24,942
A ~ BB KRBT Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
ZEl® plant and equipment (44,596) (2,155)
EMLIAFEFT AR MEE Dividends received from equity instruments
s A T Az B at fair value through other comprehensive
income - 265
BN —RENBATMNYZERIESE  Compensation income for damages and
IS8 v relocation of property of a subsidiary - 128,964
WE¥XRE (ER) BEE 2RSS F8E Net cash (used in) from investing activities (425,390) 313,612
RbE Financing activities
HIRITER New borrowings raised 1,010,649 1,646,114
—REINEBATIEERIENHEELRE  Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary 27,144 -
ERE—EEIHENBARRAT Repayment of capital to the non-controlling
FEIEAG AR ER shareholders of a deregistered subsidiary (6,651) -
EIRIRIT R EMETR Repayment of bank and other loans (868,294) (1,210,076)
EMRITREMERCF S Interest on bank and other loans paid (163,898) (182,573)
HEAEMNE Interest on lease liabilities (6,438) -
BEEEaE Repayment of lease liabilities (62,572) -
ENWEARISFERERER Dividends paid to non-controlling
Z S shareholders of subsidiaries (36,292) (79,120)
EARE Dividends paid (34,471) (22,756)
BB Redemption of notes - (118,768)
BANRBATEIIMER Acquisition of additional interests in
subsidiaries - (541)
EEVBEHEREECAS Principal payments for obligations under
finance leases - (1,666)
ENVBHEESEZAE Interest on obligations under finance leases
paid - (137)
EEWE—ENEARN Deemed acquisition of additional interests
¥EoMER in a subsidiary - (1,635)
RUEFT () EECRESFE Net cash (used in) from financing activities (140,823) 28,842
REREEAS OB) B0 Net (decrease) increase in cash and
A cash equivalents (189,271) 411,174
FzReREFERE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 1,448,715 1,059,224
AN T IR B o 2 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (8,772) (21,683)
FERCHAEREFERS Cash and cash equivalents at end
RITHR ~ TR of the year, bank balances, deposits and
cash 1,250,672 1,448,715
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEREME

Year ended 31 March 2020 BE _FE_ZFF=—F=+—HIFE

1.

wE
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Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

1.

GENERAL

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 44 and 45, respectively.

Due to the adverse impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on the Group’s revenue
for the last quarter of the financial year 2019/20 and consequentially its results
of operations, the Group could not comply with certain financial covenants
(computed based on the Group’s borrowings and earnings) committed under
certain loan and banking facility agreements (the “Affected Loans”) for the test
period ended 31 March 2020. The Group has requested for the consents from
lenders of the Affected Loans to waive such non-compliance (the “Consents”).

As the Consents were not in place as at 31 March 2020, the short-term portion
of the Affected Loans amounted to HK$426 million which was originally
scheduled to be repaid within twelve months from end of the reporting
period, and the long-term portion of the Affected Loans amounted to HK$709
million which was originally scheduled to be repaid after 31 March 2021, were
presented under bank loans, import and other loans repayable within one year
and repayable on demand as disclosed in note 29.

Subsequent to 31 March 2020 and up to the date of approval for issuance of
these consolidated financial statements, the Group has repaid HK$36 million of
the Affected Loans and received Consents in respect of HK$1,072 million of the
Affected Loans. The Consents in respect of the remaining HK$27 million of the
Affected Loans are expected to be received soon. The directors of the Company
believe that adequate alternative sources of finance are available to ensure that
there is no threat to the continuing operations of the Group.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in
light of the fact that, as a result of the reclassification of the long-term portion
of the Affected Loans of HK$709 million from long-term to current liabilities,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$1,079 million as at 31 March 2020. The Group's current liabilities as at 31
March 2020 included bank loans, import and other loans of approximately
HK$3,095 million that are repayable within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Taking into account of the internally generated funds, waiver
of banks for Affected Loans and the available banking facilities, the directors of
the Company are confident that the Group will be able to meet their financial
obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable future and be able to operate
on a going concern basis.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) has
applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in
the current year.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017

Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current year. HKFRS 16
superseded HKAS 17 “Leases” (“HKAS 17"”), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as containing a lease.
Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which already existed prior to
the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 April 2019, the Group
applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the requirements set out in
HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the cumulative effect
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 April 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
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REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

As at 1 April 2019, the Group recognised additional lease liabilities and
measured right-of-use assets at the carrying amounts as if HKFRS 16 had been
applied since commencement dates, but discounted using the incremental
borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at the date of initial application
by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(i) transition. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under HKFRS 16 at
transition, the Group applied the practical expedient to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the
extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

(i) relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous by applying HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as an alternate
of impairment review;

(i) excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial applications.

On transition, the Group has made the following adjustments upon application
of HKFRS 16:

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously classified as operating
leases, the Group has applied incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group
entities at the date of initial application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rates applied by the relevant group entities ranged from 4.00% to
7.00%.

201948180
At 1 April 2019
FHBTT
HK$'000
—NE=ZB=1+—HEENLCEHERIE Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 March 2019 133,031
Tzzi“Efa FHEHRENHESE Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental
borrowing rates 125,292
B HERHBR - RPAE Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases (6,913)
R R - BEEEE Recognition exemption — low value assets
(FMEREREEEEZCHEE) (excluding short-term leases of low value leases) (353)
RERAEBYBREERF16FERAERCEREN Lease liabilities relating to operating leases recognised upon
HE&E application of HKFRS 16 118,026
e RIF—NEF=A=1T—HBRRANYBHEEENWEE  Add: Obligation under finance leases recognised
at 31 March 2019 4,535
RIF—NEFNF—HMHEEEE Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 122,561
Ay Analysed as
ED Current 53,313
FETRED Non-current 69,248
122,561

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at 1 April 2019
comprises the following:

EREEE
Right-of-use assets
FiEE FHATT
Notes HK$'000
RIEREBIMISHEERE165RMEATELE Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases recognised
HENERREEE upon application of HKFRS 16 107,227
REEBLIERIE 1798 AYE  BENARE  Amounts incuded in property, plant and equipment
x| under HKAS 17
- BARTEHRER T ERE — Assets previously under finance leases @) 5,650
RIZ—NENE—BYHERSFEHATEZE  Adjustments on rental deposits at 1 April 2019 (b) 678
113,555
R By class:
THREE Land and buildings 104,045
W Rkt Machinery and equipment 3,930
B Motor vehicles 5,272
WAERE Office equipment 308
113,555

() MEARENRVBHENESEMS @ 2&F#H
BEF-NENE—HINEHEMNERE
B2 BRTEES,650,00058 TT BT M A A RE
BE - b AEER _F—AFNB—H
2B B #5FHE 1,266,000 7081 3,269,000
EBTNEEENABEAREESE  FRARE
BEBERIERBAE -

(b) FABBMBMEEAE 16957 - AEEK
REBETERNEI7RERCZMN AR
EIREZSMENKEE - WAREAMER
B RBEEFEBMBRELRE 165 THER
M2 EE  2FReNIFRERREEERE
AEBENRIER  ERlBERZITREEEER
AE - Al AEBEFAROBEERSRE
FREEEARIETAEE678,0008 T TR E -

(@) In relation to assets previously under finance leases, the Group
recategorised the carrying amounts of the relevant assets which were still
under lease as at 1 April 2019 amounting to HK$5,650,000 as right-of-
use assets. In addition, the Group reclassified the obligations under finance
leases of HK$1,266,000 and HK$3,269,000 to lease liabilities as current
and non-current liabilities respectively at 1 April 2019.

(b) Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group considered refundable rental
deposits paid as rights and obligations under leases to which HKAS 17
applied under other receivables. Based on the definition of lease payments
under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to
use of the underlying assets and were adjusted to reflect the discounting
effect at transition. Accordingly, the discounting effect of HK$678,000 was
adjusted to refundable rental deposits paid and right-of-use assets.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16, the Group is not
required to make any adjustment on transition for leases in which the Group is
a lessor but account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date
of initial application and comparative information has not been restated.

(c) Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts entered into but
commence after the date of initial application relating to the same
underlying assets under existing lease contracts are accounted as if the
existing leases are modified as at 1 April 2019. The application has had no
impact on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position at 1
April 2019. However, effective from 1 April 2019, lease payments relating
to the revised lease term after modification are recognised as income on
straight-line basis over the extended lease term.

(d) Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental deposits received were
considered as obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied under
trade and other payables. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right-of-use
assets and were adjusted to reflect the discounting effect at transition. The
discounting effect has no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current year.

Sales and leaseback transactions

(e) The Group acts as a seller-lessee
In accordance with the transition provisions of HKFRS 16, sale and
leaseback transactions entered into before the date of initial application
were not reassessed. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group applies
the requirements of HKFRS 15 to assess whether sales and leaseback
transaction constitutes a sale.

Interests in associates

(f) The net effects arising from the initial application of HKFRS 16 resulted in a
decrease in the carrying amounts of interests in associates of HK$4,873,000
with corresponding adjustments to retained profits.



2. ERHFIBIEFTEBUTFHSED ("EEHTFEHR 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

HHERL) @) REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
RAEFEEFERNHFHLETTERHERS New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
28 ) current year (continued)
BB FEiREERE 165 THHE, (=) HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)
TRIRUESEET BV BREENE16HH S The following table summaries the impact of transition to HKFRS 16 on retained
—NENA—HBRABEABEEBE - profits at 1 April 2019.
720194
4R81H
RSB BRE
HRIE 165N E
Impact of adopting
HKFRS 16 at
1 April 2019
FHT
HK$'000
REB T Retained profits
BHEMR A EEREREBMEREERE 1657 Depreciation of right-of-use assets from commencement dates to the
AEEEREEEZITE initial application date of HKFRS 16 115,036
BHEMRAEERERT S BREERE165E Interest on lease liabilities from commencement dates to the initial
REEAEaE R application date of HKFRS 16 23,129
EHERRAEERERAEBYBREERE165 Interest income from rental deposits paid from commencement dates to
AERAEN GRS 2R BIA the initial application date of HKFRS 16 (368)
EREREBWHEREERNE 1650 Adjustment on share of results of associates affected by the initial
TR YN - kS application of HKFRS 16 4,168
B R IF-NFNA—HE REEBEHER Less: Lease expenses of operating leases under HKAS 17 before
FNVTFNEERECHESR 1 April 2019 (128,154)
RIZ—NFRA—HMEE Impact at 1 April 2019 13,811
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2. ERHEEIETEEMBREER ("HEHER

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

HHERL) @)

REEEEHE NN NEETEEHHERS
#R ()

BB REERIFE 165 TTHE, (%)
RIF—NFUB —HESREWERETARER
MSBE/EHUT AR - AR@EHHEIEHIT
REFEER °

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 1 April 2019. Line items that
were not affected by the changes have not been included.

EHIR20195 #2019F4R101RE
38318 BB HEEN
EHMIREE R E16RHERE (E
Carrying amounts Carrying amounts
previously reported under HKFRS 16
at 31 March 2019 Adjustments at 1 April 2019
FHT T THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current Assets
VERTISE Property, plant and equipment 1,594,734 (5,650) 1,589,084
FEREEE Right-of-use assets - 113,555 113,555
FrGBE A RIS Interests in associates 1,484,262 (4,873) 1,479,389
mMENEE Current Assets
fEER R EMEUERIER Trade and other receivables and
TANTE prepayments 1,288,376 (678) 1,287,698
mEaE Current Liabilities
HEaR Lease liabilities - 53,313 53,313
MBHEEH Obligations under finance leases
- —FREER — amount due with one year 1,266 (1,266) -
FRBaR Non-current Liabilities
HEEE Lease liabilities - 69,248 69,248
WBEEER Obligations under finance leases
- —FHER — amount due after one year 3,269 (3,269) -
BRE Rl Capital and Reserves
fRER A Retained profits 431,152 (13,811) 417,341
ElEu g Non-controlling interests 817,765 (1,861) 815,904

Mgt : BERETFRFHE-RA=t+—HILFERRE
ARBELLEFHNRSAREMNS @ BEES
B HIRE EXATEN S —FME—
HEF BIRREFTE -

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

Note:  For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities under indirect
method for the year ended 31 March 2020, movements in working capital have
been computed based on opening consolidated statement of financial position as
at 1 April 2019 as disclosed above.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New or revised standards that have been issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions®
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material*

HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use®
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract®
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020°

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential
amendments, the Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2020.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by including
additional guidance and explanations in making materiality judgments. In

particular, the amendments:

¢ include the concept of “obscuring” material information in which the effect
is similar to omitting or misstating the information;

replace threshold for materiality influencing users from “could influence” to
“could reasonably be expected to influence”; and

e include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than simply referring to
“users” which was considered too broad when deciding what information
to disclose in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs and will be
mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 April 2020.
The application of the amendments is not expected to have significant impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group but may affect the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the “New
Framework”) and the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

e reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

e introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and a new liability
definition that is likely to be broader than the definition it replaces, but does
not change the distinction between a liability and an equity instrument;

e discusses historical cost and current value measures, and provides additional
guidance on how to select a measurement basis for a particular asset or
liability;

e states that the primary measure of financial performance is profit or loss,
and that only in exceptional circumstances other comprehensive income will
be used and only for income or expenses that arise from a change in the
current value of an asset or liability; and

e discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the reporting entity
and combined financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that references in certain
HKFRSs have been updated to the New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are
still referred to the previous versions of the framework. These amendments
are effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2020.
Other than specific standards which still refer to the previous versions of the
framework, the Group will rely on the New Framework on its effective date
in determining the accounting policies especially for transactions, events or
conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned above, the
management of the Company anticipates that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for certain properties and financial instruments, that are measured
at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2" Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for accordance with HKFRS
16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are transacted at
fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that an initial recognition the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1,
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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FEZA=+-BILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income (“OCI") are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership interests entitling
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the Group's and the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in OCI in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of
the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with that standard; and

e |ease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases
were new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for which (a)
the lease term ends within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b) the
underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with
market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as
at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established
at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units (“CGUs") (or group of CGUs) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combinations, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwiill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently whenever there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of CGUs).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwiill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the group of CGUs,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs)
retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is
described below.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associates used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and OCI of the associate. Changes in net assets of
the associate other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest
held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest in
an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate and
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the
relevant interest in the associate is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in OCl in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in OCI by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods
or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the distinct good or service.

The revenue of the Group arising from sales of electronics and batteries
products is recognised at a point in time. Under the transfer-of-control
approach in HKFRS 15, revenue from these sales is recognised when customer
acceptance has been obtained, which is the point of time when the goods
are delivered based on the agreed shipping terms and the location specified
by the customers, and when the customer has the ability to direct the use of
these products and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of these
products.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business combinations on
or after the date of initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract
is or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases of
leasehold building, machinery and equipment and others that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, the Group
recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the
date the underlying asset is available for use).

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and
removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures
the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are
recognised as expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion
and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding adjustment
to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

e the lease term has changed, in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates following

a market rent review, in which cases the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continuea)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use
one or more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Group
remeasures the lease liability, less any lease incentive receivables, based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the
modified contract contains a lease component and one or more additional lease
or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 April 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of
the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the Group'’s general policy on borrowing cost.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held under
operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 April 2019) (continuea)

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered as integral part of
lease payments, the aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment properties measured under
fair value model.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under HKFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease
from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease payments for
the new lease.

Sale and leaseback transactions (upon application of HKFRS 16 since 1 April
2019)

The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15 to assess whether sale and
leaseback transaction constitutes a sale by the Group.

The Group as a seller-lessee

For a transfer that satisfies the requirements as a sale, the Group as a seller-
lessee measures the right-of-use asset arising from the leaseback at the
proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset and recognises any gain
or loss that relates to the rights transferred to the buyer-lessor only.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the
asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or
disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell, except for financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 and investment
properties, which continue to be measured in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in respective sections.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or
accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of that asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than asset under construction and freehold land as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost or fair
value less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by HKAS 16
“Property, Plant and Equipment” from the requirement to make regular
revaluations of the Group’s land and buildings which had been carried at
revalued amounts prior to 30 September 1995, and accordingly no further
revaluation of land and buildings is carried out. Prior to 30 September 1995, the
revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of these assets was credited to
the property revaluation reserve. Any future decreases in value of these assets
will be dealt with as an expense to the extent that they exceed the balance, if
any, on the property revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of
the same asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the
corresponding revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Freehold land is not depreciated and is measured at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Asset in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs
include any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “right-of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant
and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets other
than asset under construction and freehold land less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method or reducing balance
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Intangible assets

(a) Intangible assets acquired separately - Trademarks and Technical
know-how
Trademarks are measured initially at purchase cost and are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which are estimated to
be twenty years.

The cost of acquiring rights to technical know-how for the production
of new products is amortised on a straight-line method, over a period of
three to five years from the date of acquisition or over the licence period,
whichever is shorter.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end

of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Intangible assets (continued)
(b) Internally-generated intangible assets — Research and development

(c)

expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development activities
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset
is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible
asset first meets the recognition criteria above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately. The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis
over its estimated useful live, not exceeding ten years, commencing in the
year when the product is put into commercial use.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination — Customer
relationship

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, which is regarded as their cost.

The customer relationship is amortised using straight-line method, over
a period of five years. Subsequent to initial recognition, the customer
relationship is recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant CGU
or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or
the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in
which case the reversal of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase
under that standard.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Restructurings

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has developed a
detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in
those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement
the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The
measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures
arising from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both
necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing
activities of the entity.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except
for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured
at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term;
or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value
with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
OCl and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will
be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in profit
or loss.

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss (“ECL")
model on financial assets (including non-current receivables, trade receivables,
bills receivables, other receivables, dividend receivable, bank deposits, bank
balances and amounts due from associates) and financial guarantee contracts
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on
these assets are assessed individually and/or collectively using a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (continued)

@)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes a
party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition, the Group considers the changes in
the risk that the specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(ii) Definition of default

(iii

(iv

=

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held
by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because
of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment assessment

under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to make payments
only in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the expected losses is the
present value of the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit
loss that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the effective interest rate
cannot be determined, the Group will apply a discount rate that reflects the
current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks that are
specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks are
taken into account by adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the
cash shortfalls being discounted.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped on the basis below:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's non-current
receivables, trade and other receivables, dividend receivables, bank
deposits, bank balances and amounts due from associates are each
assessed as a separate group);

e Past-due status;
e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are recognised at
the higher of the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with HKFRS 9; and the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over the guarantee period.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables,
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has
elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified
to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an equity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including creditors and other payables, bank loans, import
and other loans and bank and other loans are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are measured initially at
their fair values. It is subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9;
and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised over the guarantee period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or
loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting
The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments for cash flow
hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with
its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing
basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable
to the hedged risk.

Assessment of hedging relationship and effectiveness

For hedge effectiveness assessment, the Group considers whether the hedging
instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which is when the hedging
relationships meet all of the following hedge effectiveness requirements:

e there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the
hedging instrument;

e the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result
from that economic relationship; and

e the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting
from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group actually hedges and
the quantity of the hedging instrument that the entity actually uses to
hedge that quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement
relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management objective for that
designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedge
ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the
qualifying criteria again.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting (continued)

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other
qualifying hedging instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in OCI and accumulated under the heading of hedging
reserve, limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from
inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, and is included in the ‘income and
other gains’ line item.

Amounts previously recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity are reclassified
to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in
the same line as the recognised hedged item. Furthermore, if the Group expects
that some or all of the loss accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve will
not be recovered in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before taxation because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable and
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in which the
Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related liabilities, the Group
first determines whether the tax deductions are attributable the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the
lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on
initial recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition exemption. Temporary
differences arising from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in OCl or directly in equity
respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group considers
whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain
tax treatment used, or proposed to be use by individual group entities in
their income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred taxes are
determined consistently with the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is
not probable that the relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rate prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest
in an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 April 2005 are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in OCI.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific bank and other loans pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to the defined contribution retirement plan, including state-managed
retirement benefit scheme and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, are
recognised as expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the
Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and
when it recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and
salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in
note 3, the management of the Company is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-impaired are assessed
for ECL individually. In addition, the Group uses provision matrix to calculate
ECL for the trade receivables which are individually insignificant. The provision
rates are based on internal credit ratings for each grouping of debtors that have
similar credit risk characteristics. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable, and available without undue costs or effort.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about
the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in notes 35 and 22.

Allowances for inventories

Inventory is stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The management
of the Group reviews regularly the suitability of the Group’s allowance policy for
inventories and carries out review of the inventories at the end of each reporting
period. At the end of each reporting period, management carries out the
assessment of determining allowance for inventories by comparing the carrying
amounts of inventories with their net realisable values. The net realisable values
are primarily determined with reference to estimated selling prices, less the
estimated cost to completion, as appropriate. In addition, the management of
the Group identifies slow-moving inventories with reference to aging analysis
and determines the net realisable value for inventories by considering the
saleability of inventories based on current market demand and future sales plan.
When the expectation of the net realisable value is less than the cost, further
allowance may arise.

Allowance for inventories of HK$2,016,000 (2019: Allowance for inventories of
HK$7,352,000) was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2020. As at 31
March 2020, the carrying amount of inventories was HK$914,157,000 (2019:
HK$1,056,122,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGU (or a group of CGUs) and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 March 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill was HK$79,066,000 (2019:
HK$79,066,000). For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recognised
no impairment loss on goodwill (2019: impairment loss on goodwill of
HK$23,000,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
note 19.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of interests in associates

Determining whether interests in associates are impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the associates. Recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Management has evaluated the
recoverable amount of the investments and recognised sufficient impairment
allowance, where necessary. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
recognised impairment loss on investment in an associate of HK$598,000
(2019: Nil).

Provisions

Significant estimates are involved in the determination of provision related to
restructuring cost. Accordingly, management exercises considerable judgment
in determining whether there is a present obligation as a result of a past event
at the reporting date, whether it is more likely than not that such restructuring
will result an outflow of resources and whether the amount of the obligation
can be reliably estimated with reference to the relevant correspondences. The
management estimates the cost for restructuring with regard to the Group’s
experience in addressing such matters. As at 31 March 2020, the Group
recognised restructuring provisions amounting to HK$99,810,000 (2019: Nil)
(see note 32).

Fair value measurements

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The directors have a designated team to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not based on
observable market data to estimate the fair values of investment properties,
equity instruments at FVTOCI and certain types of financial instruments. Notes
16, 25 and 35 provide detail information about the valuation techniques, inputs
and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of various
assets.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Judgement is
involved in determining the group-wide provision for income taxes. There are
certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

During the year, Inland Revenue Department (“IRD") issued a preliminary
profits tax calculation for the years of assessment 2006/07 to 2013/14 (the
“Preliminary Tax Calculation”) based on the information provided by one of
the subsidiaries of the Group for a preliminary assessment. The Preliminary Tax
Calculation was prepared by the IRD for discussion purpose, thus, the final tax
amount may be subject to change when further information and explanation
are provided to the IRD. Taking into consideration of the Preliminary Tax
Calculation, the Group provided HK$19 million of income tax expense in the
year ended 31 March 2020 which represented the Group’s estimation of the
potential tax liabilities and the related penalty. The final tax amount may be
different after negotiation with the IRD.

SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE

For the purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment, the
executive directors, who are the chief operating decision makers (“CODM"),
assess profit or loss of these operating divisions using a measure of operating
profit which exclude: interest income, other expenses, finance costs and
unallocated expenses.

The three main operating divisions of the Group, each of which constitutes an
operating and reportable segment for financial reporting purpose, are:

Electronics — development, manufacture and distribution of electronics and
acoustic products, automotive wire harness and other businesses.

Batteries — development, manufacture and distribution of batteries and battery
related products.

Other investments — holding of other investments which are mainly engaged in
selling and distribution business.

No operating segments have been aggregated to derive the reportable
segments of the Group.

The Group’s revenue represents sales of electronics and acoustics, automotive
wire harness, batteries and other products.



5. SEEH/ERE® 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)
REE K E R ED WA SEEAITNT The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by these
operating and reportable segments:
BE_T_TF-A=+-—HILEE Year ended 31 March 2020
WEDE
25t
Hitig g Total
87 it Other  reportable it =
Electronics Batteries investments  segments Eliminations Total

Fign Fign Fign Fign Tign Tign
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EEE REVENUE
HIMEE External sales 1,515,562 4,535,949 - 6,051,511 - 6,051,511
EHRHE Inter-segment sales 16 36 - 52 (52) -
EBEER Segment revenue 1,515,578 4,535,985 - 6,051,563 (52) 6,051,511
ES RESULTS
EBEE Segment results 345,100 277,469 (68) - - 622,501
A SUA Interest income 18,826
HihEA Other expenses (191,411)
BAFERA Finance costs (180,821)
Rz ER Unallocated expenses (51,344)
eIyl Profit before taxation 217,751
BE_E-NE=B=1+—HLEE Year ended 31 March 2019
HEDE
w5
Hihig & Total
E =i Other  reportable 5N A%
Electronics Batteries  investments segments  Eliminations Total
FHET FHET FET FET FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
44 REVENUE
HIMEE External sales 1,712,543 5,055,130 - 6,767,673 - 6,767,673
EBEHE Inter-segment sales 31 573 - 604 (604) -
EBEET Segment revenue 1,712,574 5,055,703 - 6,768,277 (604) 6,767,673
ES | RESULTS
EBEE Segment results 141,813 390,652 (78) - - 532,387
FEWA Interest income 11,706
HMER Other expenses (36,449)
ISR Finance costs (180,086)
e ER Unallocated expenses (62,510)
BB BRI Profit before taxation 265,048
¥(BREETNSETSEBRMETE Inter-segment sales are made by reference to market prices.
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Year ended 31 March 2020 BiZ _F _FHF=_A=+—HIFE
5. DEEH/EEHw 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)
AEERED I cEEREBEANTAT ¢ The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by reportable
segments:
Hithi% &
7 Eitn Other a5t
Electronics Batteries investments Total
TFigrx TFi&x TFi&x Fi&x
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZEZFF=A=+—H  At31March 2020

BE Assets

EWEE Segment assets 2,042,954 3,732,465 44,824 5,820,243

REEDHEE Unallocated assets 1,426,707

REREE Consolidated total assets 7,246,950

aE Liabilities

¥BaE Segment liabilities 417,004 1,141,003 4 1,558,048

TeenfaE Unallocated liabilities 3,573,157

REREeE Consolidated total liabilities 5,131,205

Hithig &
BF £ Other BF
Electronics Batteries investments Total
T BT FET Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AF—NFE=A=1+—H At 31 March 2019

BE Assets

XBEE Segment assets 2,112,671 3,557,660 56,141 5,726,472

TN HEE Unallocated assets 1,584,776

IREREE Consolidated total assets 7,311,248

=t= Liabilities

x%aE Segment liabilities 595,199 1,002,815 41 1,598,055

REEDfEEE Unallocated liabilities 3,482,938

raBaE Consolidated total liabilities 5,080,993

B EFRIN N EE BN E RS ¢ For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating resources

between segments:

o BREE - REEBIEEE - AIWEIFIE « BT e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than goodwill, deferred
EE - GRERESEREEBHRFERNE tax assets, taxation recoverable, bank balances, deposits and cash and
thEE  MEEESREREEK & assets used jointly by operating segments; and

o MRYBEMNHBIE - MBHESHE  RITER e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than taxation
MEGENREMER « RITREMET B payable, obligations under finance leases, bank loans, import and other
HRIEEBENKSEBLIRAENEME loans, bank and other loans, deferred tax liabilities and liabilities for which
& PIBBEIREREHE - operating segments are jointly liable.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)

b= glic)=¢ Other information
BY Bitr AnE by
Electronics Batteries Unallocated Consolidated
FiExn FiERn Tign Fign
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE_T"EE=A=1—HLEE Yearended 31 March 2020
BEAENBEER Amounts included in measure of segment

DERAHE B SR assets and segment profit or loss
FGESE AR AR Interests in associates 1,214,090 287,497 - 1,501,587
EXZH Capital expenditure 56,238 484,842 1,301 542,381
W% BERREZITEREL Depreciation of property, plant and

BEHH equipment and amortisation of

intangible assets 27,046 122,641 5,246 154,933
FEREEEZINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 27,447 33,674 9,158 70,279
PGB ARIEE Share of results of associates 113,280 20,155 - 133,435
BERE Allowance for inventories 108 1,908 - 2,016
B E A Closure and relocation costs - 32,624 - 32,624
HEDE  BERERERDE Gain on disposal of property, plant 277,059 803 (63) 277,799

FHEEE MR and equipment and assets classified

as held for sale
E R Provision for restructuring 99,810 - - 99,810
EWER N EMEWERIESHERE Net impairment loss (reversed) recognised

2 (E#) ER on trade and other receivables ) 6,727 - 6,720

BENRREFREBECHA  Netimpairment loss recognised on
investment in an associate - 598 - 598
BY Bt P Foe)
Electronics Batteries Unallocated Consolidated
FET FHET FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEZF-NE=A=1—HIEE Yearended 31 March 2019
BREEDHEERD A Amounts included in measure of segment

i P | assets and segment profit or loss
PGB AR AR Interests in associates 1,209,544 274,718 - 1,484,262
EATH Capital expenditure 19,951 274,587 739 295,277
—FENEARMEREER Compensation income for damages and

B ZBEEWA relocation of property of a subsidiary - 145,931 - 145,931
% BERSREZ Depreciation of property, plant and

WERBVEEEHE equipment and amortisation of intangible

assets 30,008 125,892 5,598 161,498
Bkl =N E= Share of results of associates 126,231 9,292 - 135,523
FE () &k (Reversal of) allowance for inventories (2,888) 10,240 - 7,352
W~ BERRERR Impairment loss recognised on property,

EER plant and equipment - 6,689 - 6,689
HERERRESE Impairment loss recognised on goodwill - 23,000 - 23,000
BRI Closure and relocation costs - 6,760 - 6,760
HEDE  BERERZ (Loss) gain on disposal of property,

(E518) s plant and equipment (94) 3,040 373 3,319
EWE RN EMEWERIESHERE Net impairment loss recognised (reversed)

ZHER (E#) on trade and other receivables 1,354 (743) - 611
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Year ended 31 March 2020 BE _FE_ZFF=—F=+—HIFE

5.

DEEN/EEE =)

it B
REE 2 BUE N TG E R B K H AR TR
g ~ FRER ~ BOM S SEMBIZEST ©

TREHT —EARKRBLSMREF ATt A%
YERE BT LA BRI ERENELIRIA ~ SER
PEBES - LATEF AR ER G < RA
TAREERIAEENIERE EENIR DT

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)

Geographical information
The Group’s manufacturing and marketing functions are carried out in the PRC
and certain other Asia-Pacific, Middle East, European and American countries.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue from external
customers based on location of customers and information about its non-
current assets other than non-current receivables, non-current rental deposits,
equity instruments at FVTOCI and deferred tax assets by geographical locations
of assets:

BREE EiRENEE
Revenue Non-current assets

2020 2019 2020 2019
FiEx Tt FERT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

lE The PRC
— B8 — Hong Kong 353,102 455,536 418,071 376,671
— - Mainland China 1,891,931 2,215,433 2,373,095 2,113,563
HABEEMER Other Asian countries 411,842 529,838 731,693 593,537
B Europe 1,838,344 1,796,659 65,913 76,481
E Americas 1,468,546 1,675,981 18,658 1,292
Hith Others 87,746 94,226 - -
6,051,511 6,767,673 3,607,430 3,161,544

REEZIREFEXBIIFRBEEZMBE
B ZEREXRERDHE - WERAE M
o Bl ~ MR EMZ DT EEERRE—
FESERERMNEARRR - 2R TEMLIN
B, o EXENERBEEEZZREE ~ HN
PSR - "M NEXBNIERBEET
BRFEENEE - TSN NEXBENEREE
ERIEZ RN -

TEERERMA
UTRAEEETIZEREFER ZEXED
#r

The geographical information of the Group’s revenue from external customers
and non-current assets by individual significant countries in other Asian
countries, Europe, Americas and others is not available and management
considers the cost to obtain the information would be excessive. The revenue
and non-current assets classified as “Other Asian countries” mainly represents
Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia, revenue and non-current assets classified as
“Europe” mainly represents United Kingdom and Germany and revenue and
non-current assets classified as “Americas” mainly represents North America.

Revenue from major products
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue recognised at a point in time
from its major products:

2020 2019
Figrx T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BFOE - Electronics segment:
B RIZEFER Electronics and acoustics products 1,311,762 1,477,388
AR E M Automotive wire harness products 203,800 235,155
1,515,562 1,712,543

BHAE - Batteries segment:

BMLEMEEER Batteries and battery related products 4,535,949 5,055,130
BRFANEECEXER Revenue from contracts with customers 6,051,511 6,767,673

EXFANEACEXBENE X
6,051,563,0005 7T (—F—JL4F : 6,768,277,000
HITLE 2 5 Bl B ER [ 8 52,0008 T8 (ZF
—fL4E  604,000557T) °

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

The difference between revenue from contracts with customers and segment
revenue amounting to HK$6,051,563,000 (2019: HK$6,768,277,000) is inter-
segment sales of HK$52,000 (2019: HK$604,000).
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TEEREEZH @)

AEEBEEARFHENGER - @XBEEY
ZHEESRER  EEVMELEIEIRSH
BEMBTHELESRFES - AQRESER
EAEENSEBERREIER  BNEEF&
BEEREY LESERMERFTERISTIE -
BEEFRBEEYE=TRE—EAB_+TRAZER

FraE EaR—FXEREMHE - TBHER

HEAS ST RAREN L EZERERR
KR BER
FEEFREH

RREZF_FFLR_F-NFAZ+—HIE
FE  BEEAE-—FPMEI0%HIULAERZ
ES

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION/REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from major products (continued)

The Group sells all products directly to customers. Revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods have been delivered
to the customers’ specific location and customer acceptance has been obtained.
The directors of the Company considered that the Group’s revenue is recognised
at a point in time, which is the point of time when the customer has the ability
to direct the use of the goods and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits of the goods. Payment of the transaction price is due ranging from 30
days to 120 days, at the point the customer purchases the goods.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Information about major customers
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue during the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

Eith3z h R Eith @518 6. OTHER EXPENSES AND OTHER LOSSES
2020 2019
TFERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
mESr T EESEEE Realised loss on derivative financial instruments 27,160 -
HNE AR R ELSIBENSE Net translation deficit recognised to profit or loss
EEH upon deregistration of subsidiaries 31,817 -
B SR B B A (FI5E) Closure and relocation costs (note) 32,624 6,760
S/A%E (fYEE32) Provision for restructuring (see note 32) 99,810 -
FERRZRERSE (FiE19) Impairment loss recognised on goodwill
(see note 19) - 23,000
BB ~ BERBEZRESE Impairment loss recognised on property, plant and
(FfI5E13) equipment (see note 13) - 6,689
191,411 36,449

M REBERNRE_ S _EF A=t —HLEF
£ AEEFRRERETBRADRNPES
—HS TS A B R R B A (T —UF 1 3R
N2 RECER D) ©

Note: Amount included the closure and relocation cost incurred in relocating the Group’s
factories from Dongguan to Malaysia and another location in the PRC (2019:
logistics and distribution center in Shenzhen) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

BERE FINANCE COSTS
2020 2019
TFiEx T
HK$'000 HK$'000
IRITREMEREEZRFNSER Interest on bank and other loans and notes 174,383 179,949
HEaENEER Interest on lease liabilities 6,438 -
MBZHEEREERNSER Interest on obligations under finance leases - 137
180,821 180,086
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Year ended 31 March 2020 BE _F_FEF=F=+—HILFE

8. [R#AEIRF

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2020 2019
TFi&rx FiBT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBRELADA A ERERLUTIRE * Profit before taxation has been arrived at after
charging:
E=E (FIFE9) Directors’ emoluments (see note 9) 30,558 33,502
HhE T3re « B85 R Other staff's salaries, allowances and welfare 1,153,667 1,185,693
ETwRMNERER Total employee benefits expenses 1,184,225 1,219,195
WZE ~ BNz e Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
—BREE — owned assets 154,856 160,362
—BHECEE — assets under finance lease - 1,059
154,856 161,421
FREEEZITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 70,279 -
FERE Allowance for inventories 2,016 7,352
M EERH Amortisation of intangible assets 77 77
2B A% Auditor’s remuneration
RERE Current year 11,269 12,086
FFERRZEE Under provision in prior years 65 158
AR HZFEERA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 4,459,427 5,076,448
TESm T A AT ESE Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments 29,758 -
FEWE TR I LAt FEUN AR T S Rk (B 5 18 Net impairment loss recognised on trade and
R other receivables 6,720 611
RS AR ZFRESE Net impairment loss recognised on interest in
an associate 598 -
HNEBARERZ ERFEE Net translation deficit recognised upon on
deregistration of subsidiaries 31,817 -
HEEENEERES Minimum lease payments made in respect of
HEMZE Rental premises - 60,909
Efth Others - 6,274
TEEEERRESEFTEF G Expenses in relating to short-term leases, leases
HE - KEEEEHEMAEEENTK of low-value assets and variable lease payments
BREzER not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities recognised in respect of
HEME Rental premises 12,511 -
Eft Others 3,751 -
MERERZH Research expenditure incurred 78,786 87,519
PSECE AN and after crediting:
HEMZ - BiRENHENMDEREHEREZ Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Wz (Fika) and assets classified as held for sale (Note a) 277,799 3,319
SRITER R EMGEFEZ R BWA Interest income from bank deposits and balances 16,547 9,969
i/ I EN N Interest income from associates 2,279 1,737
FERREDERSWAHREZ L Rental income from investment properties,
134,000587T0 (ZF—4F - less outgoings of HK$134,000
189,000587T) (2019: HK$189,000) 668 1,009
TSR T B2 /AFEEM Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments - 2,564
S (BIEEEMBAR) Exchange gain (included in other income) 18,995 37,008
R EREEBFEUAFERTA Dividend income from equity instruments at fair
Hih2EUBERMNRA TR value through other comprehensive income
B BN held at the end of reporting period - 265
—EREATNYERBERRE Gain arising from compensation for damages and
EEEBA (BFEEEMBAR) relocation of property of a subsidiary (included
(MizEb) in other income) (note b) - 145,931
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8. FRMAuEF =)

ByEE -

(a)

(b)

RIBIRFE=—A=1t—HLEFE - —RBREHH
BARHEMRPREIMNNET LR T 4R
ERE(THEME) FEUE=5H - RENR
265,800,000 A R (#9302,200,000/8 7T ) * 55
{E%112,700,000 A R (#914,400,0007T) - #%:E
8% {8 49110,000,000 A & # (%7 125,100,000 % 7T.)
REAXNMN - RZFE—NF=A=+—H HED
(P BRGHEEE » BRMEE/R150,900,000587T
(RMfFE25) - BRME(E A 17,700,0005% T HIAE B
EiEETREHE - HEREATZTENBARS
CE-NENAES_MENANAERNES
HEAAemMAUMEEFERZEEYE - WEIRR
BiEEEt RIETEEMIMBEEREES
EE2E_S-NEANAE_S__FAALEY
¥R TH{ERERE A EEE36,600,000/7T » LU
ERHENEREFERANTEIRAS - E-HEHRER
TE - (ERIZRMBEIFR AL £ %87/%46,400,000
I WRE—FRIE > HERIEREIEKERIE
(RBFaE20) - k4 RBEENEE BRREE
#F#/47,700,00047T - & HEiGEER—1EHE
EREIHEIRS M EE EEK 277,000,000/ 7T
AEABRA FRRER

RIF—NF=A=+—HILLFE R —RE+PER
WEARN TR NMuBESITEER  Fitkgt it
EEEKEIBFMBNER - 2EWENREE
#351,000,000% 7T » #R4E & F # /5 49 23,000,000
BT REWHERBEILEPLM—IH - Wi
AEBREEREOCEERERER - PR
BARRMBEY SR BATEEEX167,000,0007
TTRRMEZ B E =5 BEAR FTKE A EER
46,000,0007T °

RIF-—NF=A=+—H ' RBEEHBHTHK - 2
4 %E49129,000,0005 7T » EEE N —ER B
JF B B ey L At B Wi 35 1 22 EL 84 4959,000,000 745
T RIF—NFRZEMERRZBERIBLN
7,000,000567C - EEA T ENERE_ST_FF=
A=1+—HILFEERHRTREE 26,000,000
ToZ RIS - R ESEEITE - BREE
RETS_—HRRK R_ZF_FF=A=1+—
A - BUELES & 5/184,000,0008 7T BN T
ST—F=A=1T—HIFEZK  AEEEHRL
— A A BT WCEN L8R 55,000,00077T ©

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, a PRC subsidiary disposed of certain land and
building of industrial complex located in Huizhou, PRC (“the Disposed Property”) to
an independent third party. The consideration was approximately Renminbi (“RMB")
265.8 million (approximately HK$302.2 million) including the value added tax of
RMB12.7 million (approximately HK$14.4 million). The relocation compensation
of RMB110 million (approximately of HK$125.1 million) was offered by the buyer.
The Disposed Property was classified under assets classified as held for sale with the
carrying amount of HK$150.9 million as at 31 March 2019 (see note 25). The related
machinery and equipment with the carrying amount of HK$17.7 million was also
disposed. The disposal agreement allows the PRC subsidiary to continue to use the
Disposed Property without paying any rent for a period of five years from June 2019
to June 2024 with early handover incentives. Based on the intended removal date
estimated by the management, the Group recognised right-of-use assets of HK$36.6
million for the expected rent free use of the Disposed Property with reference to the
market value of rent of the Disposal Property from June 2019 to June 2022. In return,
an early relocation subsidy in the amount of HK$46.4 million was expected to be
compensated by the buyer and will be received after one year and classified as non-
current receivables (see note 20). In addition, legal, consultancy and professional fees
of approximately HK$47.7 million incurred for the transaction. The disposal agreement
formed a sale and leaseback transaction and results in a disposal gain of HK$277.0
million recognised in other income.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, a PRC subsidiary received the request from
government for relocation of land and building and a warehouse due to the location
of the industrial complex proximates to residential areas with the carrying amount
of HK$51 million and with the provision of relocation costs of HK$23 million. The
properties were parts of the entire industrial complex and were used by the Group
as production facilities and warehouses for the manufacturing of batteries. The total
compensation from government for relocation of properties was approximately
HK$167 million and from third party construction companies for damages to a
property of a PRC subsidiary was approximately HK$46 million.

As at 31 March 2019, the relocation was partially completed. HK$129
million of compensation was received and HK$59 million would be received
from government within one year and classified as other receivables.
Amount of HK$7 million was recognised as an impairment loss in the year
ended 31 March 2019. The Group had intended to handover the control of
the remaining factory with the carrying amount of HK$26 million during the
financial year ending 31 March 2020 which then extended to 2021 due to
delayed handover progress. During the year ended 31 March 2020, another
HK$4 million of compensation was received and the Group expected to
receive the remaining of HK$55 million from government within one year as
the delayed handover will be completed in the year ended 31 March 2021.
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Year ended 31 March 2020 BE _FE_ZFF=—F=+—HIFE

9. EEREFTFHNRABRSITMES 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

ESRETFN RS HM Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments and employees’
emoluments
EEREH Directors and chief executive
ENRESTFT—R(CE—IE +R)EEX The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven (2019: ten) directors and
B FIENT - the chief executive are as follows:
2020
EL

Other emoluments
FIRER BeKiEsl
EES STERIMEK
#i£KR Performance  Retirement

Hithig# related benefit
#% Salaries and incentive scheme 8t
Fees other benefits  payments contributions Total
FiEn Fign Fi&n Fign Fi&n
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(BtEEi )
(note i)
HITES Executive directors:
ZEAE8 (P =Tl ) Victor LO Chung Wing (note ii) 10 8,465 2,335 611 11,421
FEE Richard KU Yuk Hing 10 2,022 435 173 2,640
T Brian LI Yiu Cheung 10 4,402 1,934 368 6,714
WAEEST (Bf=Fiii) Michael LAM Hin Lap (note iii) 10 3,116 927 216 4,269
FFE (&) Brian WONG Tze Hang (note iv) 10 3,180 597 257 4,044
FEHTES Non-executive directors:
2442 (ffztv) LEUNG Pak Chuen (note v) 230 - - - 230
RERiE Karen NG Ka Fai 230 - - - 230
BiUERITES Independent non-executive directors:
mEE LUI Ming Wah 280 - - - 280
BRESHR Frank CHAN Chi Chung 270 - - - 270
PBRELIR CHAN Kei Biu 230 - - - 230
EEE (fiEvi) Timothy TONG Wai Cheung (note vi) 230 - - - 230
1,520 21,185 6,228 1,625 30,558
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

ESRESFHRESTHM Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments and employees’
emoluments (continued)
ESREH =) Directors and chief executive (continued)
2019
EAhE
Other emoluments
KIEEE RINER
B FES
#eN  Performance Retirement
HibigF related benefit
#4%  Salaries and incentive scheme A%
Fees other benefits payments  contributions Total
T FHET T T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Bt
(note i)
HiTES Executive directors:
R8s (BaFii) Victor LO Chung Wing (note i) 10 8,521 1,757 613 10,901
2Aa2 (av) LEUNG Pak Chuen (note v) 64 2,610 2,928 109 5,711
AR E Richard KU Yuk Hing 10 2,029 435 174 2,648
HAEPR (FfEEvil) Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung (note vii) 2 2,482 206 62 2,752
AEH Brian LI Yiu Cheung 10 3,949 1,692 327 5,978
EnCIGENI WONG Man Kit (note vii) 8 3,448 819 227 4,502
FEHITES Non-executive directors:
SR Karen NG Ka Fai 230 - - - 230
BIUEMTES Independent non-executive directors:
2% LUI Ming Wah 280 - - - 280
ERE] Frank CHAN Chi Chung 270 - - - 270
BRESR CHAN Kei Biu 230 - - - 230
1,114 23,039 7,837 1,512 33,502
P5E - Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

REMAEB M DIREZEEEEREE @5
RNA LB HSMT BTEE

FRAMESEE R RANTRE - 1 EAUIREE 2 3
BB R PTIR IR -

MBASEER S NFUR —BERERIMTE
Ho

BEYEEEN T NFNA-BEZERARITE
Ho

REZREEN T NF—R—BRAPTEREAT
RIFITESE -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The performance related incentive payments were determined with reference to the
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics for both
years.

Mr. Victor LO Chung Wing is also the chief executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the chief

executive.

Mr. Michael LAM Hin Lap was appointed as executive director on 1 April 2019.

Mr. Brian WONG Tze Hang was appointed as executive director on 1 April 2019.

Mr. LEUNG Pak Chuen was re-designated from executive director to non-executive
director on 1 January 2019.

SUNTEEB)BRAD ZF-NE_T_TEFR

101



102

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

FaiRBMEE@

Year ended 31 March 2020 BE _FE_ZFF=—F=+—HIFE

9. EERESFHROBEEHMES =

ESREFHTFMRESTHMN =)

ESREH =)
[EREE-))

(vi) ERBEER_Z-NFNA-BEZERBIE

WITEE -

(vii)) HEBREEN"Z—\FLA—BREMTES -

(vii) EXESEER —F—/\FLtA - REZERATE

F N TB-NEFNA-BRENMTESE -

() DIEFTEIITESFHM  TERWERBAAARK
FEERECEEE - EMBEIFRITES
FOERITEEH  ERZRESELRARNEFZR

%o

E8

AEENAEERETH L AL REREMRS
(CE—hE  MR)ATESRME EME
20 LR « BT R(CE—AE | —R)AE

HEEeHMWEARARESREEZFHNT

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments and employees’

emoluments (continued)

Directors and chief executive (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi) Mr. Timothy TONG Wai Cheung was appointed as independent non-executive director
on 1 April 2019.

(vii) Mr. Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung was retired as executive director on 1 July 2018.

(viii) Mr. WONG Man Kit was appointed as executive director on 1 July 2018 and retired as
executive director on 1 April 2019.

(ix) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ and non-executive director's emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

Employees
The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year included two
(2019: four) directors or the chief executive of the Company, details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The emolument of the remaining three (2019:
one) highest paid employee of the Group, not being a director of the Company,
is as follows:

2020 2019

FiET Tt

HK$'000 HK$'000

e MEMEF] Salaries and other benefits 9,159 1,059
FIRERARE Performance related incentive payments 6,602 3,600
IRRRBRIETEIHER Retirement benefit scheme contributions 254 -
16,015 4,659

MR EEE T -

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

EE#E
No. of employees
2020 2019
4,500,001t —5,000,000/&7T HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 - 1
5,000,00177C —5,500,0007%7C HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 3 -

RWMEFER > LEATRSFHcOHREE
(BREES BALES) WSFEREKMAKE
IMAREE 2 BB A EBAL2 M E - WE

FERN  BEEFNRAKEEAIE -
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No emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals (including directors,
chief executive and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during both years. None of the
directors or the chief executive has waived any emoluments during both years.



10. 18 10. TAXATION
2020 2019
TFi&rx T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BFE - The charge comprises:
EBFBRL Hong Kong Profits Tax
—REERIE — charge for the year 10,450 7,571
—FFEZANE GBI BiE — under (over) provision in previous years 21,168 (3)
31,618 7,568
BB R IR Taxation in jurisdictions other than Hong Kong
—RFERIE — charge for the year 82,873 81,877
—FFE RN — over provision in previous years (6,270) (8,604)
76,603 73,273
108,221 80,841
IRIERITAS B (M9EE31) Deferred taxation charge (see note 31)
—AREE - current year 18,233 165
126,454 81,006
EE LM ESERLFE 2 FTER 0 B AR Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong mainly arose from PRC
TEMER (ThEERE)) MERATFE Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and United Kingdom corporate income
Bt DRILIBIZ25% M 19%51E - tax was calculated at a rate of 25% and 19%, respectively.
FR - AEBWZIRBERENS HIGTE - 3iE During the year, the Group provided HK$19 million for the estimated
STBEBENAERIERE LS FELE 19,000,000 underprovision of Hong Kong Profit Tax in previous years and the related
TR GHIER2E N4 - penalty after receiving an IRD preliminary tax calculation, see note 4 for details.

SUNTEEB)BRAD ZF-NE_T_TEFR

103



104

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

FERBMEE@

Year ended 31 March 2020 BZE_E_FF =

B=+—HLFE

10. 18 (=) 10. TAXATION (continued)
FIECHRFTAT ¢ A statement of reconciliation of taxation is as follows:
2020 2019
TFi&rx FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBLRDERF) Profit before taxation 217,751 265,048
BEBRERZ16.5%( ZFE—NE: Tax charge at the Hong Kong Profits tax rate of
16.5% ) stEZ IR H 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) 35,929 43,733
Frb B S ARz B 2 Tax effect of share of results of associates (22,017) (22,361)
RERBRAS B2 HBELE Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes 51,066 37,846
ERHRBAZ RIS L Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes (14,189) (17,462)
RERBBIBBEZRETE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 49,192 42,388
fFREFERERRIBEE BB E Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised (6.156) (6,814)
BELIM B AR E CHE Effect of different tax rates in jurisdictions
other than Hong Kong (7,660) 3,434
BB AR BT 2 TBIFTEH Withholding tax on distributed and
undistributed profits 25,391 8,849
FEECAR (FEIN) BiE Under (over) provision in previous years 14,898 (8,607)
KEERIR Taxation charge for the year 126,454 81,006
1. Ba 11. DIVIDENDS
2020 2019
TiERx FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MNAEERERZBEDK Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
ERE_FT—NERARE — 2019 Final dividend — 2.5 HK cents
B2 5B (ZF—NE - (2019: 2018 Final dividend —
T ) \ERAKE —1.280) 1.2 HK cents) per share 19,617 9,416
EREFZFEHREHRE - 2020 Interim dividend — 2.0 HK cents
BR2.084L (CZF—NF - (2019: 2019 Interim dividend —
TEF-NEFPRERE—1.780) 1.7 HK cents) per share 15,694 13,340
35,311 22,756

BTYRBATNGBER EFSAERBIREE
EIFTFF=A=-FT—HIEFENRERE
(ZE—NE  E8&2.58() - RATRIEEHE
FARBEREMAERE (ZF—L4F  19,617,0007%

JT)°

REBRECEF_RF=-A=+t—HLFEFTY
KEER2.0BI(ZF—NF  2FKS42)8
1IJJ) BHE_Z_FF=A=+—HLEFERS

dividend reserve of the Company.

#REE#15,694,0007 T (ZF— L $32,957,000

/%TE)

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

To preserve the Company’s financial resources, the board of directors does not
propose a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: 2.5 HK cents
per share). No dividend (2019: HK$19,617,000) has been recognised in the

On the basis of 2.0 HK cents (2019: 4.2 HK cents) per share, being the interim
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020, total dividends for the year ended
31 March 2020 amount to HK$15,694,000 (2019: HK$32,957,000).



12. SEREF 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
BRAARHEE AZERERBATIRE TS The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
BEtE - Company is based on the following data:
2020 2019
TFERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
&5 Earnings
BRARAREE AZ2ERT Profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company 20,902 61,437
T+ +
‘000 ‘000
& E Number of shares
AESREABANZ EREHITRMEE  Number of shares in issue during the year for
the purpose of basic earnings per share 784,693 784,693
HREE_S_SF=A=+—HNZF—IH&F No computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
= A=T—HIMFERTMETLBRG - 2020 and 31 March 2019 is disclosed as there are no potential ordinary shares
IRFREGREERACFE - in issue during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.
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= A, =
FaiRBMEE =
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE_F _FHF=A=+—HIFE
13. Y% - MEREE R 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
XA
IHREE B WEREE IRRIR
Freehold HEnE EEEE  Machinery Moulds TREE
land and Owned  Leasehold and and  Asset under Hitr Bt
buildings ~ properties improvements  equipment tools  construction Others Total
TR TEL TR TER TR TR ThR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(GRS
(note)
A fE COST OR VALUATION
RZZ-\EmA—H At 1 April 2018 85,283 968,331 139,784 2,225,750 261,101 127,603 174,580 3,982,432
ERE Currency realignment (4,799) (52,922) (3,167) (86,848) (11,841) (8,809) (6,499) (174,885)
Em Additions - 18511 4,603 31,901 10,426 219,068 10,768 295,277
HE Disposals (983) (21,779) (179) (53,142 (1,631) (12) (6,592) (84,318)
BNAEAGHE(WE25)  Redassified as held for sale
(see note 25) - (234,742) - (17,844) - - - (252,586)
#iE Transfer - 38 69 100,467 28,585 (133,069) 3910 -
RZ5-NE=RA=1-H At 31 March 2019 79,501 677,437 141,110 2,200,284 286,640 204,781 176,167 3,765,920
EREEHEREERN6 Adjustments upon application of
HE HKFRS 16 - - - (2,691) - - (3,662) (6,353)
RIF-NEMA—H (EF)) At 1 Apil 2019 (restated) 79,501 677,437 141,110 2,197,593 286,640 204,781 172,505 3,759,567
EHaR Currency realignment (4,928) (36,388) (3,254) (99,597) (14,627) (29,268) (7.240) (195,802)
i Additions - 7,082 13211 49,838 19,964 444,677 7,559 542,381
e Disposals - (2,415) (2,163) (74,924) (1,198) (3,765) (6,962) (91,427)
R Transfer - 19,579 132 33972 14,242 (84,185) 16,260 -
W_E_EF-A=1+-H At 31 March 2020 74,573 664,795 149,036 2,106,932 305,021 532,240 182,122 4,014,719
A Comprising:
A At cost 42,685 664,795 149,036 2,106,932 305,021 532,240 182,122 3,982,831
fE-—RNLE At valuation - 1994 31,888 - - - - - - 31,888
74,573 664,795 149,036 2,106,932 305,021 532,240 182,122 4,014,719
FERAE DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
RZZ-\EmA—H At 1 April 2018 19,149 178,962 76,739 1,658,765 167,197 - 126,49 2,227,306
BHE Currency realignment (1,056) (14,600) (1,960) (58,422) (6,155) - (3,444) (85,637)
REEER Provided for the year 1012 2762 23507 87,461 18,134 - 10545 161421
BACHESE Impairment loss recognised - 6,689 - - - - - 6,689
HEBER Eliminated on disposals (194) (3.803) (179 (51,401) (1,29) - (5,761) (62,634)
BAAERFLE (WE25)  Reclassified as held for sale
(see note 25) - (59,008) - (16,951) - - - (75,959)
RZ5-NE=RA=1-H At 31 March 2019 18911 129,002 98,107 1,619,452 177,880 - 127,834 2,171,186
EREEHEREERN6 Adjustments upon application of
R HKFRS 16 - - - (292) - - (411) (703)
WIB-NEMA—R(E5) At 1 Aprl 2019 (restated) 18911 129002 9107 1619160 177,880 - TAB 2170483
gHRE Currency realignment (1.271) (5,602) (2,282) (66,408) (7332) - (3,563) (86,458)
REERRE Provided for the year 977 14,974 21,916 85,545 20,269 - 11,175 154,856
HEEFR Eliminated on disposals - (89) (1,569) (49,392) (831) - (5,585) (57,466)
R_E_FE=A=1-H At 31 March 2020 18617 138,285 116,172 1,588,905 189,986 - 129,450 2,181,415
REE CARRYING VALUE
RZE_EF=R=1-H At 31 March 2020 55,956 526,510 32,864 518,027 115,035 532,240 52,672 1,833,304
R_E-NE=A=1—H At 31 March 2019 60,590 548,435 43,003 580,832 108,760 204,781 48333 1,594,734
it - B EEEREME - REE2 51%39,346,000 Note: Others included furniture and fixtures and motor vehicles with carrying values of
w0 (Z & — L4 © 30,839,000 i J5) ~ A HK$39,346,000 (2019: HK$30,839,000) and HK$13,326,000 (2019: HK$17,494,000),
13,326,000/ 7T(ZF—L4F $17,494,000%7T) © respectively.
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13.

14.

WME - BMERKRE®)

BE_F-NEF=F=1+—8 Ly EHEERE
2 AR R 58 A 2 BRTHI{EL /% 5,650,00075 7T, ©

W~ R LR (EREEKKATEE LR
Hh) Z A EUE T A B F R EAR
HREEZRUTINEXRDEREFNRREREEF
ITE R

BHAE

BEEWE 2%Z 5% A B i 84 7H
EFH (BIEE)

KAGER R E 2%%4%

BYEEEE 10% 233"/, %332 E Bl 5
EREEFH
(B&seE)

BREDEIRE

NG & 10%%33",%

TERTA 10%Z50%

Hith (R &~ KB 10%E337,%

RRH)

RIB—NF=A=1T—HILFE » st—RNF
Bl [t B A B FE B IF 2B M ZERERR 2 BB
518 56,689,00055 7T ([IEE8) o

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of machinery and equipment under
finance leases is HK$5,650,000.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of items of property,
plant and equipment, except for asset under construction and freehold land,
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method or the reducing balance method,
at the following rates per annum:

Straight-line method:

Owned properties 2% to 5% or over the remaining period
of respective leases where shorter

2% to 4%

10% to 33'/,% or over the remaining

period of respective leases where
shorter

Freehold buildings
Leasehold improvements

Reducing balance method:

Machinery and equipment

Moulds and tools

Others (representing furniture,
fixtures and motor vehicles)

10% to 33',%
10% to 50%
10% to 33',%

During the year ended 31 March 2019, an impairment loss of HK$6,689,000
was recognised and was attributable to the building of a PRC subsidiary, which
received the request from government for relocation (see note 8).

EREEE 14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
LI
HEEE Machinery
Leasehold and Hith &t
building equipment Others Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-2-nEMB-H As at 1 April 2019
RAE Carrying amount 104,045 3,930 5,580 113,555
RIEZEFE=A=1+—-H As at 31 March 2020
FEE Carrying amount 157,039 14,989 5,149 177,177
BE_ZTFE=A=1+-HL For the year ended 31 March 2020
DEfE Depreciation for the year 65,098 2,702 2,479 70,279
DHHEER Expense relating to short-term leases 9,738
BEEEEREER Expense relating to leases of low-value
(FEEREEEECREEE) assets, excluding short-term leases of
low-value asses 1,021
AEHENTER Expense relating to variable lease payments
(FEENEEEREEZA) not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities 5,503
AERSHRHAE Total cash outflow for leases 85,272
ERREEEEM Additions to right-of-use assets 137,886
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SaIREMEEm)

Year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE

14. EREEE »)

15.

AEFHESERERE
WMAERBLUMEES - HESRMNEEHRA
1¢§w¢ BEZ-NEFE=A=1+—HIH
B ETRELRERTAVEEE  FEXHE
12.34%%5.50% ° mﬁ1ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ
FREEN » EhEE S ERRIVERMEY - &
B E A S H R AN AT A R HA R A
FRAERNEZRIFEE A R A RFI TR ©

RE R E

st AEEERHEE EANERIER BT
HITEMEFE - 2&%@%32%%%*%%&5’]3%
FEAA - EERE T AT STHIFRIRAZ S A
SEDECHS - FERYENRE T E DA T%ﬁ%ﬂ
& o

AEETHRAERT - s kR AEMET L
RHRE R TRTRF=RA=1—8H" %“HH%H
EmMSHETE P RENESHEEE B
Bl e

AEMRHKEN

o RZFE_FSE=R=+—H - BRHA

& & (5156,371,00058 7T R IEE 2 [F B %f@i?

177,177,00057C - (R Y HIEERBWEEE

EPEU?RW&M# HEBEREITM Em,ﬂm °
HEEERNSRAFEESER -

HEROBXZ-BEHT-REA

&Y BT BB AEENERNEENRES K
FrEEAFEH LA EERE IHEE DA
ZH - BUERFERFAT B BRELENFH15

FFE=ZA=1T—HIHE
14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The Group leases various leasehold building, motor vehicles, machinery and
equipment and office equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 1 year to 15 years. Certain leases of equipment were
accounted for as finance leases during the year ended 31 March 2019 and
carried interest ranged from 2.34% to 5.50%. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where its manufacturing
facilities are primarily located and office buildings. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are presented separately only if the payments made can be
allocated reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for leasehold building,
machinery and equipment and others. As at 31 March 2020, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense was related as disclosed in this note above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$156,371,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of HK$177,177,000 as at 31 March 2020. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Sale and leaseback transactions — seller-lessee

To better manage the Group’s capital structure and financing needs, the Group
sometimes enters into sale and leaseback arrangements in relation to land and
building leases. These legal transfer does satisfy the requirements of HKFRS15 to

SRAVESR » ABRART N EENEE - be accounted for as a sale of land and building.
FRGEHE N SR 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2020 2019
TiEx FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
i l/NCIEC =197 Cost of investments in associates
£ Listed 228,161 79,121
JEEm™ Unlisted 318,158 441,171
Fr b S & ) Sy EL At 2T AR Share of post-acquisition profit and other
BEREUE S comprehensive income, net of dividends
received 945,983 954,087
1,492,302 1,474,379
il l/NZINE /Y Amounts due from associates 9,883 9,883
BEEEREE Allowance for impairment loss (598) -
1,501,587 1,484,262
MR =A=1t—H2A¥E Fair values of listed shares at 31 March 350,157 201,486

BERANRARARHEERNLE &xxﬁlii#\
B-REERR  ARESASERENER
BTERNERERER - At E%%EEWE
SERBEE

BENF EHRIDIATERIERTH S
BERER  FLD 8RN EBREB IR
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The amounts due from associates are unsecured and interest-free and have no
fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors, the Group would not
demand for the repayment within the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the amounts are shown as non-current assets.

The fair values of listed shares of the associates are determined based on quoted
prices in active markets and therefore are categorised as level 1 under the fair
value hierarchy.



15. F{GBHE AR @) 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
BTGB AR R B AR 2117,790,000% 7T (Z Included in the interests in associates is goodwill of HK$117,790,000 (2019:
EFE—4F 1 117,564,000/87T) ° HK$117,564,000).
FEBENTZFBHNIRE M5 - Particulars of the principal associates are set out in note 45.
TEBENEZHFEEEE Summarised financial information of material associates
BRAEEFEBRE AR M BERBEEHSIM Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material associates is
T o LT BERBERRES B B S set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts
e Pl - UNCIPd bR e shown in the associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.
BT HAMRAR (T8, MEETHEKHBIR Linkz Industries Limited (“Linkz") and Meiloon Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Meiloon")
AR (TERE)) RAEENERBEAT BN are the material associates to the Group and they are accounted for using the
FAMBRREESRATE - equity method in these consolidated financial statements.
EEREMBAR Linkz and its subsidiaries
2020 2019
TFigx F#ET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MENEE Current assets 2,193,814 2,471,577
FERENE E Non-current assets 2,199,798 1,749,315
neaE Current liabilities 2,150,730 2,111,801
FERBasE Non-current liabilities 234,533 130,838
IR Non-controlling interests 222,179 207,096
= Revenue 3,210,901 3,416,478
2R Profit for the year 135,805 169,507
2EHEMDESZ Other comprehensive expense for the year (74,103) (53,477)
DEFEDEMBERARRE Total comprehensive income for the year 61,702 116,030
FRMBEFMELZ R Dividends received from Linkz during the year - 22,058
Pl B E RN EERALENGE T BEREAE Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
R BENFRSIRAESROT amount of the interest in the associate in respect of Linkz recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:
2020 2019
TFi&gx T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HBERELAEBACELTERE Net assets of Linkz attributable to
owners of Linkz 1,786,170 1,771,157
REBFERLEHER RS 2L Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in Linkz 38.13% 38.13%
Fr{bEEh P EE Share of net assets of Linkz 681,067 675,342
G Goodwill 28,242 28,242
HAithFA%E Other adjustment (2,536) (2,536)
REEPTGEEER ZIREE Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Linkz 706,773 701,048

SWITXEEERAD “F-NE-FT"2F4% | 109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

A, =
FSRBEMEE =)
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE_F _FHF=A=+—HIFE
15. F{GEBHE ABER @) 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
EERHMEAS Meiloon and its subsidiaries
2020 2019
TFERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
MENEE Current assets 1,027,151 840,183
FRBEE Non-current assets 593,099 590,045
MEEE Current liabilities 407,391 375,707
FERBER Non-current liabilities 303,064 195,825
ElEadicg o Non-controlling interests 78,471 75,523
e Revenue 985,055 889,204
2EFRF] Profit for the year 106,343 43,533
2EHMPEE Other comprehensive expenses
for the year (17,376) (50,650)
2E2EME () #2758 Total comprehensive income (expenses)
for the year 88,967 (7,117)
FRUEEELRELZE S Dividends received from Meiloon
during the year 8,580 13,386
T BERNREREEER G M RERARE Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
R BENRERREERERNT ¢ amount of the interest in the associate in respect of Meiloon recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:
2020 2019
TFERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RENEERE AN ERFERE Net assets of Meiloon attributable to owners of
Meiloon 831,324 783,173
REEEEEETER A Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in Meiloon 20.27% 20.27%
Frbs<ENFEE Share of net assets of Meiloon 168,509 158,749
e Goodwill 38,402 38,176
HitzazE Other adjustment (36) (34)
AEBATEEERRC Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in
SREE Meiloon 206,875 196,891
XECVBFEAEHRT_A=1T—"8"- 2&% The financial year end date for Meiloon is 31 December. For the purpose
ERrEEEESI—ER=A=1T—HB#HE of applying the equity method of accounting, the consolidated financial
HBRERENIER » Ak - AEEFRAXE statements of Meiloon and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
Hliﬁlﬁ'@ﬁ%i “F-hF+-_B=1+—H (: 2019 (2019: 31 December 2018) have been used as the Group considers that
—NE IR - N\FT+ZA=T—H) LFE it is impracticable for Meiloon to prepare a separate set of financial statements
Z%Aﬁﬁ%iﬁikzﬁlﬁﬂﬂ HERIAC B o H as of 31 March. Appropriate adjustments have been made accordingly for the
R_B-NF+_R=+—HRE_F_TF=1 effects of significant transactions between that date and 31 March 2020, if any.
—t+—HZEEBERRSZHE (WNE) S8R
EHEERIREE o
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16.

FriGEE AR (=)
FEERIEXRBEAGNGSER

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material

2020 2019
TFiEx T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AEE B2 EBER AR The Group’s share of total
comprehensive income 38,237 41,810
AEBEFEBESARRD CREEESR Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
interests in these associates 587,939 586,323

NTRTREZA=1—H  FiEMEARES
BEUTLEHRE :

() BE TE {H 206,875,000 7T (5 — L& -
196,891,000 JT) M<EKH - ER
BEFME  ERNDREEBERSA
BOERAT LT - AEBATHEZE#ER
N_B_BF=—A=+—HZHEBEES
204,731,00057T (ZF—/14F 201,486,000
BIT) °

(i) BE [ {8 78,754,000 # 7T (Z T — S 4 -
61,713,000 7T) BHT B D RHR KA BERA
A (THEROBRE,) KB - HTRABRERE
BT HRMREEZS_FF=8
_+ HIEEERBEESXIFMKRMNE
RAFR LM - REBAMGHE OB ER
RIBE _BFE=-A=+—HhEEEAS
114,579,000/ 7T, ©

fR T {8 29,462,000 B T (ZF — L&

14,960,000 7T ) fi9Hanoi Battery Joint Stock
Company( " Habaco ;) B4 ° Habacop #/
AR - RO IO NE SR ST L

KREEFT{hHabaco N T ZFF=HA
=+—RZmi5EER30,847,00047T ©

(iii)

AEENEZENKENR T TF=A=1+—H
Wi EERNEE BN AEE M B RRNIKRE
1B Rt EEEEREE -

/N
35

RIRMBE R 2 R IR R MY R

MATEG AR hZEWHZIRETR

16.

Interest in associates as at 31 March 2020 included the following listed
investment:

@)

The shares of Meiloon with carrying value of HK$206,875,000 (2019:
HK$196,891,000). Meiloon was incorporated in Taiwan and its shares
are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. The market value
of the Group’s interest in Meiloon as at 31 March 2020 amounted to
HK$204,731,000 (2019: HK$201,486,000).

The shares of STL Technology Co., Ltd. (“STL") with carrying value of
HK$78,754,000 (2019: HK$61,713,000). STL was incorporated in Taiwan
and its shares are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation during
the year ended 31 March 2020. The market value of the Group’s interest in
STL as at 31 March 2020 amounted to HK$114,579,000.

(iii) The shares of Hanoi Battery Joint Stock Company (“Habaco”) with

carrying value of HK$29,462,000 (2019: HK$14,960,000). Habaco was
incorporated in Vietnam and its shares are listed on the Hanoi Stock
Exchange. The market value of the Group’s interest in Habaco as at 31
March 2020 amounted to HK$30,847,000.

As the market value of the Group’s investment in Meiloon as at 31 March 2020
was not significantly lower than the corresponding carrying value in the Group's
financial statement, no estimation of value in use was performed.

Details of impairment assessment of amounts due from associates are set out in
note 35.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2020 2019

TFiET Tt

HK$'000 HK$'000

REE Lo BAES Equity securities listed in Taiwan 5,882 11,490
I ERBRAE S ATE (FiEtb) Unlisted equity securities, at fair value (note b) 52,531 65,886
58,413 77,376

ByEE -

(@) LA ERMIFLHREIRFEERZHE M
RHPREREEBNSE - AATNESERBR
ERELRECERRBNATFENERDPE
FEEFREELERENRMG BN RMEZ
ERAXEENNRRERA B BAltELR
BERFIRBUATEH AL MMEEEEIIRAT
Bo

Notes:

(a)

The above listed and unlisted investments are not held for trading, instead, they are
held for long-term strategic purposes. The directors of the Company have elected
to designate these investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI as they believe that
recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit or loss
would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding these investments for
long-term purposes and realising their performance potential in the long run.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

= A 5
FaREM =
Year ended 31 March 2020 #HE_ZF_FTF=—A=+—HILEFE
16. MAFEHARMEEBEZBETR @) 16. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
izt : (#%) Notes: (continued)
(b) B ¥E R IE 44,824,000 8 T (Z B — h F - (b)  Included an amount of approximately HK$44,824,000 (2019: HK$56,141,000)
56,141,000/ 7T) RAEEET 9% (ZF—A represents the Group's 49% (2019: 49%) equity investments in a company
F 149% sz —ENPBIKII 2 AR - B established in the PRC, which is engaged in selling and distribution business. The
EBRIBERDE - AEBEARS2HEZARNAE Group does not participate in the daily operations and has waived its right to exercise
(XBNBENREESFREZRENET - FEF its voting power in the board of directors’ meetings of this company. In the opinion
REAEEREHZARDETEARE  AEZA of the directors, the Group cannot exercise significant influence over that company
ARIIRAUATEF AE M2 EBHIRAT and accordingly, such investment is classified as equity instrument at FVTOCI.
i
17. B.EE 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
ERM#RH
Product EERE EFRE
B  development Technical Customer At
Trademarks  expenditure know-how relationship Total
FHT FHET FHT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2% cosT
RZE—\EFMA—H ' ZF At 1 Aprl 2018, 31 March 2019 and
—NERZZZFTE 31 March 2020
=BA=1+—H 85,205 129,461 103,616 10,026 328,308
REHUSHRREE ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
RZF-NFEA—H At 1 April 2018 83,804 129,461 103,616 10,026 326,907
REEERE Provided for the year 77 - - - 77
RI5—NnF=B=1—H At 31 March 2019 83,881 129,461 103,616 10,026 326,984
TEEERE Provided for the year 77 - - - 77
R_BBF=F=1+—H At 31 March 2020 83,958 129,461 103,616 10,026 327,061
IREfE CARRYING VALUES
RZFZFE=R=1+—H  At31 March 2020 1,247 - - - 1,247
RI5—NF=F=1+—H At 31 March 2019 1,324 - - - 1,324
18. 58 18. GOODWILL
2020 2019
TFi&rx BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
IRTEME Carrying Value 79,066 79,066
BEMEORMERRZFEENREME19 - Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in note 19.
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19.

20.

HEZEERNR

PARREE 187 Sz PR E D B 2 (B B BB ARRI RS
EEBAERENR - FB0T

19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in note 18 has been
allocated to each individual or group of CGUs as follows:

2020 2019
FiExT T

HK$°000 HK$'000

GPT 2 GP Ind 33,775 33,775
SIEMAPR () BMERAR GP Batteries Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co. Ltd 33,319 33,319
Hith Others 11,972 11,972
BF Total 79,066 79,066

NAEE » AEEREBERSRETTN A EET
BERR - BERETAREARRIZSE(CE
—NE NEE) NEFHMBBEER LS REY
RE2T%ZEA40%(ZF—NEF + -0.5%%F9.3% )
DUFIREI13.9% B 189%(ZF—N4F 1 123% =
15.8% )5t& -

BRESELEMW AN SEUEAEESE -
EREETECEEZERNFZRAZFEZNEE 15
REPEFBREETHNERES - EHE®
PR BRI & AT el B R E B2 R BLRT
TRENRSEL B BERRETEEX -
BRFATERRID - EXRBENEET NS
EZ DU R ER S FAEI IS AR L TRR - A
AEEREENIZRABEENRSELEM
BEFELERBEMSRERAMELZEE
RENBELABECRERASREEAE - 2
BRBEMELERRZ PERASEAREESHA
SEARRERUERSEEEMNRAEBBR
AUYEIEER - FI A — S R RE

RBE_B—HNE=A=+—HILER  EHR
RREHST B ENE  RLRERHSE
S B BB BT B A 23,000,000
BT o WERCERTSRSEL BANEER
BETEHR, -

During the year, the Group performed impairment review for goodwill, based
on cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets of each of
the CGUs for the next 1 to 5 years (2019: 1 to 5 years) with reference to annual
growth rate ranging from 2.7% to 4.0% (2019: -0.5% to 9.3%) by using the
discount rate ranging from 13.9% to 18.9% (2019: 12.3% to 15.8%).

The recoverable amount of each of the CGUs has been determined on the basis
of value in use calculation. The key factors for the value in use calculation are
discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to revenue and direct costs
during the year. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. The growth rate is based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in revenue and direct cost are based on past practices and expectations
of future changes in the market. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations included budgeted sales and gross margins and their related
cash inflow and outflow patterns, estimated based on the CGUs' historical
performance and management’s expectation of the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable
amount of the CGUs thus no further impairment would be recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2019 , the directors had consequently
determined impairment of goodwill directly related to CGU of Eastern Europe
marketing and distribution network (“EE CGU") amounting to HK$23,000,000,
which attributable to the slowdown of batteries business in Eastern Europe
market. No other write-down of the assets of EE CGU was considered
necessary.

FEIRENFEYLERIE 20. NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
TiEx FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEMER (HEta) Variable-rate loan receivable (Note a)
FE—FUEERER=F In more than one year but not more than
three years 36,985 -
IERIRB B (FiFEb) Early relocation subsidy (Note b) 46,407 -
83,392 -
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FaiRBMEE@

Year ended 31 March 2020
20. FEiRENFEYSBRIE ()

Mt

BE_S_FF-_A=1t—RALFE

20. NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

@) EWEREHENMNKE=F N_BE_ZTF=A (@) The loan receivable was advanced to a third party and carries interests at prevailing

=+—HERRITHGEANK 5% E - WRZF
T=HARREE - BEZSRASEREAWBA
AMEER - BETR_FE=A=1t—HILFEN
FEWE SR B ST A B R3S ©

ZE=TTREEZN B AR PRSI ABRER
HOIEAR

(b) IRAIMCER BN R AEE L H AR RN TR (b)

YL £ 10 A B EE T A R B Y IR B REE T IR RIS AR
WET BRI AEENHE (W) - 5%
IR — SR WIS 7R IE M B FE MR
HeBEF_FSF=A=+—HILFE B
BAB R E T AR A AR MIRESS ©

market rates of 5.5% per annum at 31 March 2020 and is repayable in June 2023.
That third party is a shareholder of an insignificant subsidiary of the Group. Details of
impairment assessment of loan receivable for the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out
in Note 35.

That party pledged its interest in that subsidiary as a security for the loan receivable.

Early relocation subsidy represented the compensation offered by the buyer for the
early handover the control of the factory due to the disposal of certain land and
building of industrial complex located in Huizhou, PRC (see note 8). The amount
will be received after one year and classified as non-current. Details of impairment
assessment of the early relocation subsidy for the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out
in Note 35.

21. 78 21. INVENTORIES
2020 2019
TFi&x Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Raw materials 240,310 257,336
G Work in progress 277,242 312,334
£yt Finished goods 396,605 486,452
914,157 1,056,122

22. EWEHRREMENEIRIER AN KA

FEERTREEZEFEEY  —RA=TRE
—BHtTRAE - BREFRLEBRER G0RE
SEIREE) RRR PN REREERZRER

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

The Group allows its trade customers with credit periods normally ranging from
30 days to 120 days. The following is an ageing of trade and bills receivables,
net of allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice date at the

2T end of the reporting period:
2020 2019
FERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFSHZEWSHRRER Trade and bills receivables from contracts
with customers
0-60K 0-60 days 580,168 681,073
61-90K 61-90 days 81,639 83,477
HBIBI0OK Over 90 days 149,259 164,579
811,066 929,129
HithEUWERIE ~ 2 RIENFRIE (FEL) Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments (note) 420,893 372,227
1,231,959 1,301,356
B IERENES Less: Non-current portion of deposits
BEEYXE  BMEXKEBEIIZNzZS Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment (15,049) (2,158)
FERBEeREe Non-current rental deposits (11,037) (10,822)
(26,086) (12,980)
1,205,873 1,288,376

M SBEFEREAMHERRIE - TKREHE
i FANBEZE—ERENEARDNDERS
2 FE U BE (8 £ 3554,983,00008 7T (ZF—H4F ¢
58,739,000/ 7T ) ©
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expenses and the compensation receivable for relocation of property of a PRC
subsidiary amounting to HK$54,983,000 (2019: HK$58,739,000).



22.

23.

FEMS S TR EL At FE UK AR TR R TR 3K 18 ()

ENMESRENERNEREBYBERELENSE
1658 P HIRE - BRI IEHINME2 -

REMEFH > ARESETETF ZERIF
HARTERAELEREEH - B EERAFE
mEZEWESRAEMEWIREERR - 512
[E B AR B IS ARACRE 2 FEUT & 0 e ELAB UL
ReERRY -

RIB-FFE=ZA=+—H  NEBENEWRER
42 B HR ) 4 BR THT 4818 223,857,000 7T (5
— LAt 234,925,0005 70) AU FE W BR 7k 0 S5 Lk
FEUWIRFNRE BB - TANESRD B
65,369,000 7T (ZF—4F : 68,777,000/ 7T)
EBHIORKERNE @ RIEELERFNWRIE
MM BEES AR ERREL -

M ET 3R Ky A FE R TE RO R E AT 2 B A B
££35 ¢

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Rental deposits paid were adjusted upon the initial application of HKFRS 16.
Details of the adjustments are set out in note 2.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will internally assess the
credit quality of the potential customer and define appropriate credit limits.
The management also closely monitors the credit policy of trade and other
receivables and considers the trade and other receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired to be of good credit quality.

As at 31 March 2020, included in the Group's trade receivables balances
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$223,857,000 (2019:
HK$234,925,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past
due balances, HK$65,369,000 (2019: HK$68,777,000) has been past due 90
days or more and is not considered as in default based on good repayment
records and the financial background for those customers.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are set out in
note 35.

TEEMTIA 23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2020 2019
TFiEx FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
fTE=mEE Derivative financial assets
IMNERERAH Foreign currency forward contracts - 87
fTE=mas Derivative financial liabilities
SNSRI R Foreign currency forward contracts 2,594 80
MZERHEK Interest rate swap contracts 3,927 2,065
FmERAEH Forward commodity contracts 33 -
6,554 2,145
RAMBIREI SR Amount shown in the consolidated financial statements as:
2020 2019
TiEx FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MEBNE Current assets - 87
mENEE Current liabilities 6,554 80
EnEEE Non-current liabilities - 2,065
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
FaiRBMEE@

Year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE_S
23. fTE:MTIE @)

TRFZR=t—HLEFE
23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

SRS (REIEE) Foreign currency forward contracts (current assets)

AEESGF] T ETIIMNERBEHNEEAREFENI The Group entered into several currency foreword foreign exchange contracts
R o to manage the Group's exchange rate exposures.

R_E-NEF=ZA=1+—H At 31 March 2019

BR=E )] =) RIRE

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate

£ H2,000,000355% “F-NFMANR %/ AR6.730

Sell United States dollars (“USD"”) 2,000,000 08.04.2019 USD/RMB 6.730

#116,000,000%7T - NAFNAZ+=H ¥t/ AR#6.730
Sell USD6,000,000 23.04.2019 USD/RMB6.730
SrEREIEH GREIE(E) Foreign currency forward contracts (current liabilities)

At 31 March 2020
Major terms of foreign currency forward contracts are as follows:

R-E-_EF=F=+-H
INEIR AT BT ¢

BEEEH EEAE RIRE

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate
43,000,000 7T “ERTEFENB+TH %t/ AR#6.9182
Sell USD3,000,000 07.04.2020 USD/RMB6.9182
FH2,500,0003 7T TERTFFNAZ+H %t/ ANK#6.9206
Sell USD2,500,000 20.04.2020 USD/RMB6.9206
2,000,000 7T FTHFENF -+ hH %5t/ AR#6.9451
Sell USD2,000,000 29.04.2020 USD/RMB6.9451

#12,000,000%7T
Sell USD2,000,000

& 1H2,000,0003 5T
Sell USD2,000,000

#12,000,000%7T
Sell USD2,000,000

& 1H2,000,000% 7T
Sell USD2,000,000

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

“FCEFWAZAAA

29.04.2020

“FRFWAZTAH

29.04.2020

“FCEFWAZAAA

29.04.2020

“FCRFRAZTAA

29.05.2020

=7t/ AR#6.9045
USD/RMB6.9045

=70 ANRE7.0224
USD/RMB7.0224

=7t/ AR#6.9200
USD/RMB6.9200

%=t/ AR#7.0040
USD/RMB7.0040



23. fTEEmMIE =)

MRS R (REIBME)
B_E-NFZF=1+—H

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Foreign currency forward contracts (current liabilities)
At 31 March 2019

BEEEH )] =) RiAE

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate
43,000,000 7T B NENB=+H =5,/ AR#6.7015
Sell USD3,000,000 30.04.2019 USD/RMB6.7015

& 15,000,000 7T “E-NFNB=1H =70/ ANR#6.7432
Sell USD5,000,000 30.04.2019 USD/RMB6.7432
42,000,000 7T B NENB=+H =5t/ AR#6.7180
Sell USD2,000,000 30.04.2019 USD/RMB6.7180

& 1+2,000,00037¢C —E-NERA=1+—H %=t/ AR#6.7000

Sell USD2,000,000

& +5,000,0005<7T
Sell USD5,000,000

& +3,000,000%7T
Sell USD3,000,000

& +3,000,0005<7T
Sell USD3,000,000

& 13,000,0003 7T
Sell USD3,000,000

& 1+4,000,0003%7C
Sell USD4,000,000

MIREREHPZFIELREH
AEFHEAERITI A REHEN - BBHT
B REIR S E AR 0 A BRI T2 AT I DY
BRITEFCRENEBRREERE - ZFH
W2 BRI R AP RITER R —
BBEBEIRITERCASE  BERFIEIE
BER) - EERRAXEHANBESREIP LT
8 RN EEEEZELARRESRY
HITE -

HhRE A R EES v RERARME2ES
BoBME_S_ZFE=RA=1+—HILEEE"
DBR&Rh e Eh T Az AFEESERE
2,078,000/ 7T (ZF—J14F * 2,065,00057T) B
REMEEMBSERLNE P EERNRT - EF
TEHA REHEMME RIS R R RE R Z AR
HHEARE OB -

31.05.2019

“E-NFAR=T—H
31.05.2019

—S-AERA=H—A
31.05.2019

—E-NEAATHNHE
28.06.2019

—E-NEARAZTAR
28.06.2019

ZE-NEARAZTR
28.06.2019

USD/RMB6.7000

=70/ AR156.7475
USD/RMB6.7475

=5t/ AR#6.7115
USD/RMB6.7115

=7 AR156.7217
USD/RMB6.7217

=70 AR156.7245
USD/RMB6.7245

=7t/ AR#6.7328
USD/RMB6.7328

Interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges

The Group entered into interest rate swap contracts with the commercial bank
to minimise its exposure to cash flow changes of its floating-rate Singapore
dollars bank loan from bank by swapping floating interest rates to fixed interest
rates. The terms of this contracts were negotiated to match with those of
the hedged bank loan with the same notional amount to principal amount
of bank loan, currency and interest rate index. The directors consider that
the interest rate swap contracts are highly effective hedging instruments and
have designated them as cash flow hedging instruments for hedge accounting
purpose.

The hedges were highly effective in hedging cash flow exposure to interest rate
movements. Fair value change on hedging instrument in cash flow hedge of loss
of HK$2,078,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$2,065,000)
have been recognised in OCl and accumulated in hedging reserve. The directors
expected the accumulated sum is to be released to profit or loss at various dates
in the coming maturity periods after the reporting period.
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SaIREMEEm)

Year ended 31 March 2020
23.

fTEEMIR =

MREFREHPZFIEEHEHN @
NEERRLIE S MBI 2 K=
EHRFINT

BE_F_FF-AZ+-HLFE
23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges (continuea)
The major terms of the interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

WBZE_FF=F=1+—H At 31 March 2020

BR=E EIEAH IREER XAER
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
17,400,00057 04T ("4 N3 1) T -HFRAZFWA HTINE T =18 B s EAR R+

Singapore dollars (“SGD") 17,400,000 24.5.2021 3-month SGD$ SOR* 2.155%
17,400,0007 03 7T BT -FRAZTMA HThNE T =18 A FE A R+
SGD17,400,000 24.5.2021 3-month SGD$ SOR* 2.270%
17,400,00037 h03E 7T B -FRAZ+MA HNBTT=18 B = B FIZ=*
SGD17,400,000 24.5.2021 3-month SGD$ SOR* 2.110%
KRZE—NF=F=+—H At 31 March 2019

BR=E )] =] IREER ZHNER
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
24,600,000 M3 TT B -FRAZTMA HTNE T =18 A FE A
SGD24,600,000 24.05.2021 3-month SGD SOR* 2.155%
24,600,000%T hN3Z 7T B -FRAZ+MA HNBTT=18 B = B FIZ=*
SGD24,600,000 24.05.2021 3-month SGD SOR* 2.270%
24,600,000 hN3E 7T T -HFRAZFWA BT =18 7 3w A FI=*
SGD24,600,000 24.05.2021 3-month SGD SOR* 2.110%

* AR BRI *  SOR represents Swap Offer Rate.

HRIERSH Forward commodity contracts

AEEEAAMERSNREEEFEMRHER K
BERmMER #E_F_FF=A=+—H"
BLAKNERGEINT

The Group uses commodity forward contracts to manage the risk arising from
price fluctuation of its raw material. As at 31 March 2020, major terms of these
contracts were as follows:

HE (AN)
=L A& Quantity EIEAE EmiEHERE
Currency Commodity (in metric tonnes) Maturity Commodity forward price
e 2 20 “FCFFT”"RA—H S/AME11,6955TT
usD Nickel 1.12.2020 USD11,695/metric tonne
eSS 8 20 _F_—HF—R—H BAWE11,7105TT
usb Nickel 1.1.2021 USD11,710/metric tonne

24, $RITHTE FRRIRE 24. BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND CASH

REFFEZRTHEE  GaESBERES Bank balances, deposits and cash held by the Group comprising cash and
A=A TEHEHRTERUER short-term bank deposits with original maturity of three months or less which
#*0.001% £ 3.00%(ZF— 14 : 0.001% &E carry interests ranging from 0.001% to 3.00% (2019: 0.001% to 3.25%) per
3.25% ) BWERA & » annum.
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25. AEAHFLHESE 25. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

THTT
HK$'000

RIE—\FMA—H At 1 April 2018 55,783

=gk Currency realignment (331)
R -~ BERZEERSE (FE13) Reclassified from property, plant and equipment (note 13) 176,627
HE Disposals (35,586)
RIZ—NF=A=1+—H At 31 March 2019 196,493
HikaR Currency realignment (2,254)
HE Disposals (150,854)
NIZTZHF=A=+—H At 31 March 2020 43,385

REE_ZF-N\E=A=+—HIFE  X&EF
éﬁiz%“* EHIMEEWE  HERPEEMNAL
AR EA45,328,0008 Ty BTt R EE
Ko R B N BR T {45 10,455,000 T2 18 &
ME N_B—NE=A=1+—HIHHEER
B%  BRTEI{E /35,586,000 7 - BHERZNE
EIF-NEFE=A=1T—HIFEELILE Kx&
B 1 227211 B RAERD B E FISRER T (519,866,000
I T AR AR BN 2 0 S R ) R 3 &
ME - N_STFF=A=+—H » AEEEK
BB — (B E S TRIER S RTE— A5
BRHE °

REREZSE-—NEZA=+—HILEEE A&
BB FE=E N EERS  HERKEA
#%176,627,0008 A T MREE - RF
—NEF=ZA=+—H BRAEEERTEL &
It R=ZF—-NF=B=1+—8" V%EEW§
FIMERFRFHELE - NEE_S”_THF=
AB=t—HIFE - Eﬁ%%ﬁﬁwq&4mo
B ETEMEEE GHEZ2EWES) - R
STEF=—A=+—H  HREIEH—FRT
B HERBRTE{E 423,830,000 702 W2 D58
RENEEE  WEICERIEN_FT_FTEXA
SER °

REVFEN_F—NF=A=1T—"RAE"F"F
F=R=1—BNAFEREREE N ETME
BB BEMAEMT - KATHEREBERA
AfE - ZSHEMEEGNER N HEEI
[ FIR AR AVARER -

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group entered into sale and
purchase agreements with independent third parties to dispose of certain
land and building located in Huizhou, PRC and Taiwan with carrying amount
of HK$45,328,000 and investment properties located in Huizhou, PRC with
carrying amount of HK$10,455,000. Part of the disposals have been completed
with the carrying amount of HK$35,586,000 during the year ended 31 March
2019. As at 31 March 2019, the remaining carrying amount of certain land
and building and investment properties of HK$19,866,000 located in Huizhou
PRC, were in negotiation with potential buyers after the termination of the
disposal agreement during the financial year ended 31 March 2019. As at 31
March 2020, the Group has identified another potential buyers with ongoing
negotiation and expected to complete the disposal within one year.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group entered into sale and
purchase agreements with independent third parties to dispose of another
certain of land and building located in Huizhou, PRC with the carrying amount
of HK$176,627,000. The disposals have not been completed as at 31 March
2019 and therefore were reclassified as “assets classified as held for sale” as
at 31 March 2019. During the year ended 31 March 2020, certain land and
building with the carrying amount of HK$150,854,000 were disposed (see note
8). As at 31 March 2020, the remaining carrying amount of HK$23,830,000 are
classified as assets held for sale since the handover is expected to be completed
within one year. In June 2020, the handover has been completed.

The fair values of investment properties at the years ended 31 March 2019
and 31 March 2020 were valued by RHL Appraisal Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group. The valuers have
appropriate qualifications and experiences in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations.
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FaiRBMEE@

Year ended 31 March 2020
25. HEAGSHEEE »)

BE_S_FF-_A=1t—RALFE

25. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

TREHGHREVEATENFNEENER
(LEZRAT RS ESM AR - WA AFE
SFERATEFERAZSBNIBREEESAAN
FEBR(1E38R) -

The following table gives information about how the fair values of the
investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

RFEHBERRRA -
FEERERENS FAEEHABEE
Investment properties held {H BRI RFEZRAR
by the Group in the ATEER RIEGBARE EENTBRHANE Relationship
consolidated statement AFEEE Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable  of unobservable
of financial position Fair value assets as at hierarchy  and key input(s) input(s) inputs to fair value
2020 2019
FiEn FEn
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEBENER EE EERE HECZIZF-A=T— MREBEELIKEY
BYHRER Hib STHANER K REVEATEEEX
AmsEREEEE &
et R KA MBI RER
(BIANAERE EB R A
%) 8FHKL3BIARE
22435 \NR M (HER2,555
BTE26625TT)(CFN
FEFAK2268ARER
231TARE (812,649
TLE2,69957T)) ¢
Factory building and warehouse in 12,944 11,800 Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using A significant increase
the PRC with price per square metre  market direct comparable and  of input would result
taking into account of location  in significant increase
and other individual factors ~in fair value to the
such as road frontage, size of  investment property.
property etc., which is ranged
from RMB2,337 to RMB2,435
(equivalent to HK$2,555 to
HK$2,662) per square meter
for the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019: RMB2,268 to
RMB2,311 (equivalent to
HK$2,649 to HK$2,699).
MARFE - BE3BRMMEBANE - There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

T ARBZREYENATER » AEEE
AR ABREmISEIR - XS 1 ENEA
HENBERT AEEREE=SEERMGEM
RAEBECREDFETHE - RREPEE
B FEEERERAERINSHEMREZEF
RN TR P A E BT S BB 2R AN S 3 AR A
ERECARE - AEEREEETRIRASE
2N 0 BRI R s R B SEE HREN
WA » BARBBISE2REAR - REBKRA
HipfEdly - EhBRE3RBA - EEEN
AHERBERRBE - HRENNRRA S MEER
& - SRICHRZNEF I KEREMRE
SREAEEEYE CNTE -
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In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are
not available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation of the Group’s investment properties. At the end of each reporting
period, the management of the Group works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first
consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived observable
quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the
Group will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there
is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to directors. Any changes in the price per square metre with
reference to recent transactions will affect the fair value of the investment
properties of the Group.
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EMREREARSHERE

ENIRIEZREZARNBREREET B ZRE DT
LU

26. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The following is the ageing of creditors presented based on the invoice date at

the end of the reporting period:

2020 2019
TFi&x T
HK$'000 HK$'000

FETERR Trade creditors
0-60Kk 0-60 days 648,813 696,145
61-90K 61-90 days 82,176 109,085
HBIBIOR Over 90 days 66,342 70,125
797,331 875,355
HifERERER () Other payables and accrued charges (note) 505,918 692,509
1,303,249 1,567,864

HBEEmNFIEERRC0E120K ©

st - S|P ERBERMCERST - —RPERBEA
A EMETANRIA - RBEARE R EE
B -

RIF-\FHOA—H  &8&E/35371,000
BT °

BHEBEETBRAREFFHIE - NAREHIREK
RIflz &X B ERRINE 215,835,000 7T
(Z=F—NE :35,371,000%7T) ©

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 days to 120 days.

Note: The amount mainly includes accrual for operating expenses, receipt in advance from
sales of property of a PRC subsidiary, provision for relocation expenses and other tax

payables.

As at 1 April 2018, contract liabilities amounted to HK$35,371,000.

Contract liabilities are mainly advance payment received from customers. The
amount of revenue recognised in the current reporting period which relates to
brought-forward contract liabilities is HK$15,835,000 (2019: HK$35,371,000).

AEBFINEMEERZEDRAELEHNES -
8 B S A R R BRI (5 3R R R 4.00% 2
7.00%

HEEEARNEEaE A EEREIRRES
A -

. HEaE 27. LEASE LIABILITIES
2020
Fi&x
HK$'000
EfEHEaE Lease liabilities payable:
—FREIE Within one year 61,803
B F BN Within a period of more than one year but not more than
two years 48,281
BEMEE NS AE Within a period of more than two years but not more than
five years 45,352
BEAE Within a period of more than five years 935
156,371
B 12 A ARBESIARE B Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months shown
under current liabilities 61,803
1218 B EEIATIAEREI &E Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown under
non-current liabilities 94,568

No extension options are included in any of the lease agreements entered by the
Group. The incremental borrowing rates applied by the relevant group entities

range from 4.00% to 7.00%.

Lease liabilities that are denominated in currencies which are same as the

functional currencies of the relevant group entities.
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Year ended 31 March 2020 B ZE_ZS _FF=FA=+—HIFE

28. BATFHERE 28. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
RIEHESE
BEMZIRE
RIEZEFEN Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2019 2019
BT F#ET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FRNEIH Within one year 1,438 1,266
BB —FERNATF Within a period of more than one year but
not more than five years 3,652 3,269
5,090 4,535
B KRR Less: Future finance charges (555) -
HEEFCRE Present value of lease obligations 4,535 4,535
B —EFERNEHSIARE &G Less: Amount due within one year shown
under current liabilities (1,266)
—FREERIIAFEREEE Amount due after one year shown under

non-current liabilities 3,269

NIB—NE=ZA=+—H  AEEYEHESE
THREMZE ~ BELEE - BEHEFHER
F3ESEF - FEXEEM2.34%ZE5.50% © FTE
HEHLEEERAEE -

As at 31 March 2019, it was the Group’s policy to lease certain of its property,
plant and equipment under finance leases. The finance leases were negotiated
for a lease term from 3 to 5 years. Interest rates were charged at the range from
2.34% to 5.50% per annum. All leases were on a fixed repayment basis.

29. SRITHH - BRERREMERR 29. BANK LOANS, IMPORT AND OTHER LOANS

2020 2019
TFi&x Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT B B ED Current portion of unsecured bank and
(M45E30) other loans (see note 30) 294,497 870,543
EIERIRITERNEEEE Unsecured short-term bank loans and
GES) import loans (note) 1,665,113 1,386,561
AN ER SRR MEZREEN Short-term portion of bank loans that are
SRITEF I HAER M (FI5E30) repayable on demand due to breach of loan
covenants (see note 30) 426,148 -
AN ER EFERMEERERN Long-term portion of bank loans that are
IRITER REAERM (MI5E30) repayable on demand due to breach of
loan covenants (see note 30) 708,587 -
EIERRE SR ERG0 Current portion of secured motor vehicle loan 181 -
3,094,526 2,257,104

Mt ©  AEEZEIERRITERREEREELITEF Note:
RIWEF S - FR - FBIRERITER KR
HEECBRERNREEM2.28%%6.90%(—

F—4F 1 2.30%%E6.05% ) ©

The unsecured short-term bank loans and import loans of the Group are arranged
at floating rates. The effective interest rate of unsecured short-term bank loans
and import loans during the year ranged from 2.28% to 6.90% (2019: 2.30% to
6.05%) per annum.
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30. SRITREME 30. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

2020 2019
TiEnx T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FUEHRITEREN TIIFERNEE The unsecured bank and other loans are
repayable*:
—FR Within one year 1,429,232 870,543
BB — e Within a period of more than one year but
not exceeding two years 172,880 718,228
BIBMEBENETF Within a period of more than two years but
not exceeding five years 178,117 449,399
EIEMREEHREN N FRREERE The secured motor vehicle loan is repayable*:
—FRA Within one year 181 -
BB —FEERNAmFE Within a period of more than one year but not
exceeding two years 190 -
BBMEENE AT Within a period of more than two years but not
exceeding five years 16 -
1,780,616 2,038,170
B —EREIEZIAREIEE (FIEE29) Less: Amount due within one year shown under
current liabilities (see note 29) (294,497) (870,543)
BN ER EFERMEERERN Short-term portion of bank loans that are
SRITEFZIEHREMD (FF5E29) repayable on demand due to breach of
loan covenants (see note 29) (426,148) -
BN ER SRR MEERERN Long-term portion of bank loans that are
RITEN (F=E29) repayable on demand due to breach of
loan covenants (see note 29) (708,587) -
EIERE G HIEMD Current portion of secured motor
vehicle loan (181) -
351,203 1,167,627

* ENSREERERMETRENREERDY -

RITLREAMER AT EER - AEEZRITER
NERENREHE (EHEFT 2FREE) H
3.07%ZE6.52%(—F—N4F 2.65%%6.00% ) °

RIZRFE=A=+—0 REFHEAXTEE
A ERGH > AREREE T RELEM I HRR
(BAKENERIMBENEE—F_FF=R
=+—AFEILETHE) AEERERZY
EETHBRAARER R EENFE(TRE)

HRR_E_BFE=A=+t—AHARNERE
= Ak AEFEIRRERERENT _ERR
EENZEEE NG #ER3426,000,0005%5 7T
ER B —F=R=1+—HREBRNSZE
2R #AER4) 709,000,000 7T  #HIA—4F
NEEBITER BECELEMERRNLER
WERSREFEE R BIEE29)

RIB_EF=ZA=+—HZRBEEERAY
BWEEERME  NEESE1E36,000,000
BTN EERANESEESHEEGRT
1,072,000,0008 TR EE » WIBHKE—F
WEIZEEEHRAER T 27,000,000 TTHIE =
£ AAREFME  BRANHMESKEA
BRASHAEBNRFECSEREE

*  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

Bank and other loans are arranged at floating rates. The ranges of effective
interest rates of bank loans (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) on
the Group’s bank and other loans are from 3.07% to 6.52% (2019: 2.65% to
6.00%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group could not comply with certain financial
covenants (computed based on the Group’s borrowings and earnings) related
to the Affected Loans for the test period ended 31 March 2020. The Group has
requested for the consents from lenders of the Affected Loans to waive such
non-compliance (the “Consents”).

As the Consents were not in place as at 31 March 2020, the short-term
portion of the Affected Loans amounted to HK$426 million which was
originally scheduled to be repaid within twelve months from end of the
reporting period, and the long-term portion of the Affected Loans amounted
to HK$709 million which was originally scheduled to be repaid after 31
March 2021, were presented under bank loans, import and other loans
repayable within one year and repayable on demand as disclosed in note 29.

Subsequent to 31 March 2020 and up to the date of approval for issuance of
these consolidated financial statements, the Group has repaid HK$36 million
of the Affected Loans and received Consents in respect of HK$1,072 million of
the Affected Loans. The Consents in respect of the remaining HK$27 million
of the Affected Loans are expected to be received soon. The directors of the
Company believe that adequate alternative sources of finance are available
to ensure that there is no threat to the continuing operations of the Group.
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Year ended 31 March 2020 #HBZE_F_FHF=—A=+—HLEEE
31. iEERIE 31. DEFERRED TAXATION

124

FEBCHRIDELHREENEEZLENT ¢

Movements in the deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group are
as follows:

RARER
BRERNE pa il
ZIEMRE  Withholding

REME  Accelerated tax on
Investment tax  undistributed RIEEE Hitr At
properties  depreciation profits Tax losses Others Total
TR TR TR TR TR TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERIEEE Deferred tax assets

RZE-/\ENE—H At 1 April 2018 - 8,862 - 2,388 10,639 21,889
gHRE Currency realignment - (842) - (210) 18 (934)
RERFEA (H15) Credit (charge) to profit or loss - 1,778 - 694 (939) 1,533
RIZ-NE=A=1+—H At 31 March 2019 - 9,798 - 2872 93818 22,488
B Currency realignment - (485) - 1n) (397) (993)
PEZPEA (H15) Credit (charge) to profit or loss - 735 - (1,290) 73) (628)
RZE_SF=B=1-H At 31 March 2020 - 10,048 - 1,471 9,348 20,867

BERIESE Deferred tax liabilities
RZ5-/\EmWE—-H At 1 April 2018 909 3,577 17,883 - - 22,369
SRR Currency realignment - 31 - - - 31
RERPNRGIA) Charge (credit) to profit or loss - 2,994 (1,296) - - 1,698
RIF-NE=A=1-H At31 March 2019 909 6,602 16,587 - - 24,08
g Currency realignment - (46) - - (595) (641)
PERF GIA) 1k (Credit) charge to profit or loss - (1,779) 3,886 - 15,498 17,605
RZBE_55=B=1-H At 31 March 2020 909 4,777 20,473 - 14,903 41,062

R_BE_FE=ZA=+—H AE£EBEE
1,545,309,00077T (—F—J14F : 1,390,452,000
B o RERAREBEAN FEERRZE
A o BHIEIBAERERIEILFIEE ES,915,000
BT (ZF— A 1 17,406,000 7T) B
RRBYHEF EIETER  WESKRIEEENRE
1,536,394,000/7T (—F—J14F : 1,373,046,000
BIT) EHIELE RIS ERR -

RIFPFEARLMBECEERE  AEEER
“EBE\FE-A—HERERTECZRBATZ
EIRAL SRR A D EC A ST RIS - AEE
TR ERES _FF/N\F—F —BlEAEERAF
e ETHBARMSENEERHERER
REFRIERE  FAAEEEZHEHEZERD
B REAEBRNER A RARELD - R
FETEBF=F=1+—H AEERREEZH
ENBEETHRHREZHEBARZ R EFE
2 BIL20% K2 5% RIT R AE IR AE R B B AR 5B s
20,473,000 70(ZF— N4 :16,587,000/87T) °
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At 31 March 2020, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$1,545,309,000 (2019:
HK$1,390,452,000) available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$8,915,000 (2019: HK$17,406,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$1,536,394,000 (2019: HK$1,373,046,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profits streams.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, a withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary difference attributable
to profits earned by the Group’s certain PRC subsidiaries since 1 January 2008
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. As at 31 March 2020, the amount of HK$20,473,000 (2019:
HK$16,587,000) represented the deferred taxation on undistributed profits arising
from a Taiwan associate being recognised at a taxation of 20% and undistributed
profits arising from certain PRC subsidiaries being recognised at a taxation of 5%,
respectively.
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33.

34,

EH%E 32. PROVISION FOR RESTRUCTURING
2020 2019
Figx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REHRENTAT Analysed for reporting purposes as:
FERBEE Non-current liabilities 99,810 -
SR

Provision for
Restructuring

F#ERT

HK$°000

AE—NFNA—H At 1 April 2019 _
FNBIMESS Addition provision in the year 99,810
NZERZRF=A=+—H At 31 March 2020 99,810

FABEAMBRRENPESZEZR RS
BB — B B — B AT 2 A - EHRA
89,810,000 % 7T 5% 10,000,000 3 7T 23 Bl & 1 =t
ZREEERRBEA - ZFUEEHN—EEE
}Eﬁo

The provision for restructuring relates to the estimated cost of relocation of
parts of its operations from Huizhou, PRC (see Note 8) to Thailand and set up
another factory in a new location in PRC. The restructuring costs are related to
estimated compensation to employees of HKD89,810,000 and relocation cost
of HKD 10,000,000 respectively. The amount is expected to be utilised after one
year.

(2 S 33. SHARE CAPITAL
Vg 1=
Number of
shares
+ T
‘000 HK$'000
ERTRHBEL B Issued and fully paid ordinary shares:
PRZ5—/\FmLNA—A - At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and
B-NF=A=1T—HK 31 March 2020
TERTFF=B=1—H 784,693 921,014

REEZS-NFR-FFE=A=+t—HL
MEFER > AATZERIT IR EAIN ER

EfEBEE

RAREREER  DERAEEE LH%—H;H—;
BEERERE  WEBRLEBRRALE
RYB ANHRE AR - AEEEZ# Eﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬂﬁ
FEMRFTE

ZIK%ZEZMW%@%E{E%%(E%QE N
29 RR30FTIRER R BRATEIR ~ FIREE MEAETR
K1 &Eﬁﬁ%?ﬂﬂﬁ@&#ﬁﬁﬁ)&ﬁ’&?
B AEBLES (BRFAEREERPATINE
ZEBTRA ~ REBESA MEAMRERE) -

FAREFEMRAEREE - FRERN—E
{ﬁ} ESTREARARLEBHERNFR R
B o AARESRHAREREBNKE - #
TR OO RBRITHEBXELRAE
B DIFEREERERE

34.

There were no changes in the Company’s issued and fully paid share capital in
both years.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to owners
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes bank
loans, import and other loans and bank and other loans disclosed in notes 29
and 30 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits and
other reserve as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

SWTXEEAERAR “F-NE-R°FEER

125



126

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

FaiRBMEE@

Year ended 31 March 2020

BE_S_FF-_A=1t—RALFE

35. EMTH 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
=T EEER Categories of financial instruments
2020 2019
TiE&x Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS ATTEC SRIEE Financial assets at amortised costs
—EWE R K EAEIERIE — Trade and other receivables 931,994 1,049,404
— RS — Dividend receivable 26,723 27,364
—iRITHEF  GRERS — Bank balances, deposits and cash 1,250,672 1,448,715
/NI — Amounts due from associates 7,666 9,883
—IERENENIRIE — Non-current receivables 83,392 -
AT EST AR M2 IR EATAR Equity instruments at FVTOCI 58,413 77,376
2,358,860 2,612,742
TAESRMIR Derivative financial instruments - 87
DU E A RS RIB E Financial liabilities at amortised cost
—FE{TERIE — Creditors 963,808 907,891
—RITER ~ BEEELEHMER — Bank loans, import and other loans 3,094,526 2,257,104
—SR1T B HADEFK — Bank and other loans 351,203 1,167,627
HEaE Lease liabilities 156,371 -
4,565,908 4,332,622
mESRITE Derivative financial instruments 6,554 2,145
ERAREEEERBER Financial risk management objectives and policies

REE ST B FBENSMEABE - 56
R TR EkBETSER (EBRR - FIX
B kEMERRR) EERRIEABESE
B o AADEEE LR IR BURFI BN T X - B
[ 952 5 B B T B T R B e AR AR AT LR B 1A
Bz B ANBRAEZIERR

Details of the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

5 E s Market risk
=g 9= Currency risk

ACRTRELTFE-NF=A=TH A5
ELONE (BRIR A LB AR ZHREES) 5t E S
BEEBEENEEEE  BREEBRERLHE
FEWRIE ~ [EAR S ~ IRITHET ~ B AERE
SERBNEWERIA ~ B IRIE N AMEMIRIA iR
TER  BEEEREMETIIRIT LEAMETR
LU

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities,
representing trade and other receivables, dividend receivable, bank balances,
deposits and cash, non-current receivables, creditors and other payables,
bank loans, import and other loans and bank and other loans denominated in
currencies other than the respective group entities’ functional currencies at 31
March 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

BE aE

Assets Liabilities
2020 2019 2020 2019
Figx FHET TFiEx BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
e usD 302,564 595,678 317,412 255,572
AR RMB 538,198 541,170 264,159 529,716
TN TT SGD 4,339 5,144 7,143 7,074
BT Euro 36,720 50,008 13,022 14,547
881,821 1,192,000 601,736 806,909
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35. EMTH =

EHEAKRSERERIBE @)

TGRS (=)

ErmE g )
BEIMNERRFEEBEREREECEERE
& - BRESLBEEERMNERR  WNRNE
R EH N E AIMNE R o 0 ANEERT R
HRX B RN RO LIEEINER
o BERAAERNELTESRTENKRE
RER R EETBURNEDT -

BREDH

TRFMI EAEBEE T EREER RS
AR P B BIMERY5 %( B — N4 1 5% ) i
IALRA 2 BURE - FRFBITESE TG - [Jit
D ANBIEETABTEKRE) - DAl E=R
REEEEREEBAKRSER  TASEEY
SN SR BBNAIBHNE - MRESTIBE
ERHIEENNEE S WERELREBRE
5%(ZF—NE 5% ) EBIRAE - DT
TR T AR EEE RN EEER%(CF
— N 1 5% ) BT EBRINENEE a8k
STABRERDBRBANEN - K2R - ZE5
EEBAAESEENEERIINEEFF%(CF
—NE 5% ) HEEEERNERNTEE -

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Exposures to foreign currency risks are managed as far as possible by matching
assets and liabilities in the same currency denomination. The management
regularly monitors foreign exchange exposure and considers hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise. In addition, the Group enters
into short-term cross currency swaps and foreign currency forward contracts to
manage certain foreign currency exposure. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group's investments in those derivative financial instruments are insignificant,
therefore, no sensitivity analysis is prepared.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2019: 5%) increase
and decrease in the functional currency of the respective group entities against
the relevant foreign currencies. The analysis excludes the fluctuation between
United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars because Hong Kong dollars are
pegged to United States dollars. The rate mentioned above is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represent management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% (2019: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. The analysis illustrates the impact for a 5% (2019: 5%) strengthening
of the functional currency of the respective group entities against the relevant
foreign currency and a negative number below indicates a decrease in profit
before taxation and vice versa. For a 5% (2019: 5%) weakening of the
functional currency of the respective group entities against the relevant foreign
currency, there would be an equal and opposite effect on the results.

2020 2019

TFiEx FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

AR RMB (13,702) (573)

TN TT SGD 140 96

BRTT Euro (1,185) (1,773)
FIF ez G Interest rate risk

AEEIHBERESHEEEEECFRATE
[

AEEmHRRITHISEFOT B R SRIRIT
Gk GHERMET20/%24) ~ ST RIRITER ~ B
EEREAMETR (FERMEE29) MIRIT R EME
R (FBERME0) ABENRSREBNXER -

REEREFTEBBN IS A LB FIZE
R kot BEEGZIEEERER - AR
WRFEEEE—SEINZFRR -

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to lease liabilities
at fixed interest rates.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its variable-rate
bank balances and deposits at prevailing market deposit rates (see notes 20 and
24), variable-rate bank loans, import and other loans (see note 29), and bank
and other loans (see note 30).

The Group entered into interest rate swaps to mitigate part of the exposure to

interest rate risk, if necessary. In addition, the management will monitor the
situation and consider further hedging such exposure should the need arises.
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Year ended 31 March 2020 B ZE_ZS _FF=FA=+—HIFE

35. EMTH =

=hEREEEEREER @)

MG R (&)

FIFE G (1)
AEBCRESRBNXEREBEPNEEEFAR
SERITERCEBIRITRIZERS © FINERIT
REFEXRBENR LS - SEERE B
et BIRTTAEMC ZIHAHIRESE - AL 2
HRITHMFTAH 2 FIXRARLAERK ©

THBREAT IR ERE T BIRTER
FIEEE REMER « MIRITREAMERE 2
MEREBAELEMEE - ZOMHBREZNRES
AAREESHTER2HRER - S0OEK (ZF
— UV D 50RE) R TRRMERERER
REREER  TRABEEHRNRESHNGET
fly o

BREDT

HEMETR ~ RITER  BEGELEMETRK
IBITERAMER LA TRES0ER (ZFE—NE -
S0EEN)  MATEHMESMETAE  BAEER
BRAE B R R A 18049 17,414,00058 7T (Z
F—ALE A HI017,124,000587T)

R ERmE

AEETRAZREEREN EhlkAES LI
EhEAES CBRAERER - AEEEET—/)
HERERARLETEFRREEEIPILE

)
AR

BRED T
TSR ED T SRS R 2 R E R A
PR B EMEE -

W L RERENER EF TER5%(ZF—
F 5% ) BESGHRHE/IEIN 4 294,000
BIT (ZEF—UF - 8084 575,000/87T) ©

HIELTRABTSNER LA TES%(Z
F—NE 5% ) RESHFHEEFEM B
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate, Singapore Interbank Offered Rate
or Prime Rate arising from the Group’s bank borrowings. The management
considers the Group’s exposure of the short-term bank balances to interest rate
risk is not significant as interest bearing bank balances are within short maturity
period.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for variable-rate loan receivable, bank loans, import and other
loans, and bank and other loans. The analysis is prepared assuming financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

If the interest rate on loan receivable, bank loans, import and other loans and
bank and other loans had been 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit before
taxation would decrease/increase by approximately HK$17,414,000 (2019:
decrease/increase by HK$17,124,000).

Other price risk

The Group is mainly exposed to equity price risk through its investment in listed
equity securities and unlisted equity securities. The Group has a team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on exposure to equity
price risks at the end of the reporting period.

If the price of the listed equity investments had been 5% (2019: 5%) higher/
lower, the investment revaluation reserve will increase/decrease by HK$294,000
(2019: increase/decrease by HK$575,000).

If the price of the unlisted equity securities had been 5% (2019: 5%)
higher/lower, the investment revaluation reserve will increase/decrease by
HK$2,627,000 (2019: increase/decrease by HK$3,294,000).
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, other than those financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum exposure to credit risk,
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group arising from the amount of financial guarantees provided by the
Group is disclosed in note 39. Except the loan receivable pledged by certain
interest in the subsidiary (see note 20), the Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets and financial guarantee contracts.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customer

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the Company have
delegated the management to be responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit rating system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and rating
attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually or based on provision
matrix. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group does not have any significant concentration of credit risk over trade
receivables. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers and
spread across diverse industries.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal
credit rating for its customers. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed
based on provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). Debtors
with credit-impaired with gross carrying amounts of HK$13,000,000 (2019:
HK$10,152,000) as at 31 March 2020 were assessed individually. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group's
different customer base.

For the year ended 31 March 2020:

fEUR
srkiag THEsEE THER S
Gross trade Average {EEIRX Trade
AEE SR Internal credit rating receivables loss rates ECL  receivables
FET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEFEEAR Very low risk* 606,860 0.1% 667 606,193
KBS Low risk 78,936 0.8% 651 78,285
—R Rk Average risk 75,743 3.0% 2,251 73,492
hERR Moderate risk 38,558 23.7% 9,143 29,415
800,097 12,712 787,385

*  NAFE23,681,0005 T2 FEME -

*  Excluded bills receivables amounting to HK$23,681,000.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customer (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2019:

fEUR
=]
Gross  TIESIEE FEHA FEMEF
trade Average {EHIRX Trade
AIREEFER Internal credit rating receivables loss rates ECL receivables
FHET FET FET
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FFRERER* Very low risk* 724,933 0.5% 3,435 721,498
gy Low risk 88,771 0.8% 713 88,058
—A% R B Average risk 84,096 1.5% 1,280 82,816
RS R R Moderate risk 21,870 39.5% 8,644 13,226
919,670 14,072 905,598
*  RNEFE23,531,000/8 T2 FEWE I *  Excluded bills receivables amounting to HK$23,531,000.
BERERAHEER Quiality classification definitions:
IR, RGEFEHRBIEREE - “Very low risk”:  The counterparty has a very low risk of default due to
AR B4 M eE RS strong financial background and a prompt payment
o pattern.
ME=ERR ., RSB HEHNERIE » 715 “Low risk": The counterparty has a low risk of default with strong

T—RRk,

rhEER,

TEEkg,

R REFHE R P AIIER -

EBANKERBHAREE
IE - BEER2EEE -

BB ERE Bk IR E RE
BMERBEREERREY]
IRTERRLIZRERE LT -

BRBETEERREER
& -

TR XRTDER BRI F RN E LR
FMSEA R WRLERN LB 2 BRANLE
BIATSHVRIIEMERF L AR - EREEHER
B DIERBENS ERBERIEBEER R

BT
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“Average risk":

“Moderate risk":

“High risk”:

financial background but occasionally repays after due
dates.

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle
in full.

There have been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition through information developed

internally or external resources.

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been
recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach.

ZHFAHR
2 HPTRER EEEX
EEEX (HREE
(EEEHEE) wE)
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit- et
impaired) impaired) Total
FHBT Tt T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AZF—N\EMA—A (%) As at 1 April 2018 — As restated 18,502 15,061 33,563
BisRE Currency realignment (1,020) (364) (1,384)
R (R 2 FREEE Net impairment loss recognised
(reversed) 2,348 (1,737) 611
FHEERAERIMGERIE Amounts written off as uncollectible (5,758) (2,808) (8,566)
WS- F=A=+—HK As at 31 March 2019 and
“F-NEFENA—H asat 1 April 2019 14,072 10,152 24,224
BisRE Currency realignment (710) (102) (812)
BE_F—NFINA—HEMRZ Changes due to financial instruments
SRITHE recognised as at 1 April 2019:
— A& ERERE — Net impairment loss reversed (2,416) (359) (2,775)
— FHEERBEEIGRIR — Amounts written off as
uncollectible (28) (4,392) (4,420)
EAREETerEE New financial assets originated or
purchased 1,794 7,701 9,495
RIEBE=A=1—H As at 31 March 2020 12,712 13,000 25,712

ERERNRBNAREERARN  EBERE
BAEBWEINZEEMNEBHRRIN—F - B
REBRITZONBTARBITE - BREECT
EBF=A=t—HMNZ-AF=A=+—H
LFFE - AEERZIMEBUREENRNEEEER
RERX o

FERBNEWIRIR
ERERBERANYBEESMELNEREHU
FEWE TR RRATE - (At EIRE SRR
BIREMBIMAEHRAR - RE_F_FF=H
=t—HIFE BEERIRAEEIRBEY
RIEMTAREERATEN » RILRIERIERE
o

B R el
REREMERERR - JPRBH SRS AR
BNTEMEEEAR - EEBCREEREHER
8 BEHEER « LURBIIEHE CIER) - 28
BLI F M Y AT R BB RISTAS - A%
B2 A BRI B SR RS AR E K
T WRBY RS BN ERRRE
K FRBERELIER -

Bills receivables

In determining the ECL for bills receivables, the management has considered
the bills received by the Group are with a maturity period of less than one year
and have been individually assessed based on external rating of relevant banks,
and concluded that for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the credit
inherent in the Group’s outstanding bills receivables is insignificant.

Non-current receivables

The management estimate the estimated loss rates of loan receivable and the
early relocation subsidy based on financial background and historical payments
records of the debtors as well as the fair value of the collateral pledged to the
loan receivable. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the management considers
that the ECL of the Group’s non-current receivables is insignificant and thus no
loss allowance was recognised.

Other receivables, non-current rental deposits and dividend receivable

In determining the ECL for other receivables, non-current rental deposits and
dividend receivable, the management has made periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of these balances, based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also forward-looking information, as appropriate. The
management has considered the consistently low historical default rate in
connection with relevant counterparties, and concluded the credit risk inherent
in these amounts is insignificant and thus no loss allowance was recognised.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Amounts due from associates

As at 31 March 2019 and 2020, for purpose of impairment assessment, the
amounts due from associates is considered to have low credit risk as there has
been no significant increase in the risk of default on the receivables since initial
recognition. Accordingly, for the purpose of impairment assessment for the
asset, the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12m ECL.

In determining the ECL, management has taken into account the financial
position of the associates, adjusted for factors that are specific to the associate
and general economic conditions of the industry in which the associates
operate, in estimating the probability of default as well as the loss upon
default. Management determines the amounts due from associates is subject to
immaterial credit loss and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Bank deposits and bank balances

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances exposed is considered
minimal as such amounts are placed with various banks with good credit ratings
and there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

Financial guarantee contracts
For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount represents the
maximum amount the Group has guaranteed under the respective contracts.

The Group is also exposed to the credit risk in respect of guarantees given to
banks relating to banking facilities utilised by associates (see note 39). The
management periodically reviews financial position of the associates and
considers that the associates are of strong financial strength and the Group has
adequate monitoring procedures to reduce the credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its operations by using a combination of bank and other
loans and equity. Adequate lines of credit are maintained to ensure necessary
liquidity is available when required. The management monitors the liquidity
position of the Group on a periodical basis to ensure the availability of sufficient
liquid funds to meet all obligations. With reference to the existing unutilised
facilities and newly obtained facilities up to the date when the consolidated
financial statements are authorised for issue and after taking into account
of any possible disposal of investments and re-financing arrangements, the
directors of the Company consider the source of liquidity and capital for the
daily operation are sufficient.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are at floating rate, the undiscounted amount is

derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

RIS
#ER
ZIREfE
EMRFa; 7] Carrying
MEFLIFE - o REiiies amount at
Weighted ~ On demand RER RENE Total the end of
average or within Within More than  undiscounted  the reporting
interest rate 1year 2-5 years 5 years cash flows period
TR TR TR TR TR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE_EE=R=1+-H As at 31 March 2020
ERRE Creditors - 963,808 - - 963,808 963,808
BITER  BEGEREMBES  Bank loans, import and other loans
(FHFIX) (variable rates) 382 3,208,983 - - 3,208,983 3,094,526
FREMES (FBFIX) Bank and other loans (variable rates) 3.68 - 364,300 - 364,300 351,203
HEBR Lease liabilities 44 66,985 99,300 938 167,223 156,371
HRERAL () Financial quarantee contracts (note) - 16,335 - - 16,335 -
4,256,111 464,100 938 4,721,149 4,565,908
TETE-5HE Derivatives - net settlement
INEEHREN Foreign currency forward contracts 2,594 - - 2,594 2,594
FlEEA0 Interest rate swap contracts 3927 - - 3927 3927
BRERaN Forward commodity contracts 3 - - 3 3
6,554 - - 6,554 6,554
RZE-NE=B=1-H As at 31 March 2019
FERTIRIE Creditors - 907,891 - - 907,891 907,891
PTER  BEEEREMET  Bank loans, import and other loans
(FEFX) (variable rates) 4.19% 2,368,993 - - 2,368,993 2,257,104
BTRAMER (FHFE) Bank and other loans (variable rates) 4.50% - 1,221,795 - 1,221,795 1,167,627
FIBRERR Obligations under finance leases 3.02% 1438 3,652 - 5,090 4,535
MBEREH () Financial guarantee contracts (note) - 16,538 - - 16,538 -
3,294,860 1,225,447 - 4,520,307 4,337,157
TETE-3HE Derivatives - net settlement
SNEEHRAA Foreign currency forward contracts 80 - - 80 80
FlEEAN Interest rate swap contracts - 2,065 - 2,065 2,065
80 2,065 - 2,145 2,145

Ma : PR BERA TR BEAEE AW EREE
IRBERTHEHSTAARERARB I
ERAFEZBRADE - RREPEER » AEH
BRERA R EFRBER LI HEAZRA -
AT EIRA I EERBURN B R B
BREKREEZEERAMRBIERREZ TR

o

AT EHA R R ELER E RIS B T2 AR
BIAAR - TSR ERT B BEART R -

Note: The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the maximum
amounts the Group could be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty which suffers credit losses on the financial receivables and claims under
the guarantee.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments are subject

to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group determines fair values of
various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

EENATHE FARREABEL

SHEE/ DFERE /HERITR BARE DTHEZER
EHERE DTEER TEGRABERIER Significant Relationship of
Financial assets/ AFE Fair value  Basis of fair value measurement/ unobservable unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key input(s)  input(s) to fair value
2020 2019
Ti#n TAR
HKS$'000  HK§'000
1. DERIATEHARENS Er BAESHATENREERETS (RS TER AEm

BATEN EHRAES

Listed equity securities classified as 5,882 11,490

equity instrument at FVTOC|

2 BERTEERTEMNMNE

EHEN
Foreign currency forward contracts BE
classified as derivative financial Assets
instruments -
&ff
Liabilities
2,594
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87

80

WARE) RABRBRER{ET -

Level 1 The fair value of the equity securities is N/A N/A
estimated by the price quotation available
on the Emerging Market Board in Taiwan,
which does not trade actively.

8 FRRERE - sl NER

ARRERENENPRARERELE
B REERN I RS ESES
BEFS) RANEMER - LERBRE
KRG EERR R R M «

Level 2 Discounted cash flow. N/A N/A

Future cash flows are estimated based on
closing forward price (from observable
forward exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period) and contract forward
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterparties.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

EENFAER FORZRAREE
EREE/ DFERE /HERER BANE RHEZRR
SMERE ATEER FTERABRIER Significant Relationship of
Financial assets/ ATE Fair value  Basis of fair value measurement/ unobservable unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key input(s)  input(s) to fair value
2020 2019
TEn Thx
HK$000 HK$'000
3. HERTESBIEMNTE af B EIR ERESW « NER TER
ki ry (gt (REEH
Bitit) &:i5) RERSRDENEENE (RFERR
TREBERHREL) RETHHE
REREREER CH AR EAE
B ERER (MER)) et -
Interest rate swap contracts Liabilities Liabilities  Level 2 Discounted cash flow. N/A N/A
classified as derivative (under (under
financial instruments hedge hedge Future cash flows are estimated based on
accounting)  accounting) forward interest rates (from observable
3,927 2,065 yield curves at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted interest rates,
discounted at an applicable discount
rate taking into account the credit risk of
the counter-parties and of the Group as
appropriate.
4 HERTESBIANERES aff B EIR ERADM - Em TEm
B
RRRERENRENEER (FEHR
L EEERRESEER) MAES
ER LR RZHFEERRME
REMTE -
Forward commodity contracts Liabilities Liabilities ~ Level 2 Discounted cash flow. N/A N/A
classified as derivative financial 3 -

instruments

Future cash flows are estimated based on
closing price (from observable forward
price of related metals at the end of the
reporting period) and contract forward
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterparties.
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Year ended 31 March 2020
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

HIEFE

EMTEATEE @) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)
IR FEFEZFEEZZHEERZME Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are
BZRFE ) measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)
FAESREAREE
EHEE/ NEEHE /EERITR EENAAESR DFEZER
2HAE DTEESR TERANERIER BARE Relationship of
Financial assets/ AEE Fairvalue  Basis of fair value measurement/ Significant unobservable - unobservable input(s) to
financial liabilities Fairvalueasat  hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key input(s)  input(s) fair value
2020 2019
TEn TEx
HK$'000  HK$'000
5 DIAFEAEMREREZ 2= BEL- BYARNER R SEAANTHERES
BATE SZF=A=t— ATERIES -
BRARMATEERSEFRAAES B SVPHRNER
NIERERET - BRATDNTEER REMSERTELR
EIZERERNRENERARNT BB LHIRMERE
EENATEETEE - fERER (PImEE
B BRS) 5THK
38414 \RHEZE59,188
ARB(RER41,99838
TLE64,71087T)
Equity instruments at FVTOCI 44824 56,141 Level3 Asset-based approach. Price per square meter. The higher the price per
Using market direct square meter, the higher
The fair value of the target company was comparable and taking the fair value.
determined by the asset-based approach into account of location
using the adjusted net asset value. Net and other individual
asset value of the target company was factors such as size,
adjusted through fair value adjustments building facilities,
held by the target company primarily by levels, age of building,
the direct comparison approach. etc., which is ranged
from RMB38,414 to
RMB59,188 (equivalent
to HK$41,998 to
HK$64,710) per square
meter as at 3| March
2020.
6 DATE\E2ENE 2= i ° RZIHRBILTIRE  RZhHRBILTEE
ZIRATR EAELBARMLE . ATERGE -
REMSE  BRECBEBREEEL
AN ATELH EVARCBBLR (& BRENEES  ATEIE
EBEAMGAR  HE - ENS Be
ERMELE  PRBERAIBRAS
ARERMER LR - HEX) Bl
BEERE  TRRZSRENTNT
LIFRE -
Equity instruments at FVTOCI 3,815 5267 Level3 Market approach. The discount of lack of The higher the discount of
marketability and applied  lack of marketability, the
The market approach was used to multiples. lower the fair value.
determine the valuation by the average
estimated values using the following The higher the applied

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

multiples: enterprise value to earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation ratio, enterprise value to
earnings before interest, taxes ratio

and price to earning ratio of selected
comparable listed companies in a similar
business and similar business model and
adjusted for the lack of marketability.

multiples, the higher the
fair value.



35. EMIR @)

EMITEAFEHE @
A FESEZFEFZEMEEREME
EZAFE =)

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

TABREAREE
EHEE/ DFEEE /fHERER EENTTERE RFEZRIE
£RAE DTEESR TERABRIER BARIE Relationship of
Financial assets/ ATE Fair value  Basis of fair value measurement/ Significant unobservable - unobservable input(s) to
financial liabilities Fairvalueasat  hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key input(s)  input(s) fair value
2020 2019
TE#n TEx
HK$'000  HK$'000
7. DATEAEMRELE 2= B EREEENTSE - BREMARBETIRE  RIhSRBEHTNES
BATER - EABHBRARMNEE . ATERME -
REEE:  EREEATRRTHSR
BUMFLARANFEEERTER RELRYS - AFERY
NEMATE - RRAMSE  BERE me
ERATRENMETATNATEN
AEERARANTEEE - FARAY
EEREEBXBLERENEINA
Eig AR ABIE (PXERER
HEHE  PRBERANRTISHR
BRINESLE) ERfbE - URhems
BT TR -
Equity instruments at FVTOC 3,892 4,478 Level3 Combination of asset-based approach and ~ The discount of lack of The higher the discount of

market approach.

The fair value of the target company was
determined by the asset-based approach
using the adjusted net asset value with
adjustments for the lack of marketability.
Net asset value of the target company was
adjusted through fair value adjustments
of each sub-entity held by the target
company primarily by the market
approach using enterprise value to sales
ratio or enterprise value to earnings
before interest, taxes ratio of selected
comparable listed companies in a similar
business and similar business model and
adjusted for the lack of marketability.

marketability and applied
multiples.

SNTEEBBRAD —F-NE_ZT_TEFR

lack of marketabilty, the
lower the fair value.

The higher the applied
multiples, the higher the
fair value.
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35. EMTH = 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

138

EMITEAFEHE )

Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

EHEEERL FEEHER Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets

HUATEEA

HithZ EU

ZBRATH

Equity instruments

at FVTOCI

FHTT

HK$'000

RIF—N\FMHA—H At 1 April 2018 77,542
Loikm Currency realignment @)
STAEM2 KT 8k Fair value loss in OCI (11,652)
RIZ—NF=A=1T—H At 31 March 2019 65,886
=g ke Currency realignment (3,590)
FEAH MR E MR B Fair value loss in OCI (9,765)
RIZFF=RA=1—H At 31 March 2020 52,531

HEih 2K m A BEEN AR SRS E R
NFEFAZEWSEATECIE EHRAES
B A F{E1E59,765,0005E T (ZF— 4 ¢
11,652,000t ) » BEIBAWIIEREBERH
[CESEe- 1

REEZF_FFL_F-NFA=Z+—HIE
FE - APEERZ EREES -

FEEETSRTAUAFEEEYERER
7 - BEHEEERERBEENAEMGERIMGR
FRBARR -

FEFTATE - FEEFNBHEAUHER 2B
AER - BRABVRNEZRNBARER - A%
EEFAERMNSHEMETRRMLE - BEE
HABERINSHEM LABEAERENER -
FHEEHNAESEREGHEGRAMESIZGE
EE) R

AEFZAS BB EREEN T ECTHEERE
BEEZAFE
HiveREENSREENAFELREEN
RREREMN—RABEBENEE - AAQ
AEERRAZESHEEN SR A BLISHEK
RIVIRZ AR B S ATEARAY
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Included in OCl is an amount of HK$9,765,000 (2019: HK$11,652,000) loss
relating to unlisted equity securities classified as equity instruments at FVTOCI
reported as changes of investment revaluation reserve.

There is no transfer between different levels of the fair value hierarchy during
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The management of the Company is responsible
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The management
reports the valuation to the directors of the Company regularly to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with general accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis. The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of these financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
approximate their fair values.



36. iB{KiEFIEHE

AEERBEEEREIMEABESIELRILT —RRA
RN (TRESEE) - RIFREST
&) BEMREWRFHMER - BEIEHTRAE
FREREAEZ5% @ stERESEHRCER
REGAANE LRA30,00085T - H-F—ME
NARBRAER -t BEREERNETRES
FRR -

PBTEEEEME - REFHAFTERBIMEHR
B2YRBENES - MARHREENEMRE
BREEEANSERII BEGEE -

FEERB2EAREENFRESHEE 2 BET
Bz BEEZRETE - AEEEANEHAE
THMETERLFERETR . MERHBUEA
EARKERRLGIRRE TZRIKERNEE -
BRI AEENERE T o BESUR
FERBRRAGEEMEE -

tESh - RATED N EE R RELINZ BN
AR Z2EMEMBEERERILPRAES
& ZESE AN TEHRRGE

RBE"BR"SF-A=+t—HILEE F£H
X {4#957,363,000/&70(—F—/1EF 160,015,000
HBIT) ZIRINEAIBER

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participated in a mandatory provident fund (“MPF") scheme
registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Under the MPF scheme, both the employer and its employees
are required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
effective from June 2014 for the MPF scheme. In addition, the employer and its
employees may make voluntary contributions at their discretions.

For the MPF scheme, all mandatory contributions made by the employers are
fully vested with the employees, while any unvested benefits of employees
arising from voluntary contributions would be forfeited and reverted to the
employers.

The Group also participates in the employees’ pension schemes of the respective
municipal government in various places in the PRC where the Group operates.
The Group makes monthly contributions calculated as a percentage of the
monthly payroll costs and the respective municipal government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retirees of
the Group. The Group has no other obligations for the payment of pension and
other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the above contribution
payments.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Company outside Hong Kong and the
PRC participate in central provident fund schemes established by the relevant
authority in their respective countries which are defined contribution plans.

The Group contributed an aggregate amount of HK$57,363,000 (2019:

HK$60,015,000) to the above retirement benefit schemes during the year
ended 31 March 2020.
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Year ended 31 March 2020
37.

38.

MEEEZARHER

FEBEREELT cBEREFBEIRAT
BEREMNFREEH - MEEENEERAHE
BERIARRESRANAERGERSRERSD
BrREERMEEZRESRNIER -

37.

BE_R_FF=R=+—HLEE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

RTEM FEfFIE EfRE
BERER (BEEER (REEEM
i Efffk)  ERRR)  ESERG
#E  Bankloans, HBHERT Interest  Dividend [
& import Obligations payable payable Share
lease  and other E# underfinance (incudedin (includedin  repurchase At
liabilities loans Notes leases other payables)other payables)  payables Total
TEn Thn TR Thx TR TEn THT TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“5-/\EmA-H At 1 April 2018 - 3,051,329 118,985 17 13,570 1,678 - 3,186,679
RBERSNE Financing cash flows - 436,038 (118,768) (1803)  (182573)  (101.876) (2,176) 28,842
FHREBEE New finance leases - - - 4,932 - - - 4932
EHRE Currency realignment - (62,636) (217) 152 6,518 - - (56,183)
i) Dividend declared - - - - - 101,876 - 101,876
EAWBAREMER Acquisition of additional
interest in subsidiaries - - - - - - 2,176 2176
FBRA Finance costs - - - 137 179,949 - - 180,086
RIZ-NE=A=+-H At 31 March 2019 - 3,424,731 - 4,535 17464 1,678 - 3,448 408
EREARKRSEDN62  Fffect of adoption of HKFRS 16
g2 122,561 - - (4,535) - - - 118,026
RIZ-NELA—H (EF])  At1 April 2019 (restated) 122,561 3,424,731 - - 17,464 1,678 - 3,566,434
BERERE Financing cash flows (69,010) 142,355 - - (163,898) (70,763) - (161,316)
FHE/MERE New lease enterec/lease modified 100,971 - - - - - - 100,971
ElRE Currency realignment (4,589 (121,357) - - (2,097) - - (128,043)
i) Dividend declared - - - - - 71,603 - 71,603
BERA Finance costs 6,438 - - - 174,383 - - 180,821
FIER—NEFEE B Frontend fee amortisation of
banks loans - - - - (12,975) - - (12,975)
RIZZHE-A=t-H  At31March2020 156,371 3445729 - - 12,877 2518 - 361749
BEEIRERS 38. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

RBE_F-NF=B=1t—HILFE  A&£E
BYE BMELEERITYBASEREE  8UE
AHE(E54,932,0005 7T,

REE_F_FE-A=+—HIFE  AEEF
FERAHERE B ERERBT AR
B—FEZNFHFHERH - NHESEBE
AN EEE R 137,886,000 ST B E K
100,971,000/8 TTHUFAE&E -
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group entered into finance lease
arrangements in respect of property, plant and equipment with a total capital
value at the inception of HK$4,932,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group entered into new lease
arrangements for the use of leasehold buildings, machinery and equipment and
motor vehicles for 1 year to 6 years. On the lease commencement, the Group
recognised HK$137,886,000 of right-of-use asset and HK$100,971,000 lease
liabilities.



39.

40.

41.

HAEE 39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
2020 2019
FiET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEE ARRITERIER Guarantees given to banks in respect of banking
facilities to associates 16,335 16,538
Ei Others 11,614 7,850
RiE 40. COMMITMENTS
2020 2019
TFigx Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
EENEREFEUEREBR Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of
BRBEYE  BMERREZ property, plant and equipment contracted for
ERAYE but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements 14,404 17,550

EREE

{ERHERE

RIB-NF=ZRA=1t—0  AEEF N #H
EEHEFRTAH A REHSWT

41. OPERATING LEASE

As lessee

At 31 March 2019, the Group has commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2019

NG Y]

T REE Machinery
Land and and Hith
buildings equipment Others
T T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 59,920 978 3,107
“ZERFN (HEMEEIEEA) In the second to fifth year inclusive 66,660 1,175 1,190
AFERME Over five years - - 1
126,580 2,153 4,298

EXPEHSNEASERNERRAZE « THR
REmERE  GRERERES - HEFH—

MR RIEZR 154 -
{ERLAE

FER - BEYERSIWAL02,00058ET (ZF—1N

£ 1 1,198,00057T ) ©

HECREBKESINT -

As lessor

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its office
properties, factories, machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures and
motor vehicles. Leases are negotiated for terms from 1 to 15 years.

Rental income from investment properties classified as held for sale earned
during the year was HK$802,000 (2019: HK$1,198,000).

2020

TFiERT

HK$°000

—&FR Within one year 778
BERW In the second year 778
F=FRW In the third year 778
FENFR In the fourth year 778
FRFER In the fifth year 227
3,339
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Year ended 31 March 2020

BE_R_FF=R=+—HLEE

4. EEEE @) 41. OPERATING LEASE (continued)
{ESLTEE @) As lessor (continued)
AEBERBAEM SO T 2HEAERERKE The Group had contracted with lessees for the following future minimum lease
ST payments:
2019
T
HK$'000
—FRA Within one year 1,104
“EhEN(BEMFEETEAN) In the second to fifth year inclusive 3,326
WBAE Over five years 277
4,707

42. FEAERS

AEBEAEBECBEATETUTEARS ¢

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following significant transactions with its associates
of the Group:

2020 2019

TFigx FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BERBEAT Purchases from associates 420,585 505,233

HETHEAT Sales to associates 132,686 144,413
B¥MEATCEREWA Management fee income received from

associates 1,832 1,764

RHEPEER  ARELARTHBENTR
DUNERERSIR FEU S 0 S R M AR IR I TR A
MR REMREEBERARN

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following balances with
its associates included under trade and other receivables and prepayments and
creditors and accrued charges:

2020 2019

Fi&x FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

AL NS =g Trade receivables due from associates 77,254 93,901
Hih et /A RSIE Other receivables due from associates 7,566 4,339
FEN B E AT ER Trade payables due to associates 73,645 110,774
HitEN B & AT 2518 Other payables due to associates 1,116 1,008

FENSE & /A B E A RIS AN B B /A R L AhFRIR
RIFEZHME ~ 8 ~ MERMEREREE -

THENRRITERIERIINMHEEIO -

FTEEREERBEAARES N THFMFT
iNGEE
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Other receivables due from associates and other payables due to associates are
non-trade nature, interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

Guarantees given to banks in respect of banking facilities to associates is
disclosed in note 39.

The key management personnel includes solely the directors of the Company
and the compensation paid to them is disclosed in note 9.



43. KRB ZHTFEKRRE

AARRZFIRERZF-NF=A=1—H

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

The financial information of the Company as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 as

Y BERMT follows:
31.3.2020 31.3.2019
Fi&n FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
JERENEE Non-current assets
L EN IS Property, plant and equipment 3,758 8,159
FREEE Right-of-use assets 37,284 -
Fr&GI B AR Interests in subsidiaries 1,222,454 1,222,454
UNEINCIEA Amounts due from subsidiaries - 26,251
HERE Rental deposits 4,971 3,684
1,268,467 1,260,548
mENEE Current assets
Hith EMERIE R T RIE Other receivables and prepayments 10,316 5,427
UEYNSIE A Amounts due from subsidiaries 213,163 212,267
BITHRT  BRAS Bank balances, deposits and cash 46,715 14,571
270,194 232,265
mEaE Current liabilities
FENIRBNER Creditors and accrued charges 16,059 16,453
HEEE Lease liabilities 9,889 -
RSB ATIFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,574 -
RITER Bank loans 283,000 395,000
310,522 411,453
e B ERE Net current liabilities (40,328) (179,188)
HEERERDEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,228,139 1,081,360
JERENEE Non-current liabilities
SRIT R EAMEFK Bank and other loans 274,500 137,500
HEBE Lease liabilities 27,792 -
302,292 137,500
BEEFE Net assets 925,847 943,860
BEX Rl Capital and reserves
A (BEE33) Share capital (note 33) 921,014 921,014
EEAGES Reserves (note) 4,833 22,846
e Total equity 925,847 943,860

NRIZRTFFEXA=THHESREB  WwhHU Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2020

TEERKER: and are signed on its behalf by:
g i Victor LO Chung Wing Brian LI Yiu Cheung
) E=E Director Director

SWTXEEERAD “F-NE-FT"THFHK | 143



144

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

FERBMEE@

Year ended 31 March 2020 BE_F _FHF=A=+—HIFE

43. AT ZHFERRE @)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(e Note:
B% 2 fEf REER
Dividend Retained at
reserve profits Total
FEIT FiETT FiET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A_F—/\FEMLA—H At 1 April 2018 9,416 8,727 18,143
2ERR Profit for the year - 27,459 27,459
EIRERE Dividend paid
—ZF - N\EREKE - 2018 final dividend (9,416) - (9,416)
—F-hEHERE - 2019 interim dividend - (13,340) (13,340)
EERE Dividend proposed
—“EF-NFEREEE — 2019 final dividend 19,617 (19,617) -
RIZE—NF=A=+—H At 31 March 2019 19,617 3,229 22,846
FEREBBRE2ER16 Adjustment due to application of
-k HKFRS 16 - (2,787) (2,787)
RIF—NFEB—H (F%]) At 1 April 2019 (restated) 19,617 447 20,059
2R Profit for the year - 20,085 20,085
EIREE S Dividend paid
—“F-NERBKE — 2019 final dividend (19,617) - (19,617)
—IERIRFPHRE — 2020 interim dividend - (15,694) (15,694)
RIZF"FF=A=+—H At 31 March 2020 - 4,833 4,833

Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019-2020




4. FEMBEAE

(a) FHEARINI—RREH
ARAR_B_BER_ZE

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

S NE=R

=t —BZEEMBARFBAT

(a) General information of subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2020 and 2019

are as follows:

FRERERTREZ
REL/ &Mt BT/ EMERAE BHERE
Place of Nominal value of Effective equity
B AR RE incorporation/ issued share/ interest attributable ~ TEEH
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2020 2019
75
Electronics division
BEEEXERART &5 HK$496,000,000 85.55% 85.55% EKIRE
Bowden Industries Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
CIH Limited K $$1,473,666 85.55% 85.55% IR E
Singapore Investment holding
Famingo Pte Ltd. Hhnsg 52 85.55% 85.55% ERIRE
Singapore Investment holding
GP Acoustics Limited REHRRES US$57,000,000 85.55% 85.55% EKIERE
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
GP Acoustics (HK) Limited B HK$20,000,000 85.55% 85.55% fEE  SERDHBERR
Hong Kong BYEM
Marketing, retailing and
distribution of acoustic and
electronic products
GP Acoustics International Limited & HK$101,500,000 85.55% 85.55% fE  SERNEBEER
Hong Kong BYEM
Marketing, retailing and
distribution of acoustic and
electronic products
GP Acoustics (Middle East) FrE 28 United Arab Emirates 85.55% 85.55% WERDHEEBRNETER
DWC-LLC United Arab Emirates Dirham ("AED") Marketing and distribution
300,000 of acoustic and electronic
products
RESLEEERAT BE NT$1,500,000 85.55% 85.55% HEERDHSERBENETER
GP Acoustics (Taiwan) Limited Taiwan Marketing and distribution
of acoustics and electronic
products
GP Acoustics (UK) Limited XE £12,500,000 85.55% 85.55% IRIGHE » A HER
United Kingdom HEBBERETER
Investment holding, design,
marketing and trading of
acoustic and electronic
products
GP Electronics and Acoustics Co., Ltd. 2= TBH220,000,000 43.63% - EREERRNETER
Thailand Manufacturing of acoustic and
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Year ended 31 March 2020
44. TEMBAE =)

(a) MBEATM—MRER =)

BE_ R THF-_RA=1T—HULEE
44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)

FRERERTREZ

i3 EEMB TS BT R E BRERE
Place of Nominal value of Effective equity
B ARRE incorporation/ issued share/ interest attributable ~ FEEH
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2020 2019
EFE =)
Electronics division (continued)
SHRET (FE)BRAT B HK$2 85.55% 85.55% HRRIRE
GP Electronics (China) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
SIET (BE)BRAT B HK$50,000,000 85.55% 8555% HEMEEFBEM
GP Electronics (HK) Limited Hong Kong Marketing and trading of audio
products
BNmEIlETERAR el HK$170,000,000 85.55% 8555% EHRGERNBTEM
GP Electronics (Huizhou) PRC Manufacturing of acoustic and
Co., Ltd." electronic products
GP Global Marketing Corporation ~ FIE# S US$1,501,060 85.55% 85.55% {FHRIE
Cayman Islands Holding of trademarks
GP Global Marketing Limited &BE HK$23,500,000 85.55% 85.55% THHHE
Hong Kong Marketing
GPIZ~ Hns $$286,306,915 85.55% 85.55% IEREE
GP Ind® Singapore Investment holding
S TXEFERAT B HK$21,000,000 85.55% 85.55% HENEERBTHHR
GP Industries Marketing Ltd Hong Kong BAERERER
Marketing and trading of quality
parts and components and
hygienic and health care
products
SHETERERAT B HK$1,000,000 85.55% 85.55% EIIRE
GPE International Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
BNEILBRBEARAT HE US$4,093,000 85.55% 85.55% ERREEG - BEER
Huizhou GP Wiring Technology Ltd." PRC R
Manufacturing of automotive
wire harness, transformers and
switching mode power supply
KEF Celestion Corporation HEHE US$400,000 85.55% 85.55% FFEMIZ
Cayman Islands Holding of trademarks
KEF Japan, Inc. HA JPY50,000,000 85.55% 85.55% SHEHZEMR
Japan Trading of acoustics products
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(a) MIBATM—IRER 2

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)

FEEEERTREZ
AV £3t i s BT Rk E BRERE
Place of Nominal value of Effective equity
REAEEE incorporation/ issued share/ interest attributable =~ FE£H
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2020 2019
Zitar
Batteries division
sl ESiIb $$251,312,000  85.55% 85.55% HERIRE
GP Batteries Singapore Investment holding
REBHENERAR e HK$109,000,000  85.55% 8555% ERBM
Dongguan Chao Ba Batteries PRC Manufacturing of batteries
Co Ltd"
SIEERBRIERAT =] NT$2,036,187,800 - 68.10% EREHM
Gold Peak Industries (Taiwan) Limited Taiwan Manufacturing of batteries
GP Batteries (Americas) Inc. ESE| US$105,800 85.55% 85.55% HEMIEHESH
United States of America Marketing and trading in
batteries
SINBTE (BN BRAR e US$4,400,000  85.55% 85.55% EHBM
GP Batteries (China) Limited” PRC Manufacturing of batteries
GP Batteries (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd BXRAE RM50,000,000 85.55% 85.55% EHEM
Malaysia Manufacturing of batteries
Il E B RAR e HK$110,000,000  85.55% 85.55% EHBM
GP Batteries (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd" PRC Manufacturing of batteries
GP Batteries (U.K.) Limited HE £2,191,011 85.55% 85.55% HEMIEESH
United Kingdom Marketing and trading in
batteries
GP Batteries (Vietnam) Limited i) VND275,624,000,000 81.28% 67.55% EZEM
Liability Company Vietnam Manufacturing of batteries
BEEMERAT 9 HK$2 85.55% 85.55% HEEMHEESMH
GP Battery Marketing (H.K.) Limited  Hong Kong Marketing and trading in
batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Korea) Limited 7388 150,000,000 76.99% 76.99% HEEREESH
South Korea Marketing and trading in
batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Malaysia) Sdn B3RPz RM100,000 85.55% 85.55% HEREESH
Bhd Malaysia Marketing and trading in

SNTEEBBRAD —F-NE_ZT_TEFR

batteries

147



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

= A, £
FaREM =
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE_F _FHF=A=+—HIFE
44. T EMBLRE =) 44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) MEATM—RER = (a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)
FEEEGERTREZ
i3I EEMBt T BT R E BRERE
Place of Nominal value Effective equity
RELEEE incorporation/ of issued share/ interest attributable ~ FEEH
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2020 2019
a2
Batteries division (continued)
GP Battery Marketing (Singapore) FhnsE $$800,000 85.55% 85.55% HERIHESEH
Pte Ltd Singapore Marketing and trading in
batteries
GP Battery (Poland) Sp. z.0.0. il PLN26,041,500 85.55% 85.55% HEERHESH
Poland Marketing and trading in
batteries
SIELTE (ESB)BRAR B HK$2 ~ 8555%  85.55% HKEE
GP Battery Technology (HK) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
GPIEIBEIRAR B HK$120,000,000 85.55% 8555% HEEMHEESH
GPI International Limited Hong Kong Marketing and trading in
batteries
GPPD Pte. Ltd. 0 UsD15,000,000 59.88% 50.88% 1R E
Singapore Investment holding
GPPD Energy Company Limited ] USD5,457,245 59.88% - ERRBEESH
Vietnam Manufacturing and trading of
batteries
BINEFEEMERAT® HIE RMB32,067,000 76.99% 76.99% HENMEESH
Huizhou Chao Ba Batteries Co Ltd® PRC Marketing and trading in
batteries
BNFRENERAR I US$9,400,000 85.55% 8555% EHBM
Huizhou Modern Battery Limited" PRC Manufacturing of batteries
BREHESNERAT A RMB30,000,000 61.60% 61.60% ERBM
Ningbo Fubang Battery Co Ltd® PRC Manufacturing of batteries
BERERERERATC e US$24,600,000 76.99% 76.99% EHRBM
Ningbo GP Energy Co., Ltd® PRC Manufacturing of batteries
FIE (PE) BRAR B HK$2 85.55% 85.55% HRRIRE
Sylva Industries (China) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
FEBXERAT B HK$1,200,000 85.55% 85.55% EHBM
Sylva Industries Limited Hong Kong Manufacturing of batteries
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44. T EMBLAE =) 44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) MEBATM—MRER = (a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)
FEEEGERITREZ

AT £33 Y BT Rk E BRERE
Place of Nominal value of Effective equity

HEAEEE incorporation/ issued share/ interest attributable ~ FE£H

Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities

2020 2019

i =)

Batteries division (continued)

GP Technology & Innovation Limited &7 HK$38,441,393 85.55% 85.55% FFEAHERE

(formerly known as Vectrix Hong Kong Holding of intellectual properties

International Limited)

BB IEARAT B HK$2 85.55% 85.55% EEIRENIRMIIR IR
Whitehill Electrochemical Hong Kong Investment holding and provision
Company Limited of logistic support
iR (%) BHERAR I Us$35,000,000 59.88% 59.88% EHBM
Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co. Ltd®  PRC Manufacturing of batteries
AtRE
Other investments
Makinen Properties Limited REERRES Uss$1 100% 100% #EHE
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
°  WHEARRNRPBIEG TEMEILZRIEE @  These Companies are established as sino-foreign joint ventures registered under
o= the PRC law.
t o REARRPPBIAG T EMERIIZ 2N E " These companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprises registered
Bz - under the PRC law.
& EARRANARBEERNS - FIEHMKIEA “  These companies are directly held by the Company. All other subsidiaries are
ARANARBERSE - indirectly held by the Company.
FRISFRB A BE R ST AR AR - ARA Except for the companies established in the PRC with registered capital, the
AR AL AR FEIT R E L E classes of shares held by the Company in the above companies are ordinary
vl shares issued by these companies.
ERBINAABZWBAR » EFRAZE The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
NRAFBEXERFEZEENERAERE of the directors, principally affected the results of the year or constituted
E—EEEHN - EFRRETIEMIEA a substantial portion of the assets of the Group. To give details of other
A FH B ERRRE subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

FREWES - ERFEE A FRFHESELR Save as disclosed, none of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
MBS A TN RATAA B E S © outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
SaIREMEEm)

Year ended 31 March 2020

BHEZ

4. TEMBLE @)

(b) MBARZEREEDEE)

(0)

REZE_S"SHF=—F=+—HIFE  GP
TX#EE79.6% B AR ILBEEREK
DERATFHEAM » MIEERBES AR
£6,651,000587T (20194F : THIT) ©

REBEE_S_SF=A=+—HILEF
B AEBKEIGP T EHESES1%H &K
37 fft B /A & GP Electronics and Acoustics
Company Limitedy3F12 i AR VIR & H B ZE
27,144,000/ (20194F © THIT) ©

REEZFFF=A=1+—HLEEE "

ZﬁﬁgLﬂﬁZﬂm&ﬁ%GP Battery (Vietnam)
Limited Liability Company %8 4M 1 % 13.73%
(2019 F) - AR WE  FEZERESR

4,407, 0008 TTHETEARIBEPRER °

REBE_FS—NEFE=A=1+—HIEFE K
NBlz EHHEB /Aﬂ IR+ /& 1,635,000
BT (CETSF T8 (B LBHEK
7 - REEE - E,ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ{&{;‘-‘;1,635,000;‘%i

(TR - F6im) MR TR
1,841,000/ 0 (ZE2FF - FHEIT) B2
FZRE206,000/8 0 (25 F - I U)ERE

REAEETHER -

REE_S—NEZA=Z+—HILEEE ' &
£ B BEKEF Japan Inc 10%(ZF _F4F :
F) wREIMER - R EARS541,000/8 T8 (Z
FTHEF BT c REWE EH{%F
541,000 T (Z B -H4F | BHETT) HELH

2 IR RS 262,00058 7T (Z B _F4 ¢

T B Z2%8803,0008 T (B _F4F ¢
BIT) BENERREERRER -

/«:

4':

BMEEXIFERESNIEZENB AT ZH
18
AEBBEEERFFZEREGZNIEZERBA
AlzFESIERMT

[AVR:Vx) 3

FTEEEMS

Place of

incorporation and

—EFEZAZtT-HIEFE
44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Change in ownership in subsidiaries

(9]

ownership interests

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Gold Peak Industries (Taiwan)
Limited (“GPIT"), a 79.6% owned subsidiary of GP Ind, was deregistered
and paid cash of HK$6,651,000 (2019: Nil) to non-controlling shareholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group received cash
contribution of HK$27,144,000 (2019: Nil) from non-controlling
shareholders of GP Electronics and Acoustics Company Limited, a 51%
owned newly formed subsidiary of GP Ind, as a result of capital injection
during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group acquired additional
interest of 13.73% (2019: Nil) in GP Battery (Vietnam) Limited Liability
Company through capitalisation (2019: Nil). As a result of the acquisition,
the amount of non-controlling interests adjusted of HK$4,407,000 (2019:
Nil) was directly recognised in capital reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the listed subsidiary of the
Company repurchased its shares from the market at cash consideration of
HK$1,635,000 (2020: Nil). As a result of the repurchase, the difference of
HK$206,000 (2020: Nil) between the consideration paid of HK$1,635,000
(2020: Nil) and the amount of non-controlling interests adjusted of
HK$1,841,000 (2020: Nil) was directly recognised in capital reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group acquired additional
interest of 10% (2020: Nil) in KEF Japan Inc. for a consideration of
HK$541,000 (2020: Nil). As a result of the acquisition, the difference of
HK$803,000 (2020: Nil) between the consideration paid of HK$541,000
(2020: Nil) and the amount of non-controlling interests adjusted of
HK$262,000 (2020: Nil) was directly recognised in capital reserve.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group that have material non-controlling interests:

IR BRI RN

HRERRRELS

Proportion of

REFIEERED T PEHIEER L

MEAREE principal price and voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
FiEn FHAT Fign FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
GPT R
GP Ind Singapore 14.45% 14.45% 16,288 24,673 302,629 314,883
iR (BR) BHERAR FE
Zhongyin (Ningbo)
Battery Co., Ltd. PRC 30.00% 30.00% 48,532 88,508 415,189 401,302
Hith NER @A TER
Others N/A N/A N/A 5,575 9,424 97,029 101,580
70,395 122,605 814,847 817,765
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44. FEMBAE =)

(0 BEEXFEHIESMIFZEMBATZEF

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-

(16 controlling interests (continued)
GPT % GP Ind
2020 2019
FiEx FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MENE B Current assets 3,413,728 4,024,107
FEREEE Non-current assets 3,657,507 3,172,382
mEEE Current liabilities 4,237,802 3,501,111
FEREAE Non-current liabilities 282,685 1,057,694
GPT B ALz R Equity attributable to owners of GP Ind 2,038,530 2,134,901
JEFE RS e Non-controlling interests 512,218 502,783
e Revenue 6,051,511 6,767,676
T BT R EE Expenses, other gains and losses 5,886,517 6,500,783
2EHF| Profit for the year 164,994 266,893
SBNANREE AR Profit attributable to owners of the Company 94,599 144,638
BN GP L IR R T Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests of
GP Ind 16,288 24,323
BN EMNB AT IEZEREER 2K Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests of
other subsidiaries 54,107 97,932
2EHF| Profit for the year 164,994 266,893
BBENAABREE AZEMEE Other comprehensive income (expense)
W (Z) attributable to owners of the Company 24,756 (107,359)
BN GP T IR Other comprehensive income (expense) attributable to
Hith2 e (ZH) the non-controlling interest of GP Ind 3,873 (18,131)
FEENEMNEBARIFERER ZHM  Other comprehensive income (expense)
2mEUR () attributable to the non-controlling interests of
other subsidiaries 4,249 (14,375)
2EHMPER R () Other comprehensive income (expense)
for the year 32,878 (139,865)
BERAATHEACEAENGEE  Total comprehensive income attributable to owners
of the Company 119,355 37,279
BRENGPT I FiR st 2mMzE  Total comprehensive income attributable to the
#R non-controlling interests of GP Ind 20,161 6,192
BENEMNEARIEZERERZ Total comprehensive income attributable to the
2HW AR non-controlling interests of other subsidiaries 58,356 83,557
2EXEWRER Total comprehensive income for the year 197,872 127,028
B ER Z S Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (36,292) (79,120)
ez 7SR CRH) 7$%8 Net cash inflow from (used in) operating activities 329,127 (38,201)
BEEB RS ORE) RAFRE Net cash (used in) inflow from investing activities (438,626) 297,515
REEE RS ORd) mAEEE Net cash (used in) inflow from financing activities (31,996) 190,330
Be Ond) RAFE Net cash (outflow) inflow (141,495) 449,644

MIBERFBNEN KBS 2 £

B2 GPTFMPIE -

The details of the financial information were disclosed in GP Ind’s annual

report which is available on the website of the Singapore Stock Exchange.
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Year ended 31 March2020 #HZE_S-_ZEF=A=1t—HIFE
4. TEMBLE @) 44, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(0 BEEAFEHEEMIIFZEMBEARZH

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-

152

B
iR (Eig) EBRAE

controlling interests (continued)

Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co., Ltd.

2020 2019
Figx Tt
HK$’000 HK$'000
MENE E Current assets 883,017 796,828
FRBEE Non-current assets 1,434,313 1,241,887
mEIaE Current liabilities 1,153,730 769,362
FEnEEE Non-current liabilities 2,395 -
FEZE R RE AR Non-controlling interests 348,363 380,805
S EMEEE AL ER Equity attributable to owners of GP Batteries 812,842 888,548
BT Revenue 2,284,826 2,542,439
S~ EfhiaF REE Expenses, other gains and losses 2,123,080 2,247,423
2EFRF] Profit for the year 161,746 295,016
BENARATHEE AZER Profit attributable to owners of the Company 96,853 176,668
EREI GP LI FIEp i a2 5 Al Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests of
GP Ind 16,361 29,840
BENRS IS EARIEERER 2  Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests of
il GP Batteries' subsidiaries 48,532 88,508
2EFRF] Profit for the year 161,746 295,016
BENRAATEE A E2E Other comprehensive income (expense)
Wz () attributable to owners of the Company 22,886 (16,836)
SR GP T 2EIFi st o HARM  Other comprehensive income (expense)
sk (S2H) attributable to the non-controlling interests of
GP Ind 3,864 (2,844)
BRERS | SHHBATIFE#ER > Other comprehensive income (expense) attributable
Hith2mEdas (ZH) to the non-controlling interests of GP Batteries’
subsidiaries 11,461 (8,437)
2EEMP IS (EH) Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year 38,211 (28,117)
BERAATEEACRHENGEZE  Total comprehensive income attributable to owners
the Company 119,739 159,832
RGP L3I ss 2 EUzt  Total comprehensive income attributable to the
@ non-controlling interests of GP Ind 20,225 26,996
BN S BB AR JEIE#S2  Total comprehensive income attributable to the
2HEM AR non-controlling interests of GP Batteries’
subsidiaries 59,993 80,071
2 EHEWERETR Total comprehensive income for the year 199,957 266,899
EFERRER RS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (20,154) (60,884)
REEBEZIRBMNFEE Net cash inflow from operating activities 238,897 282,120
WEXEB RSN 3 Net cash outflow from investing activities (162,646) (228,554)
REEE RS RA Rt 558 Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities 59,298 (59,098)
BERA O ) F88 Net cash inflow (outflow) 135,549 (5,532)
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45. T EBENE 45. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

AEFR S _FFL_FE—NF=A=+—H Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March 2020 and 2019 are as

T BRBENTFENT ¢ follows:
FEERGHETRE
BEIL Mt 75 ZENERE
BEARBE Place of incorporation/  Effective equity interest ~ FEEFH
Name of associate registration attributable to the Group  Principal activities
2020 2019
EFH
Electronics division
Julong Technology Limited REERRES 25.66% 25.66% ERIEE
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
BEETIERRAT s 32.62% 3262% REKE  EREENER
Linkz Industries Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and manufacturing
of electronic cables and wires
FETERNBRAT =l 17.34% 17.34% F% - RERHEESBERLK
Meiloon Industrial Co., Ltd. Taiwan TEEMR
Development, manufacturing and
marketing of acoustic and
audio-visual equipment
AERBRAT B 25.66% 25.66% RRBERTERRES
Wisefull Technology Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and trading of
metallic products
HEREARAT REBHERRES 25.66% 25.66% PERIEE
Youijia Technology Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding
-y
Batteries division
AZ Limited AR 34.22% 34.22% HENEESH
Russia Marketing and trading in batteries
FNEHENERAT e 34.22% 34.22% EREBM
Changzhou Lithium Batteries Ltd PRC Manufacturing of batteries
SETEARAT B 35.50% 2566% HEMHEESH
Gold Yi Industry Company Limited PRC Marketing and trading in batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Germany) = 42.77% 4277% HEIHEESH
GmbH Germany Marketing and trading in batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Middle East) Limited (FZC) BaBteg 42.77% 42.77% FEEREESH
United Arab Emirates Marketing and trading in batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Thailand) Co Ltd ZRE 41.92% 41.92% HENEESH
Thailand Marketing and trading in batteries
GWA Energy, Inc =) 35.08% 35.08% HEEMHESH
Taiwan Marketing and trading in batteries
Hanoi Battery Joint Stock Company i) 41.92% 25.66% EREM
Vietnam Manufacturing of batteries
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FaiRBMEE@

Year ended 31 March 2020
45. TEBEAT )

BEARRE

Name of associate

BE_S_FF-_A=1t—RALFE

45. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES (continued)

FEEEGRTRSE
ZEREHRE
Effective equity interest
attributable to the Group

oAV 32 b
Place of incorporation/
registration

EERH

Principal activities

2020 2019

FitE &)

Batteries division (continued)

FBEEFARAT B 28.51% 2851% HEMHEERWER

Lichton International Ltd Hong Kong Marketing and trading in lighting
products

BRSREMFRAT e 27.38% 27.38% HERBEES IR

Ningbo Fengyin Battery Co. Ltd PRC Marketing and trading in batteries
materials

HEARBRRNERAT BE 25.73% 2948% EREHERBHER

STL Technology Co., Ltd Taiwan Manufacturing of battery packs
and products

RILBMT % (RE) BRAR B 36.36% 36.36% EREBM

T.G. Battery Co (China) Ltd PRC Manufacturing of batteries

RILBNT X% (BFH) BRAR s 42.77% 4277% EREE LREDIRSIR

T.G. Battery Co (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and provision of

ERRBEAREFERZARTEEREESN

DI EFrA#E R BME AT BARNTBERTE -
FrEME AR 2B T EER B 2RI T
73 o L ERBARYRMAEREEAT -

RETEMENRZRE  AhDEHEERIE
KEEER -

FRBINAFEBECHMENT  EFRREHZE
NABERFENMZFARNERTEAFEZ
(EBRAEEFEE—EEREND - EFR
AEIHMBE AR FBURREBREILE

REBE_ZE_FF=F=1+—HLFE A&£E
RIFE LR E AR BRARERNDERAREH R
NFEBITROMBRINEREB SR ZAT L
o Atk - AEERITEOREROERATH
R LL BB ZE25.73%( 20194F £ 29.48% ) °

MNEBEZF"BF-—F=1+—HIFE  x&H
IR &R E14,124,00057T (20194 : FHIT)
& AHanoi Battery Joint Stock Companyf9%Za4ME
#516.26%(2019 : &) »

REE_F_SE-A=+—HILFE  AEEF
PIFR£0{&2,960,0005E 7T (20194 « FZ#T) B
ASZETHBRATEIMERRI.84%(2019 :
F)e
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logistic support

Significant influence is exercised through representative on board of directors of
all the above associates.

All associates indicated above are indirectly held by the Company. All associates
operate principally in their respective places of incorporation/registration. All of
the above companies are limited liability companies.

The investments in associates are solely for shares of results and no strategic
purpose is involved.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group exercised significant influence and principally affected the
results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, STL Technology Company Limited,
the unlisted associate of the Group, applied for an initial public offering and
successfully listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. As a result of the
listing, the shareholding of the Group is diluted to 25.73% (2019: 29.48%).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group acquired additional interest
of 16.26% (2019: Nil) in Hanoi Battery Joint Stock Company for a cash
consideration of HK$14,124,000 (2019: Nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group acquired additional
interest of 9.84% (2019: Nil) in Gold Yi Industry Company Limited for a cash
consideration of HK$2,960,000 (2019: Nil).



46. REHREIR

RIBE_BF=A=+—HRBAEEGETE
mEREERMCH  ASEENSEBEIRES
X H1,072,000,00058 TR EE - AEETEH
FFEEETHIH T 27,000,000 T E—F EE
FAEE - AAEEEE  BEANEMESK
BARRNSHAEENFECESBREE

WoBTTEZASH—A& PR (R B
ERADBRT RS _SF=A=+—E#H
SRS RN TRV (H525) -

MBRHANR T _RFNRE > STHIERAE—
FRA o RESIBMRZHF L DIKEEES
i NEIBEIRFREINHE SNBSS
ERR  BOAKENNERNERTDE - A%
BN PENIEARE S _FF_AL=R
W HEEBRRRO L IREEFESE
EEEXD - B=A%  EBECEREMERA
Bt BEEZEEFMEEES  BEITRHMME
FRY - AEEGTY)ESEMARILEEHLUE
HERBRAOHR -

HRENERHAERAR  BATRERER
B BEREREHEHERTREER) - B
R LUBBERZONGEBRERFTREET
BR > JCRAREN AN B A B e R AR S8 E 2 85
BREER -

FEM AR - FEEMZBIRIL N - BN
HEgE - it AEMBRERAAEENER,
Em o AEBEREEHIESReCyko+ NEERTE
Sz MEBETRIR A TISHERE

ERRERMBYR - T RAERNERE
ARSI BB IS E— S B - HEREENY
B - BERAVBRRBERMB - A5EH
AT BREIFERE -

46. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 March 2020 and up to the date of approval for issuance
of these consolidated financial statements , the Group has received Consents
in respect of HK$1,072 million of the Affected Loans and expects to further
receive Consents for the remaining HK$27 million of the Affected Loans. The
directors of the Company believe that adequate alternative sources of finance
are available to ensure that there is no threat to the continuing operations of the
Group.

Subsequent to 31 March 2020, Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co. Ltd handed over
the control of the factory which was classified as assets held for sale as at 31
March 2020 (see note 25).

Market sentiments have worsened when the outbreak of COVID-19 took place
in early 2020. The pandemic has led to lockdown and economic disruption on
a global scale. Movement control measures adopted by different countries not
only suppressed consumer demand but have also brought the flow of some
of our products to a halt. The Group’s factories in China were closed for two
to four weeks in February and March 2020. Decrease in consumer demand
together with locked down production facilities affected the Group’s revenue.
The management has implemented rigorous cost saving measures since mid-
March, including inventory and working capital control, salary concessions and
no-pay leaves. The Group will closely monitor and adjust these measures to
counter the rapidly evolving market condition.

As battery products are daily necessities, they are less susceptible to the negative
impacts of a slowdown in the economy despite some fluctuations in demand
from time to time. However, the Group’s consumer-centric acoustics products
met a more significant decline in consumer demand, especially for sales in Asia
and Europe where extensive travel restrictions were imposed.

During the COVID-19 lockdown, demand for rechargeable batteries has risen
noticeably in Europe. Reusable batteries will continue to be our highlighted
products. More efforts will be put into the enhancement of the performance
and marketing of our ReCyko+ rechargeable batteries.

Pending on the development and spread of COVID-19 subsequent to the date
of this report, further changes in economic conditions arising thereof may have
impact on the financial results of the Group, the extent of which could not be
estimated as at the date these consolidated financial statements are authorised
for issue.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF GP INDUSTRIES LIMITED

GPILRBIRATHMIFME
STaEeR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
BREZA=+—HIFE Year ended 31 March
2020 2020 2019 2019
TFENET FiEgrx*  FIET FET*
$$'000 HK$'000* S$'000 HK$'000*
BER Revenue 1,062,358 6,051,511 1,167,142 6,767,673
FREL AR A Profit before taxation 55,258 314,767 64,288 372,775
| Taxation (26,293) (149,773) (18,260) (105,881)
PRI A Profit after taxation 28,965 164,994 46,028 266,894
JEIEAG RS Non-controlling interests (9,499) (54,107) (16,871) (97,826)
2ERF Profit for the year 19,466 110,887 29,157 169,068
SeHBRRE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R=A=+—H At 31 March
2020 2020 2019 2019
TFEnET Fi#grx*  FInET T
$$'000 HK$'000* S$'000 HK$'000*
L/E B TING L] Property, plant and equipment 336,061 1,829,548 273,864 1,586,576
FHRREE Right-of-use assets 25,696 139,891 - -
B NT R Interest in associates 270,887 1,474,736 251,568 1,457,409
DA EFTAEMZE Equity instruments at fair value
Wz ATHR through other comprehensive income 2,496 13,589 3,665 21,235
FEMENEWERIE Non-current receivable 15,318 83,392 - -
EIERIEE E Deferred tax assets 3,833 20,867 3,882 22,490
e RIENTIE Deposits and prepayments 3,879 21,118 1,451 8,406
B EE Intangible assets 13,660 74,366 13,165 76,269
MEBEE Current assets 627,051 3,413,728 694,613 4,024,105
REE Total assets 1,298,881 7,071,235 1,242,208 7,196,490
FrRBEE Non-current liabilities 51,925 282,685 182,572 1,057,695
==} Current liabilities 778,421 4,237,802 604,338 3,501,111
=ty Total liabilities 830,346 4,520,487 786,910 4,558,806
FEE Net assets 468,535 2,550,748 455,298 2,637,684
FENAREE AER Equity attributable to owners
of the company 374,448 2,038,530 368,512 2,134,901
FFiEpe et Non-controlling interests 94,087 512,218 86,786 502,783
468,535 2,550,748 455,298 2,637,684
mi{E MARKET CAPITALISATION 237,183 1,291,247 285,588 1,654,497

* PIELRE BB ETTEBENREEFE e RiBRE  * The Hong Kong dollar equivalents as shown above for illustrative purposes are converted at
the exchange rates ruling as at the respective year end dates.

=R
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